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Part I - Financial Information

Item 1: Financial Statements

Pitney Bowes Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Income
(Unaudited)

         
  Three Months Ended March 31,  
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)  2005  2004 
Revenue from:         

Sales  $ 381,427  $ 331,360 
Rentals   201,641   201,438 
Financing   157,275   148,229 
Support services   194,934   158,413 
Business services   349,103   302,791 
Capital Services   33,408   29,691 

         
Total revenue   1,317,788   1,171,922 

         
Costs and expenses:         

Cost of sales   167,777   159,375 
Cost of rentals   42,317   41,700 
Cost of support services   100,174   85,623 
Cost of business services   288,842   245,892 
Selling, general and administrative   408,384   360,819 
Research and development   41,549   36,004 
Restructuring   (15,840)   15,043 
Charitable contribution   10,000   — 
Interest, net   46,816   41,445 

         
Total costs and expenses   1,090,019   985,901 

         
Income before income taxes   227,769   186,021 
Provision for income taxes   78,165   59,427 
         
Net income  $ 149,604  $ 126,594 
         
Basic earnings per share  $ .65  $ .55 
         
Diluted earnings per share  $ .64  $ .54 
         
Dividends declared per share of common stock  $ .31  $ .305 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Pitney Bowes Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets
         
  March 31,  December 31, 
(Dollars in thousands, except share data)  2005  2004 
  (Unaudited)     
Assets         
Current assets:         

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 322,544  $ 316,217 
Short-term investments, at cost which approximates market   13,706   3,933 
Accounts receivable, less allowances:         

3/05, $49,353; 12/04, $50,254   596,435   567,772 
Finance receivables, less allowances:         

3/05, $69,260; 12/04, $71,001   1,357,906   1,400,593 
Inventories (Note 3)   224,095   206,697 
Other current assets and prepayments   201,748   197,874 

         
Total current assets   2,716,434   2,693,086 

         
Property, plant and equipment, net (Note 4)   638,811   644,495 
Rental equipment and related inventories, net (Note 4)   487,703   475,905 
Property leased under capital leases, net (Note 4)   2,897   3,081 
Long-term finance receivables, less allowances:         

3/05, $93,240; 12/04, $102,074   1,795,644   1,820,733 
Investment in leveraged leases   1,551,035   1,585,030 
Goodwill (Note 11)   1,437,679   1,411,381 
Intangible assets, net (Note 11)   315,593   323,737 
Other assets   872,924   863,132 
         
Total assets  $ 9,818,720  $ 9,820,580 
         
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity         
Current liabilities:         

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  $ 1,419,783  $ 1,475,107 
Income taxes payable   259,897   218,605 
Notes payable and current portion of long-term obligations   747,268   1,178,946 
Advance billings   466,329   421,819 

         
Total current liabilities   2,893,277   3,294,477 

         
Deferred taxes on income   1,756,189   1,771,825 
Long-term debt (Note 5)   3,176,025   2,798,894 
Other noncurrent liabilities   360,657   355,303 
         

Total liabilities   8,186,148   8,220,499 
         
Preferred stockholders’ equity in a subsidiary company   310,000   310,000 
         
Stockholders’ equity:         

Cumulative preferred stock, $50 par value, 4% convertible   17   19 
Cumulative preference stock, no par value, $2.12 convertible   1,235   1,252 
Common stock, $1 par value   323,338   323,338 
Retained earnings   4,316,613   4,243,404 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (Note 8)   121,540   135,526 
Treasury stock, at cost   (3,440,171)   (3,413,458)

         
Total stockholders’ equity   1,322,572   1,290,081 

         
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity  $ 9,818,720  $ 9,820,580 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Pitney Bowes Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited)

         
  Three Months Ended March 31,  
(Dollars in thousands)  2005  2004 
Cash flows from operating activities:         

Net income  $ 149,604  $ 126,594 
Nonrecurring (gains) charges, net of taxes   (3,131)   9,628 
Nonrecurring payments   (31,292)   (16,552)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:         

Depreciation and amortization   82,538   73,393 
(Decrease) increase in deferred taxes on income   (10,962)   30,698 
Change in assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions:         

Accounts receivable   (24,579)   (5,894)
Net investment in internal finance receivables   10,650   33,187 
Inventories   (12,099)   1,095 
Other current assets and prepayments   (5,174)   (2,966)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities   (43,196)   (20,814)
Income taxes payable   38,085   28,647 
Advanced billings   46,205   20,647 
Other, net   (4,290)   (2,685)

         
Net cash provided by operating activities   192,359   274,978 

         
Cash flows from investing activities:         

Short-term investments   (9,779)   (2,176)
Net proceeds from sale of main plant   30,238   — 
Capital expenditures   (79,539)   (74,469)
Net investment in capital services   79,766   2,034 
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired   (25,000)   — 
Reserve account deposits   (18,700)   (2,443)
Other investing activities   —   (7,578)

         
Net cash used in investing activities   (23,014)   (84,632)

         
Cash flows from financing activities:         

Decrease in notes payable, net   (22,357)   (76,206)
Proceeds from long-term obligations   398,029   2,222 
Principal payments on long-term obligations   (435,786)   (7,891)
Proceeds from issuance of stock   32,121   20,675 
Stock repurchases   (63,725)   (96,000)
Dividends paid   (71,523)   (70,946)

         
Net cash used in financing activities   (163,241)   (228,146)

         
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash   223   6,079 
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   6,327   (31,721)
Cash from consolidation of PBG Capital Partners LLC   —   36,620 
Cash and equivalents at beginning of period   316,217   293,812 
         
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period  $ 322,544  $ 298,711 
         
Interest paid  $ 52,548  $ 43,943 
         
Income taxes paid, net  $ 37,232  $ 8,861 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Pitney Bowes Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1:

Pitney Bowes is a provider of leading-edge, global, integrated mail and document management solutions for organizations of all sizes. Pitney Bowes Inc. and
all of its subsidiaries (the company) operate in the following group of segments: Global Mailstream Solutions, Global Business Services and Capital Services.
The company operates both inside and outside the United States. See Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements for financial information concerning
revenue and earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) by segment.

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the instructions to Form 10-Q and do not include all
of the information and footnotes required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) for complete financial
statements. In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of only normal recurring adjustments) necessary to present fairly the financial position
of the company at March 31, 2005 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the three months ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 have been included.
Operating results for the three months ended March 31, 2005 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for any other interim period or
the year ending December 31, 2005. These statements should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes thereto included in the
company’s 2004 Annual Report to Stockholders on Form 10-K. Certain prior year amounts in the consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to
conform with the current year presentation.

Note 2:

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Interpretation (FIN) No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.”
FIN No. 46 requires a variable interest entity to be consolidated by a company if that company is subject to a majority of the risk of loss from the variable
interest entity’s activities or is entitled to receive a majority of the entity’s residual returns or both. The company’s ownership of the equity of PBG Capital
Partners LLC (PBG) qualifies as a variable interest entity under FIN No. 46. PBG was formed with GATX Corporation in 1997 for the purpose of financing
and managing certain leasing related assets. The company adopted the provisions of FIN No. 46 effective March 31, 2004 and consolidated the assets and
liabilities of PBG on March 31, 2004. Prior to March 31, 2004, the company accounted for PBG under the equity method of accounting. PBG’s minority
interest of $43 million and $41 million, respectively, is included in other noncurrent liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at March 31, 2005 and
December 31, 2004. The consolidation of PBG did not have a material impact on the company’s results of operations or cash flows.

In May 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) No. 106-2, “Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug,
Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003.” The FSP provides accounting guidance for the effects of the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and
Modernization Act of 2003 (the “Act”) to a sponsor of a postretirement health care plan that has concluded that prescription drug benefits available under the
plan are actuarially equivalent and thus qualify for the subsidy under the Act. The provisions of FSP No. 106-2 were effective July 1, 2004. The company
concluded that the prescription drug benefits provided under its nonpension postretirement benefit plans are actuarially equivalent to the prescription drug
benefits offered under Medicare Part D. The provisions of FSP No. 106-2 were adopted on a prospective basis on July 1, 2004.

In November 2004, Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (FAS) No. 151, “Inventory Costs,” was issued. FAS No. 151 amends and clarifies the
accounting for abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs and wasted material (spoilage). The provisions of FAS No. 151 are effective
for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. The company is currently evaluating the provisions of FAS No. 151.

In December 2004, the FASB issued FSP No. 109-2, “Accounting and Disclosure Guidance for the Foreign Earnings Repatriation Provision within the
American Jobs Creation Act of 2004.” The FSP provides guidance under FAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” with respect to recording the
potential impact of the repatriation provisions of the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the “Jobs Act”) on enterprises’ income tax expense and deferred
tax liability. The Jobs Act was enacted on October 22, 2004. FSP No. 109-2 states that companies are allowed time beyond the financial reporting period of
enactment to evaluate the effect of the Jobs Act on its plan for reinvestment or repatriation of foreign earnings for purposes of applying FAS No. 109. The
company is currently evaluating the effects of the repatriation provision and does not expect to complete this evaluation until after Congress or the Treasury
Department provides clarification on key elements of the repatriation provision. The company does not expect the adoption of these provisions to have a
material impact on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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Accounting for stock-based compensation

In April 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) approved a new rule delaying the effective date of FAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based
Payment,” to January 1, 2006. In light of this delay, the company will adopt the provisions of FAS No. 123R when it becomes effective. The company is
currently evaluating the impact of adopting FAS No. 123R, which was issued in December 2004. FAS No. 123R supercedes Accounting Principles Board
(APB) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” The revised statement addresses the accounting for share-based payment transactions
with employees and other third parties, eliminates the ability to account for share-based transactions using APB No. 25 and requires that the compensation
costs relating to such transactions be recognized in the consolidated financial statements. FAS No. 123R requires additional disclosures relating to the
income tax and cash flow effects resulting from share-based payments.

The company adopted the disclosure-only provisions of FAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation – Transition and Disclosure,” which
amends FAS No. 123 and requires more prominent and more frequent disclosures in the financial statements of the effects of stock-based compensation.

The company applies APB No. 25 and related interpretations in accounting for its stock-based plans. Accordingly, no compensation expense has been
recognized for its U.S. and U.K. Stock Option Plans (ESP) or its U.S. and U.K. Employee Stock Purchase Plans (ESPP), except for the compensation expense
recorded for its performance-based awards under the ESP and the Directors’ Stock Plan.

If the company had elected to recognize compensation expense based on the fair value method as prescribed by FAS No. 123, net income and earnings per
share for the three months ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 would have been reduced to the following pro forma amounts:

         
  Three Months Ended March 31,  
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)  2005  2004 
Net Income         

As reported  $ 149,604  $ 126,594 
Deduct: Stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value based method for all awards, net

of related tax effects   (4,066)   (4,290)
Pro forma  $ 145,538  $ 122,304 

         
Basic earnings per share         

As reported  $ .65  $ .55 
Pro forma  $ .63  $ .53 

         
Diluted earnings per share         

As reported  $ .64  $ .54 
Pro forma  $ .62  $ .52 

The fair value of each stock option and employee stock purchase right grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model
using the following weighted average assumptions:

         
  Three Months Ended March 31,  
  2005  2004 
Expected dividend yield   2.8%   3.1%
Expected stock price volatility   19%   25%
Risk-free interest rate   3.5%   3.0%
Expected life (years)   5   5 

Note 3:

Inventories are composed of the following:

         
  March 31,  December 31, 
(Dollars in thousands)  2005  2004 
Raw materials and work in process  $ 88,252  $ 75,508 
Supplies and service parts   69,408   67,666 
Finished products   66,435   63,523 
Total  $224,095  $ 206,697 
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Note 4:

         
  March 31,  December 31, 
(Dollars in thousands)  2005  2004 
Property, plant and equipment  $ 1,784,054  $ 1,756,480 
Accumulated depreciation   (1,145,243)   (1,111,985)
Property, plant and equipment, net  $ 638,811  $ 644,495 
         
Rental equipment and related inventories  $ 1,150,641  $ 1,150,931 
Accumulated depreciation   (662,938)   (675,026)
Rental equipment and related inventories, net  $ 487,703  $ 475,905 
         
Property leased under capital leases  $ 8,820  $ 8,662 
Accumulated amortization   (5,923)   (5,581)
Property leased under capital leases, net  $ 2,897  $ 3,081 

Depreciation expense was $73.2 million and $66.3 million for the three months ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Note 5:

On March 31, 2005, $2.1 billion remained available under the shelf registration statement filed in February 2005 with the SEC, permitting issuances of up to
$2.5 billion in debt securities, preferred stock, preference stock, common stock, purchase contracts, depositary shares, warrants and units. In addition,
$5.8 million remained available under the shelf registration statement filed in October 2001 with the SEC, permitting issuances of up to $2 billion in debt
securities, preferred stock and depositary shares.

In March 2005, the company issued $400 million of unsecured fixed rate notes maturing in March 2015. These notes bear interest at an annual rate of 5.0%
and pay interest semi-annually beginning September 2005. The proceeds from these notes were used for general corporate purposes, including the repayment
of commercial paper, financing of acquisitions and the repurchase of company stock.

Note 6:

A reconciliation of the basic and diluted earnings per share computations for the three months ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 is as follows (in thousands,
except per share data):

                         
  2005   2004  
          Per          Per 
  Income  Shares  Share  Income  Shares  Share 
Net Income  $149,604          $126,594         
Less:                         

Preferred stock dividends   —           —         
Preference stock dividends   (24)           (25)         

                         
Basic earnings per share  $149,580   230,290  $ .65  $126,569   231,895  $ .55 
                         
Effect of dilutive securities:                         

Preferred stock   —   9       —   9     
Preference stock   24   762       25   797     
Stock options       2,276           1,904     
Other       139           142     

                         
Diluted earnings per share  $149,604   233,476  $ .64  $126,594   234,747  $ .54 

In accordance with FAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share,” 1.1 million and 2.1 million common stock equivalent shares for the three months ended March 31,
2005 and 2004, respectively, issuable upon the exercise of stock options were excluded from the above computations because the exercise prices of such
options were greater than the average market price of the common stock and therefore the impact of these shares was antidilutive.
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Note 7:

In light of the company’s recent organizational realignment, effective January 1, 2005, the company revised its segments to reflect its product-based
businesses separately from its service-based businesses. Prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year presentation. The Global
Mailstream Solutions group of segments includes worldwide revenue and related expenses from the sale, rental and financing of production mail and
inserting equipment for large enterprises, mail finishing, mail creation and shipping equipment, related supplies and maintenance services, mailing and
customer communication software, postal payment solutions and small business solutions. The Global Business Services group of segments includes
worldwide revenue and related expenses from facilities management contracts, reprographics, document management, and other value-added services to key
vertical markets, and mail services operations, which include presort mail services and international outbound mail services. The Capital Services segment
includes financing of third-party equipment.

Revenue and EBIT by business segment for the three months ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 were as follows:

         
  Three Months Ended March 31,  
(Dollars in thousands)  2005  2004 
Revenue:         

Inside the United States – Mailing  $ 552,700  $ 534,389 
– Document Messaging Technologies   91,118   63,921 

Outside the United States   291,459   241,130 
Global Mailstream Solutions (1)   935,277   839,440 

         
Global Management Services   267,905   266,783 
Mail Services   81,198   36,008 

Global Business Services   349,103   302,791 
         

Capital Services   33,408   29,691 
         
Total revenue  $ 1,317,788  $ 1,171,922 
         
EBIT: (2)         

Inside the United States – Mailing  $ 217,579  $ 207,224 
– Document Messaging Technologies   3,938   2,640 

Outside the United States   52,165   38,211 
Global Mailstream Solutions   273,682   248,075 

         
Global Management Services   14,810   12,320 
Mail Services   3,418   3,507 

Global Business Services   18,228   15,827 
         

Capital Services   19,504   21,182 
         
Total EBIT   311,414   285,084 
         
Unallocated amounts:         

Interest, net   (46,816)   (41,445)
Corporate expense   (42,669)   (42,575)
Charitable contribution   (10,000)   — 
Restructuring   15,840   (15,043)

         
Income before income taxes  $ 227,769  $ 186,021 

(1) Financing revenue reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income is included in Global Mailstream Solutions.
 
(2) EBIT excludes general corporate expenses.
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Note 8:

Comprehensive income for the three months ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 was as follows:

         
  Three Months Ended March 31,  
(Dollars in thousands)  2005  2004 
Net income  $ 149,604  $ 126,594 
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax:         

Foreign currency translation adjustments   (14,322)   82,224 
Net unrealized gain (loss) on derivative instruments   336   (5,555)

Comprehensive income  $ 135,618  $ 203,263 

Note 9:

The company accounts for one-time benefit arrangements and exit or disposal activities primarily in accordance with FAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs
Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities,” which requires that a liability be recognized when the costs are incurred. The company accounts for ongoing
benefit arrangements under FAS No. 112, “Employers’ Accounting for Postemployment Benefits,” which requires that a liability be recognized when the
costs are probable and reasonably estimable. The fair values of impaired long-lived assets are determined primarily using probability weighted expected cash
flows in accordance with FAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets.”

In connection with our previously announced restructuring initiatives, the company recorded a pre-tax restructuring (gain) charge of ($15.8) million and
$15.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The pre-tax restructuring (gain) charges are composed of:

         
  Three Months Ended March 31,  
(Dollars in millions)  2005  2004 
Severance and benefit costs  $ 13.1  $ 12.8 
Asset impairments   0.7   1.3 
Other exit costs   0.6   0.9 
Gain on sale of main plant   (30.2)   — 
  $ (15.8)  $ 15.0 

All restructuring charges, except for the asset impairments, will result in cash outflows. The severance and benefit costs relate to a reduction in workforce of
approximately 2,500 employees worldwide from the inception of this plan through March 31, 2005 and expected future workforce reductions of
approximately 800 employees. The workforce reductions relate to actions across several of the company’s businesses resulting from infrastructure and process
improvements and its continuing efforts to streamline operations, and include managerial, professional, clerical and technical roles. Approximately 60% of
the workforce reductions are in the U.S. The majority of the international workforce reductions are in Europe and Canada. Asset impairments for the three
months ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 relate primarily to the write-down of property, plant and equipment resulting from the closure or streamlining of
certain facilities and systems. Other exit costs relate primarily to lease termination costs, non-cancelable lease payments, consolidation of excess facilities
and other costs associated with exiting business activities. During the three months ended March 31, 2005, the company recorded a pre-tax gain of
$30 million related to the sale of its main plant manufacturing facility in Connecticut.

Accrued restructuring charges at March 31, 2005 are composed of the following:

                     
  Balance at      Cash      Ending balance 
  January 1,  Restructuring  (payments)  Non-cash  at March 31, 
(Dollars in millions)  2005  charges (gain)  receipts  charges  2005 
Severance and benefit costs  $ 48.4  $ 13.1  $ (19.3)  $ —  $ 42.2 
Asset impairments   —   0.7   —   (0.7)   — 
Other exit costs   3.1   0.6   (2.0)   —   1.7 
Gain on sale of main plant   —   (30.2)   30.2   —   — 
  $ 51.5  $ (15.8)  $ 8.9  $ (0.7)  $ 43.9 
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Note 10:

On March 24, 2005, the company completed the acquisition of Compulit, Inc. (Compulit) for a net purchase price of $25 million in cash. Compulit is a
leading provider of litigation support services to law firms and corporate clients. This acquisition expands the company’s ability to provide a broader range
of high value services to its legal vertical. The goodwill was assigned to Global Management Services in the Global Business Services group of segments.

On December 16, 2004, the company completed the acquisition of Groupe MAG for a net purchase price of $43 million in cash. Groupe MAG is a distributor
of production mail equipment, software and services in France, Belgium and Luxembourg. This acquisition extended the company’s distribution capabilities
internationally. The goodwill was assigned to Outside the U.S. in the Global Mailstream Solutions group of segments.

On November 1, 2004, the company completed the acquisition of a substantial portion of the assets of Ancora Capital & Management Group LLC (Ancora)
for a net purchase price of $37 million in cash. Ancora is a provider of first class, standard letter and international mail processing and presort services with
five operations in southern California, Pennsylvania and Maryland. This acquisition expanded the company’s mail services operations. The goodwill was
assigned to Mail Services in the Global Business Services group of segments.

On July 20, 2004, the company completed the acquisition of Group 1 Software, Inc. (Group 1) for a net purchase price of $329 million in cash. Group 1 is an
industry leader in software that enhances mailing efficiency, data quality and customer communications. The goodwill was assigned to Inside the U.S. - DMT
and Outside the U.S. in the Global Mailstream Solutions group of segments.

On May 21, 2004, the company completed the acquisition of substantially all of the assets of International Mail Express, Inc. (IMEX) for a net purchase price
of $30 million in cash. IMEX consolidates letters and flat-sized mail headed to international addresses to reduce postage costs and expedite delivery. This
acquisition expanded the company’s mail services operations. The goodwill was assigned to Mail Services in the Global Business Services group of
segments.

The following table summarizes selected financial data for these acquisitions:

                     
(Dollars in thousands)  Compulit  Groupe MAG  Ancora  Group 1  IMEX 
Purchase price allocation                     
Intangible assets  $ 2,500  $ 10,356  $ 13,923  $ 83,800  $ 9,600 
Goodwill   18,286   27,839   20,486   293,544   20,180 
Other, net   4,214   5,063   2,553   (48,223)   347 

Purchase price  $ 25,000  $ 43,258  $ 36,962  $329,121  $ 30,127 
                     
Intangible assets                     
Customer relationships  $ 1,500  $ 10,356  $ 13,923  $ 34,000  $ 8,100 
Mailing software and technology   300   —   —   43,600   900 
Trademarks and trade names   700   —   —   6,200   600 

Total intangible assets  $ 2,500  $ 10,356  $ 13,923  $ 83,800  $ 9,600 
 
Intangible assets amortization period                     
Customer relationships   5 years   15 years   15 years   15 years   15 years 
Mailing software and technology   3 years   —   —   9 years   5 years 
Trademarks and trade names   5 years   —   —   9 years   2 years 

Total weighted average   5 years   15 years   15 years   12 years   13 years 

Allocation of the purchase price to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed has not been finalized for these acquisitions. Final determination of the
purchase price and fair values to be assigned may result in adjustments to the preliminary estimated values assigned at the date of acquisition.

Consolidated impact of acquisitions

The consolidated financial statements include the results of operations of the acquired businesses from their respective dates of acquisition. These
acquisitions increased the company’s earnings, but including related financing costs, did not materially impact earnings either on a per share or aggregate
basis.
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The following unaudited pro forma consolidated results of operations have been prepared as if the acquisitions of Compulit, Groupe MAG, Ancora, Group 1
and IMEX had occurred on January 1, 2004:

         
  Three Months Ended March 31,  
(Dollars in thousands)  2005  2004 
Total revenue  $ 1,321,288  $ 1,244,422 

The pro forma consolidated results do not purport to be indicative of actual results that would have occurred had the acquisitions been completed on
January 1, 2004, nor do they purport to be indicative of the results that will be obtained in the future. The pro forma earning results of these acquisitions were
not material to earnings on either a per share or an aggregate basis.

During 2004, the company also completed several smaller acquisitions, including additional sites for its mail services operations and some of its
international dealerships. The company also acquired the hardware equipment services business of Standard Register Inc. at the end of 2004. The cost of
these acquisitions was in the aggregate less than $75 million. These acquisitions did not have a material impact on the company’s financial results either
individually or on an aggregate basis. These acquisitions are included in other investing activities in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Note 11:

Intangible assets are composed of the following:

                 
  March 31, 2005   December 31, 2004  
  Gross  Accumulated  Gross Carrying  Accumulated 
(Dollars in thousands)  Carrying Amount  Amortization  Amount  Amortization 
Customer relationships  $ 254,387  $ 37,714  $ 255,512  $ 33,168 
Mailing software and technology   112,207   23,385   111,876   20,730 
Trademarks and trade names   16,612   7,398   15,897   6,685 
Non-compete agreements   3,942   3,058   3,922   2,887 
  $ 387,148  $ 71,555  $ 387,207  $ 63,470 

Amortization expense for intangible assets was $8.0 million and $5.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Estimated
intangible assets amortization expense for 2005 and the next five years is as follows:

     
(Dollars in thousands)     
For the year ending 12/31/05  $ 32,400 
For the year ending 12/31/06  $ 31,600 
For the year ending 12/31/07  $ 29,800 
For the year ending 12/31/08  $ 29,000 
For the year ending 12/31/09  $ 27,900 
For the year ending 12/31/10  $ 26,900 

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by business segment for the three months ended March 31, 2005 are as follows:

                 
  Balance at  Acquired     Balance 
  January 1,  during the     March 31, 
(Dollars in thousands)  2005  period  Other  2005 
    Inside the U.S. — Mailing  $ 63,259  $ —  $ 2,826  $ 66,085 
                             — DMT   291,686   —   1,047   292,733 
    Outside the United States   423,536   —   (344)   423,192 
Global Mailstream Solutions   778,481   —   3,529   782,010 
                 
    Global Management Services   427,574   18,286   616   446,476 
    Mail Services   205,326   —   3,867   209,193 
Global Business Services   632,900   18,286   4,483   655,669 
                 
Capital Services   —   —   —   — 
Total  $1,411,381  $ 18,286  $ 8,012  $1,437,679 

“Other” includes post closing acquisition and foreign currency translation adjustments.
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Note 12:

Defined Benefit Pension Plans

The components of net periodic benefit cost for defined benefit pension plans for the three months ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

                 
  United States   Foreign  
  Three Months Ended March 31,   Three Months Ended March 31,  
(Dollars in thousands)  2005  2004  2005  2004 
Service cost  $ 8,536  $ 8,313  $ 2,614  $ 2,346 
Interest cost   22,845   22,193   5,443   5,240 
Expected return on plan assets   (32,090)   (31,776)   (6,821)   (6,284)
Amortization of transition cost   —   —   (146)   (134)
Amortization of prior service cost   (723)   (678)   141   138 
Amortization of net loss   6,157   2,947   2,629   1,618 
Net periodic benefit cost  $ 4,725  $ 999  $ 3,860  $ 2,924 

The company previously disclosed in its consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004 that it expects to contribute up to
$5 million and up to $10 million, respectively, to its U.S. and foreign pension plans during 2005. At March 31, 2005, $0.9 million and $1.7 million of
contributions have been made to the U.S. and foreign pension plans, respectively.

Nonpension Postretirement Benefit Plans

The components of net periodic benefit cost for nonpension postretirement benefit plans for the three months ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

         
  Three Months Ended March 31,  
(Dollars in thousands)  2005  2004 
Service cost  $ 881  $ 1,060 
Interest cost   4,311   4,884 
Amortization of prior service cost   (533)   (2,049)
Amortization of net loss   1,208   1,787 
Net periodic benefit cost  $ 5,867  $ 5,682 

The company previously disclosed in its consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004 that it expects to contribute $36 million,
which represents its expected benefit payments, to its postretirement benefits plans during 2005. At March 31, 2005, $8.5 million of contributions have been
made.

Note 13:

In connection with its Capital Services programs, the company has sold net finance receivables and in selective cases entered into guarantee contracts with
varying amounts of recourse in privately placed transactions with unrelated third-party investors. The uncollected principal balance of receivables sold and
guarantee contracts totaled $95 million and $99 million at March 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, respectively. In accordance with GAAP, the company
does not record these amounts as liabilities in its Consolidated Balance Sheets. The company’s maximum risk of loss on these net financing receivables and
guarantee contracts arises from the possible non-performance of lessees to meet the terms of their contracts and from changes in the value of the underlying
equipment. These contracts are secured by the underlying equipment value and supported by the creditworthiness of its customers. At March 31, 2005 and
December 31, 2004, the underlying equipment value exceeded the sum of the uncollected principal balance of receivables sold and the guarantee contracts.
As part of the company’s review of its risk exposure, the company believes it has made adequate provision for sold receivables and guarantee contracts that
may not be collectible.

The company provides product warranties in conjunction with certain product sales, generally for a period of 90 days from the date of installation. The
company’s product warranty liability reflects management’s best estimate of probable liability under its product warranties based on historical claims
experience, which has not been significant, and other currently available evidence. Accordingly, the company’s product warranty liability at March 31, 2005
and December 31, 2004, respectively, was not material.
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Note 14:

In December 2003, the company received accepted closing agreements with the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) showing income tax adjustments for the 1992
to 1994 tax years. The total additional tax for these years is approximately $5 million. Additional tax due for 1995 and future tax years in connection with
these closing agreements will not materially affect the company’s future results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

In addition to the accepted tax adjustments discussed above, a proposed adjustment related to the 1994 tax year remains in dispute, which could result in
additional tax of approximately $4 million for that year. The IRS also is proposing similar adjustments for the 1995 and future tax years relating to this
deficiency. These adjustments could result in additional tax expense in the range of $0 to $40 million. The company believes that it has meritorious defenses
to these proposed adjustments. The IRS may propose penalties on the company with respect to all periods that have been examined.

The IRS is in the process of completing its examination of the company’s tax returns for the 1995 to 2000 tax years and has issued notices of proposed
adjustment with respect to Capital Services leasing transactions entered into in 1997 through 2000. Specifically, the IRS is proposing to disallow certain
expenses claimed as deductions on the 1997 through 2000 tax returns. The company anticipates receiving similar notices for other leasing transactions
entered into during the audit period. The IRS will likely make similar claims for years subsequent to 2000 in future audits with respect to these transactions.
The IRS may propose penalties on the company with respect to all periods that have been examined.

In addition, in 2005, the Canada Revenue Agency (CRA) issued an adjustment for the 1996 to 1999 tax years, relating to intercompany loan transactions.
The company paid approximately $24 million in the first quarter of 2005 and plans to protest the adjustment.

The company vigorously disagrees with the proposed adjustments and intends to aggressively contest these matters through applicable IRS, CRA and
judicial procedures, as appropriate. The company has provided for its best estimate of the probable tax liability for these matters and believes that its accruals
for tax liabilities are adequate for all open years. However, if the taxing authority prevails, an unfavorable resolution of these matters could have a material
effect on the company’s results of operations.

In April 2005, the company posted a $200 million tax bond with the IRS to mitigate IRS interest risk.

At any time, the company’s provision for taxes could be affected by changes in tax law and interpretations by governments or courts.

Note 15:

In December 2004, the company’s Board of Directors approved a plan to pursue a sponsored spin-off of its Capital Services external financing business. The
new entity will be an independent publicly traded company consisting of most of the assets in the Capital Services segment, including assets related to
Imagistics International, Inc. On March 31, 2005, Pitney Bowes Credit Corporation (Spinco), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the company, entered into a
Subscription Agreement with Cerberus Capital Management, L.P. through its investment vehicle, JCC Management LLC (Investor). Under the terms of the
Subscription Agreement, the Investor is expected to invest in excess of $100 million for common and preferred stock representing up to 19.9% of the voting
interest and up to 48% economic interest in the spun-off entity. The Subscription Agreement anticipates that Pitney Bowes stockholders will receive 80.1%
of the common stock of the new public company in a tax-free distribution. At the time of the spin-off, Spinco will become a separate entity from the company
and become a publicly traded company.

The transaction is not subject to a vote of Pitney Bowes shareholders. The transaction is expected to be completed by the end of 2005, subject to a favorable
ruling from the IRS that the transaction will be tax-free, regulatory review and other customary conditions.

The company estimates that it will incur after-tax transaction costs of about $20 million to $35 million in connection with the spin-off. The majority of these
costs will be incurred at the time of the spin-off. These costs are composed primarily of professional fees, taxes on asset transfers and lease contract
termination fees.

In addition, in accordance with current accounting guidelines, at the time of spin-off the company will be required to compare the book and fair market
values of the assets and liabilities spun-off and record any resulting deficit as a charge in discontinued operations. The company currently estimates this
potential non-cash after-tax charge to be in the range of $150 million to $250 million. The ultimate amount of this charge, if any, will be determined by the
fair market value of Spinco at the time of spin-off and the resolution of related tax liabilities.

The Subscription Agreement is attached as Exhibit 10 to this Form 10-Q.
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Item 2:  Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial

 Condition and Results of Operations

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (MD&A) contains statements that are forward-looking. These
statements are based on current expectations and assumptions that are subject to risks and uncertainties. Actual results could differ materially because of
factors discussed in Forward-Looking Statements and elsewhere in this report.

Overview

We achieved a strong start to 2005, as the momentum established by our strong fourth quarter 2004 performance continued this quarter. We are realizing the
benefits of our previous actions to strengthen revenue growth, expand into new market spaces and enhance our operating efficiency.

Revenue grew approximately 12% in the first quarter of 2005 to $1.32 billion compared with the first quarter of 2004 driven by ongoing strong worldwide
demand for our mailing systems, mail services, small business solutions and supplies for our broader base of digital products; acquisitions, which contributed
6%; and the favorable impact of foreign currency, which contributed 1%.

Net income increased 18% in the first quarter of 2005 to $149.6 million compared with the first quarter of 2004. Diluted earnings per share increased to 64
cents in the first quarter of 2005 from 54 cents in the first quarter of 2004. Net income for the first quarter of 2005 was increased by a net after-tax gain from
restructuring activity of $9 million or 4 cents per diluted share and reduced by a $6 million after-tax charitable contribution or 3 cents per diluted share to the
Pitney Bowes Literacy and Education Fund and the Pitney Bowes Involvement Fund. Net income for the first quarter of 2004, was reduced by after-tax
restructuring charges of $10 million or 4 cents per diluted share.

During the quarter we signed a definitive agreement with a third party investor for a sponsored spin-off of most of the assets in our Capital Services segment.
These assets contributed approximately 3 cents per diluted share in the first quarter of 2005, about 1 cent per diluted share less than the prior year.

See Results of Operations – first quarter of 2005 vs. first quarter of 2004 for a more detailed discussion of our results of operations.

Outlook

We anticipate that we will experience continued strength in our financial results in 2005. We expect that revenue growth will be driven by small business
solutions, mail services, international, supplies, payments solutions and software offerings. In addition, we expect to continue our market expansion and
derive further operating synergies from our recent acquisitions. We expect to experience a continuation in the ongoing changing mix of our product line,
where a greater percentage of revenue is coming from diversified revenue streams associated with fully featured smaller systems and less from larger system
sales. Foreign currency translation, while uncertain, is expected to continue to benefit future comparisons.

As we have previously stated, we expect to record additional restructuring charges during the year in connection with the continued realignment and
streamlining of our worldwide infrastructure. We remain focused on disciplined expense control initiatives and will continue to allocate capital to optimize
our returns.

We expect our effective tax rate to be more in line with the first quarter of 2005, and while it is always difficult to predict future economic and interest trends,
we expect interest and pension costs will continue to increase. We will also continue to be constrained by the year-over-year decline in earnings from our
Capital Services business in anticipation of our previously announced plans to spin-off the majority of the assets in this segment.
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Results of Operations – first quarter of 2005 vs. first quarter of 2004

Business segment results

In light of our recent organizational realignment, we revised our segments this quarter to reflect our product-based businesses separately from our service-
based businesses. The following table shows revenue and earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) by segment for the three months ended March 31, 2005
and 2004:

                         
  Revenue   EBIT  
  Three months ended March 31,   Three months ended March 31,  
(Dollars in millions)  2005  2004  % change  2005  2004  % change 
Inside the U.S. -Mailing  $ 553  $ 534   3% $ 218  $ 207   5%

-DMT   91   64   43%  4   3   49%
Outside the United States   291   241   21%  52   38   37%
Global Mailstream Solutions   935   839   11%  274   248   10%
                         
Global Management Services   268   267   —%  15   12   20%
Mail Services   81   36   125%  3   4   (3%)
Global Business Services   349   303   15%  18   16   15%
                         
Capital Services   34   30   13%  19   21   (8%)
Total  $ 1,318  $ 1,172   12% $ 311  $ 285   9%

During the first quarter of 2005, Global Mailstream Solutions revenue increased 11% and EBIT increased 10%. Inside the U.S., the quarter’s performance
included the contribution from the integration of Group 1 Software, Inc. (Group 1), which was acquired in July 2004. Revenue growth was also favorably
impacted by continued demand for networked digital mailing systems, especially from small and mid-sized customers, and from supplies for digital products.
Outside of the U.S., revenue grew at a double-digit rate driven by strong revenue growth in Europe, the fourth quarter 2004 acquisition of Groupe MAG and
the favorable impact of foreign currency. These results reflect strong demand for digital mailing systems, which are continuing to be introduced outside of the
U.S., good growth in mailing equipment placements with small businesses, and increased supplies for digital products.

During the first quarter of 2005, revenue and EBIT grew 15% in Global Business Services. Our management services operation reported flat revenue and
double-digit EBIT growth for the quarter consistent with the ongoing focus of higher value service offerings, productivity and efficiency improvements. We
also advanced our vertical strategy during the quarter with the formation of Pitney Bowes Legal Solutions and the addition of litigation support services
through the acquisition of Compulit, Inc. (Compulit) at the end of the quarter. Mail services revenue more than doubled compared with the prior year,
resulting from continued growth in its customer base and new service offerings. EBIT was comparable to the prior year because of our investments to expand
our presort and international mail network and integration of recently acquired sites.

During the first quarter of 2005, revenue increased 13% and EBIT decreased 8% in the Capital Services segment. The quarter’s year-over-year revenue
increase was due primarily to the consolidation of PBG Capital Partners LLC (PBG) which was reported on an equity basis through March 31, 2004.

Revenue by source

The following table shows revenue by source for the three months ended March 31, 2005 and 2004:

             
  Three Months Ended March 31,  
(Dollars in thousands)  2005  2004  % change 
Sales  $ 381,427  $ 331,360   15%
Rentals   201,641   201,438   —%
Financing   157,275   148,229   6%
Support services   194,934   158,413   23%
Business services   349,103   302,791   15%
Capital Services   33,408   29,691   13%
Total revenue  $1,317,788  $1,171,922   12%

Sales revenue increased 15% due to strong growth in sales of international and small business mailing equipment, and related supplies; the acquisition of
Group 1, which contributed 6%; and the favorable impact of foreign currency, which contributed 2%.

Rentals revenue was flat compared with the prior year consistent with our expectations.
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Financing revenue increased 6% due primarily to growth in our worldwide equipment leasing volumes and the favorable impact of foreign currency, which
contributed 1%.

Support services revenue increased 23% due primarily to the acquisitions of Group 1 and Groupe MAG, which contributed 18%; the favorable impact of
foreign currency, which contributed 2%; a larger population of international equipment maintenance agreements; and revenue from the hardware equipment
services contracts of Standard Register Inc.

Business services revenue increased 15% due primarily to strong growth at our existing mail services sites and the acquisitions of International Mail Express,
Inc. (IMEX) and Ancora Capital & Management Group LLC (Ancora), which contributed 7%, and the addition of two new sites in our IMEX business.

Capital Services revenue increased 13% due primarily to the consolidation of PBG which was reported on an equity basis through March 31, 2004.

Costs and expenses

Cost of sales decreased to 44.0% of related revenues in the first quarter of 2005 compared with 48.1% in the first quarter of 2004 primarily due to the increase
in mix of higher margin software and supplies revenue and benefits from our transition to outsourcing of parts for digital equipment.

Cost of rentals was 21.0% of related revenues in the first quarter of 2005 compared with 20.7% in the first quarter of 2004.

Cost of support services decreased to 51.4% of related revenues in the first quarter of 2005 compared with 54.1% in the first quarter of 2004 primarily due to
higher margin software support services revenue at Group 1, partially offset by the increase in mix of lower margin international support services revenue.

Cost of business services increased to 82.7% of related revenues in the first quarter of 2005 compared with 81.2% in the first quarter of 2004 primarily due to
costs associated with our expansion into new sites in our mail services operations.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased to 31.0% of revenue in the first quarter of 2005 compared with 30.8% in the first quarter of 2004
primarily due to the impact of strategic transactions, partially offset by our emphasis on controlling operating expenses and benefits from our transformation
programs.

Research and development expenses increased 15% to $41.5 million in the first quarter of 2005 compared with $36.0 million in the first quarter of 2004
primarily due to research and development at Group 1. The increase also reflects our continued investment in developing new technologies and enhancing
features for all our products.

Net interest expense increased to $46.8 million in the first quarter of 2005 from $41.4 million in the first quarter of 2004. The increase was due to higher
average interest rates and borrowings during the first quarter of 2005 compared with the first quarter of 2004.

The effective tax rate for the first quarter of 2005 was 34.3% compared with 31.9% in the first quarter of 2004. The effective tax rates for the first quarter of
2005 and 2004 included tax (charges) benefits of (.3%) and .3%, respectively, from restructuring initiatives. The increase in the 2005 effective tax rate also
reflects the impact of our strategy to cease originating large-ticket, structured, third party financing of non-core assets.

Charitable Contribution

During the first quarter of 2005, we contributed $10 million ($6 million after-tax) to the Pitney Bowes Literacy and Education Fund and the Pitney Bowes
Involvement Fund.

Restructuring

In connection with our previously announced restructuring initiatives, we recorded a pre-tax restructuring (gain) charge of ($15.8) million and $15.0 million
for the three months ended March 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. We expect these restructuring initiatives to be substantially completed by the end of
2005 and currently estimate 2005 pre-tax restructuring charges to be in the range of $20 million to $40 million, net of the $30 million gain on the sale of our
main plant manufacturing facility. As we continue to finalize our 2005 restructuring plans, the ultimate amount and timing of the restructuring charges may
differ from our current estimates. The charges related to these restructuring initiatives will be recorded as the various initiatives take effect.
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The cash outflows related to restructuring charges will be funded primarily by cash from operating activities. The restructuring initiatives are expected to
continue to increase our operating efficiency and effectiveness in 2005 and beyond while enhancing growth, primarily as a result of reduced personnel
related expenses. See Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements for our accounting policy related to restructuring charges.

The pre-tax restructuring (gain) charges are composed of:

         
  Three Months Ended March 31,  
(Dollars in millions)  2005  2004 
Severance and benefit costs  $ 13.1  $ 12.8 
Asset impairments   0.7   1.3 
Other exit costs   0.6   0.9 
Gain on sale of main plant   (30.2)   — 
  $ (15.8)  $ 15.0 

All restructuring charges, except for the asset impairments, will result in cash outflows. The severance and benefit costs relate to a reduction in workforce of
approximately 2,500 employees worldwide from the inception of this plan through March 31, 2005 and expected future workforce reductions of
approximately 800 employees. The workforce reductions relate to actions across several of our businesses resulting from infrastructure and process
improvements and our continuing efforts to streamline operations, and include managerial, professional, clerical and technical roles. Approximately 60% of
the workforce reductions are in the U.S. The majority of the international workforce reductions are in Europe and Canada. Asset impairments for the three
months ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 relate primarily to the write-down of property, plant and equipment resulting from the closure or streamlining of
certain facilities and systems. Other exit costs relate primarily to lease termination costs, non-cancelable lease payments, consolidation of excess facilities
and other costs associated with exiting business activities. During the three months ended March 31, 2005, we recorded a pre-tax gain of $30 million related
to the sale of our main plant manufacturing facility in Connecticut.

Accrued restructuring charges at March 31, 2005 are composed of the following:

                     
  Balance at      Cash      Ending balance 
  January 1,  Restructuring  (payments)  Non-cash  at March 31, 
(Dollars in millions)  2005  charges (gain)  receipts  charges  2005 
Severance and benefit costs  $ 48.4  $ 13.1  $ (19.3)  $ —  $ 42.2 
Asset impairments   —   0.7   —   (0.7)   — 
Other exit costs   3.1   0.6   (2.0)   —   1.7 
Gain on sale of main plant   —   (30.2)   30.2   —   — 
  $ 51.5  $ (15.8)  $ 8.9  $ (0.7)  $ 43.9 

Acquisitions

On March 24, 2005, we acquired Compulit for a net purchase price of $25 million in cash. Compulit is a leading provider of litigation support services to law
firms and corporate clients. This acquisition expands our ability to provide a broader range of high value services for our legal vertical.

In December 2004, we acquired Groupe MAG for a net purchase price of $43 million in cash. Groupe MAG is a distributor of production mail equipment,
software and services in France, Belgium and Luxembourg.

In November 2004, we acquired a substantial portion of the assets of Ancora for a net purchase price of $37 million in cash. Ancora is a provider of first class,
standard letter and international mail processing and presort services with five operations in southern California, Pennsylvania and Maryland.

In July 2004, we acquired Group 1 for a net purchase price of $329 million in cash. Group 1 is an industry leader in software that enhances mailing efficiency,
data quality and customer communications.

In May 2004, we acquired substantially all of the assets of IMEX for a net purchase price of $30 million in cash. IMEX consolidates letters and flat-sized mail
headed to international addresses to reduce postage costs and expedite delivery.

18



Table of Contents

We accounted for these acquisitions using the purchase method of accounting and accordingly, the operating results of these acquisitions have been
included in our consolidated financial statements since the date of acquisition. These acquisitions did not materially impact net income for the three months
ended March 31, 2005 or 2004, respectively.

During 2004, we also completed several smaller acquisitions, including additional sites for our mail services operations and some of our international
dealerships. We also acquired the hardware equipment services business of Standard Register Inc. at the end of 2004. The cost of these acquisitions was in the
aggregate less than $75 million. These acquisitions did not have a material impact on our financial results either individually or on an aggregate basis. These
acquisitions are included in other investing activities in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our ratio of current assets to current liabilities increased to .94 to 1 at March 31, 2005 compared with .82 to 1 at December 31, 2004. The increase in this ratio
was due primarily to the exchange of short-term debt for long-term debt during the three months ended March 31, 2005.

The ratio of total debt to total debt and stockholders’ equity was 74.8% at March 31, 2005 compared with 75.5% at December 31, 2004. Including the
preferred stockholders’ equity in a subsidiary company as debt, the ratio of total debt to total debt and stockholders’ equity was 76.2% at March 31, 2005
compared with 76.9% at December 31, 2004. The decrease in this ratio was driven primarily by net income and a decrease in debt, offset by stock repurchases
and the payment of dividends.

First Quarter 2005 Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities consisted primarily of net income adjusted for non-cash items and changes in operating assets and liabilities. The
increase in our deferred taxes and income taxes payable balances contributed $27 million to cash from operations, resulting from continued tax benefits from
our internal financing and Capital Services leasing activities. The increase in deferred taxes in the first quarter of 2005 was lower than the prior year due to a
$24 million Canadian tax payment (see Other Regulatory Matters). The decrease in our internal finance receivables balances increased cash from operations
by $11 million driven by the seasonal decline in finance receivable balances. Other operating assets and liabilities reduced our cash from operations by
$43 million primarily due to the timing of accounts payable and accrued liabilities payments.

Net cash used in investing activities consisted primarily of capital expenditures for digital meters and acquisitions, partially offset by cash generated from
Capital Services asset sales and net proceeds from the sale of the main plant.

Net cash used in financing activities consisted primarily of dividends paid to stockholders, stock repurchases and net debt payments, partially offset by
proceeds from issuance of stock.

First Quarter 2004 Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities consisted primarily of net income adjusted for non-cash items and changes in operating assets and liabilities. The
increase in our deferred taxes and income taxes payable balances contributed $59 million to cash from operations, resulting from continued tax benefits from
our internal financing and Capital Services leasing activities. The decrease in our internal finance receivables balances increased cash from operations by $33
million. Other operating assets and liabilities reduced our cash from operations by $11 million primarily due to the timing of accounts payable and accrued
liabilities payments.

Net cash used in investing activities consisted primarily of capital expenditures and other investing activities, partially offset by cash generated from Capital
Services asset sales.

Net cash used in financing activities consisted primarily of dividends paid to stockholders, stock repurchases and net debt payments, partially offset by
proceeds from issuance of stock.

Financings and Capitalization

At March 31, 2005, $2.1 billion remained available under the shelf registration statement filed in February 2005 with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC), permitting issuances of up to $2.5 billion in debt securities, preferred stock, preference stock, common stock, purchase contracts,
depositary shares, warrants and units. In addition, $5.8 million remained available under the shelf registration statement filed in October 2001 with the SEC,
permitting issuances of up to $2 billion in debt securities, preferred stock and depositary shares.

In March 2005, we issued $400 million of unsecured fixed rate notes maturing in March 2015. These notes bear interest at an annual rate of 5.0% and pay
interest semi-annually beginning September 2005. The proceeds from these notes were used for general corporate purposes, including the repayment of
commercial paper, financing of acquisitions and the repurchase of company stock.
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We believe our financing needs in the short and long-term can be met with cash generated internally, money from existing credit agreements, debt issued
under new and existing shelf registration statements and our existing commercial paper programs. In addition, we maintain a back-up credit facility for our
commercial paper program.

Capital Expenditures

In the first quarter of 2005, capital expenditures included $37.0 million in net additions to property, plant and equipment and $42.6 million in net additions
to rental equipment and related inventories compared with $43.5 million and $31.0 million, respectively, in the same period in 2004. The addition of rental
equipment relates primarily to postage meters and increased over the prior year due to higher placements of our digital meters during the three months ended
March 31, 2005.

We expect capital expenditures for the remainder of 2005 to be approximately the same as the prior year. These investments reflect our customers’ migration
to digital meters.

Capital Services

Capital Services strategy

In December 2004, our Board of Directors approved a plan to pursue a sponsored spin-off of our Capital Services external financing business. The new entity
will be an independent publicly traded company consisting of most of the assets in our Capital Services segment, including assets related to Imagistics
International, Inc. On March 31, 2005, Pitney Bowes Credit Corporation (Spinco), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the company, entered into a Subscription
Agreement with Cerberus Capital Management, L.P. through its investment vehicle, JCC Management LLC (Investor). Under the terms of the Subscription
Agreement, the Investor is expected to invest in excess of $100 million for common and preferred stock representing up to 19.9% of the voting interest and
up to 48% economic interest in the spun-off entity. The Subscription Agreement anticipates that Pitney Bowes stockholders will receive 80.1% of the
common stock of the new public company in a tax-free distribution. At the time of the spin-off, Spinco will become a separate entity from the company and
become a publicly traded company.

The transaction is not subject to a vote of Pitney Bowes shareholders. The transaction is expected to be completed by the end of 2005, subject to a favorable
ruling from the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) that the transaction will be tax-free, regulatory review and other customary conditions.

We estimate that we will incur after-tax transaction costs of about $20 million to $35 million in connection with the spin-off. The majority of these costs will
be incurred at the time of the spin-off. These costs are composed primarily of professional fees, taxes on asset transfers and lease contract termination fees.

In addition, in accordance with current accounting guidelines, at the time of spin-off we will be required to compare the book and fair market values of the
assets and liabilities spun-off and record any resulting deficit as a charge in discontinued operations. We currently estimate this potential non-cash after-tax
charge to be in the range of $150 million to $250 million. The ultimate amount of this charge, if any, will be determined by the fair market value of Spinco at
the time of spin-off and the resolution of related tax liabilities.

The Subscription Agreement is attached as Exhibit 10 to this Form 10-Q.

Capital Services portfolio

Our investment in Capital Services lease related assets included in our Consolidated Balance Sheets is composed of the following:

         
  March 31,  December 31, 
(Dollars in millions)  2005  2004 
Leveraged leases  $ 1,551  $ 1,585 
Finance receivables   579   633 
Rental equipment   54   54 
Total  $ 2,184  $ 2,272 
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The investment in leveraged leases included in our Consolidated Balance Sheets is diversified across the following types of assets:

         
  March 31,  December 31, 
(Dollars in millions)  2005  2004 
Locomotives and rail cars  $ 378  $ 382 
Postal equipment   359   356 
Commercial real estate   248   242 
Commercial aircraft   235   275 
Telecommunications   141   141 
Rail and bus   133   133 
Shipping and handling   57   56 
Total leveraged leases  $ 1,551  $ 1,585 

At March 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, our leveraged lease investment in commercial real estate facilities included approximately $92 million, for both
periods, related to leases of corporate facilities to four U.S. telecommunication entities, of which $77 million and $76 million, respectively, is with lessees
that are highly rated. Additionally, our leveraged lease investment in telecommunications equipment represents leases to three highly rated international
telecommunication entities. At March 31, 2005, substantially all of this portfolio is further secured by equity defeasance accounts or other third party credit
arrangements.

At March 31, 2005, approximately 53% of our total leveraged lease portfolio is further secured by equity defeasance accounts or other third party credit
arrangements. In addition, at March 31, 2005, approximately 20% of the remaining leveraged lease portfolio represents leases to highly rated government
related organizations that have guarantees or supplemental credit enhancements upon the occurrence of certain events.

Finance receivables are composed of the following:

         
(Dollars in millions)  March 31,  December 31, 
  2005  2004 
Large ticket single investor leases  $ 306  $ 350 
Imagistics lease portfolio   273   283 
Total  $ 579  $ 633 

Investment in commercial passenger and cargo aircraft leasing transactions

At March 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, our net investment in commercial passenger and cargo aircraft leasing transactions, net of related debt and
minority interest, was $235 million and $276 million, respectively, which is composed of transactions with U.S. airlines of $23 million and $24 million,
respectively, and foreign airlines of $212 million and $252 million, respectively. Our net investment in commercial passenger and cargo aircraft leasing
portfolio is composed of investments in leveraged lease transactions, direct financing lease transactions and a portion of our investment in PBG. Risk of loss
under these transactions is primarily related to: (1) the inability of the airline to make underlying lease payments; (2) our inability to generate sufficient cash
flows either through the sale of the aircraft or secondary lease transactions to recover our net investment; and/or (3) in the case of the leveraged lease
portfolio, the default of an equity defeasance or other third party credit arrangements. At March 31, 2005, approximately 44% of our remaining net
investment in commercial passenger and cargo aircraft leasing investments was further secured by approximately $102 million of equity defeasance accounts
or third party credit arrangements.

During the first quarter of 2005, Japan Airlines exercised its early buy-out option. We received approximately $47 million from this transaction, reflecting the
net investment at that time.

Beginning January 1, 2005, we resumed recognition of financing income on certain aircraft leases held through our investment in PBG.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Interpretation (FIN) No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.”
FIN No. 46 requires a variable interest entity to be consolidated by a company if that company is subject to a majority of the risk of loss from the variable
interest entity’s activities or is entitled to receive a majority of the entity’s residual returns or both. Our ownership of the equity of PBG qualifies as a variable
interest entity under FIN No. 46. PBG was formed with GATX Corporation in 1997 for the purpose of financing and managing certain leasing related assets.
We adopted the provisions of FIN No. 46 effective March 31, 2004 and consolidated the assets and liabilities of PBG on March 31, 2004. Prior to March 31,
2004, we accounted for PBG under the equity method of accounting. PBG’s minority interest of $43 million and $41 million, respectively, is included in
other noncurrent liabilities in the Consolidated
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Balance Sheets at March 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004. The consolidation of PBG did not have a material impact on our results of operations or cash
flows.

In May 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) No. 106-2, “Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug,
Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003.” The FSP provides accounting guidance for the effects of the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and
Modernization Act of 2003 (the “Act”) to a sponsor of a postretirement health care plan that has concluded that prescription drug benefits available under the
plan are actuarially equivalent and thus qualify for the subsidy under the Act. The provisions of FSP No. 106-2 were effective July 1, 2004. We concluded
that the prescription drug benefits provided under our nonpension postretirement benefit plans are actuarially equivalent to the prescription drug benefits
offered under Medicare Part D. The provisions of FSP No. 106-2 were adopted on a prospective basis on July 1, 2004.

In November 2004, Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (FAS) No. 151, “Inventory Costs,” was issued. FAS No. 151 amends and clarifies the
accounting for abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs and wasted material (spoilage). The provisions of FAS No. 151 are effective
for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. We are currently evaluating the provisions of FAS No. 151.

In December 2004, the FASB issued FSP No. 109-2, “Accounting and Disclosure Guidance for the Foreign Earnings Repatriation Provision within the
American Jobs Creation Act of 2004.” The FSP provides guidance under FAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” with respect to recording the
potential impact of the repatriation provisions of the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the “Jobs Act”) on enterprises’ income tax expense and deferred
tax liability. The Jobs Act was enacted on October 22, 2004. FSP No. 109-2 states that companies are allowed time beyond the financial reporting period of
enactment to evaluate the effect of the Jobs Act on its plan for reinvestment or repatriation of foreign earnings for purposes of applying FAS No. 109. We are
currently evaluating the effects of the repatriation provision and do not expect to complete this evaluation until after Congress or the Treasury Department
provides clarification on key elements of the repatriation provision. We do not expect the adoption of these provisions to have a material impact on our
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In April 2005, the SEC approved a new rule delaying the effective date of FAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment,” to January 1, 2006. In light of
this delay, we will adopt the provisions of FAS No. 123R when it becomes effective. We are currently evaluating the impact of adopting FAS No. 123R,
which was issued in December 2004. FAS No. 123R supercedes Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees.” The revised statement addresses the accounting for share-based payment transactions with employees and other third parties, eliminates the
ability to account for share-based transactions using APB No. 25 and requires that the compensation costs relating to such transactions be recognized in the
consolidated financial statements. FAS No. 123R requires additional disclosures relating to the income tax and cash flow effects resulting from share-based
payments. See Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Regulatory Matters

There have been no significant changes to the regulatory matters disclosed in our 2004 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Other Regulatory Matters

In December 2003, we received accepted closing agreements with the IRS showing income tax adjustments for the 1992 to 1994 tax years. The total
additional tax for these years is approximately $5 million. Additional tax due for 1995 and future tax years in connection with these closing agreements will
not materially affect our future results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

In addition to the accepted income tax adjustments discussed above, a proposed adjustment related to the 1994 tax year remains in dispute, which could
result in additional tax of approximately $4 million for that year. The IRS also is proposing similar adjustments for the 1995 and future tax years relating to
this deficiency. These adjustments could result in additional tax expense in the range of $0 to $40 million. We believe that we have meritorious defenses to
these proposed adjustments. The IRS may propose penalties on us with respect to all periods that have been examined.

The IRS is in the process of completing its examination of our tax returns for the 1995 to 2000 tax years and has issued notices of proposed adjustment with
respect to Capital Services leasing transactions entered into in 1997 through 2000. Specifically, the IRS is proposing to disallow certain expenses claimed as
deductions on the 1997 through 2000 tax returns. We anticipate receiving similar notices for other leasing transactions entered into during the audit period.
The IRS will likely make similar claims for years subsequent to 2000 in future audits with respect to these transactions. The IRS may propose penalties on us
with respect to all periods that have been examined.
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In addition, in 2005, the Canada Revenue Agency (CRA) issued an adjustment for the 1996 to 1999 tax years, relating to intercompany loan transactions. We
paid approximately $24 million in the first quarter of 2005 and plan to protest the adjustment.

We vigorously disagree with the proposed adjustments and intend to aggressively contest these matters through applicable IRS, CRA and judicial
procedures, as appropriate. We have provided for our best estimate of the probable tax liability for these matters and believe that our accruals for tax
liabilities are adequate for all open years. However, if the taxing authority prevails, an unfavorable resolution of these matters could have a material effect on
our results of operations.

In April 2005, we posted a $200 million tax bond with the IRS to mitigate IRS interest risk.

At any time, our provision for taxes could be affected by changes in tax law and interpretations by governments or courts.

Forward-Looking Statements

We want to caution readers that any forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 in this Form 10-Q, other reports or press releases or made by our management involve risks and uncertainties which may
change based on various important factors. We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of
new information, future events or otherwise. These forward-looking statements are those which talk about the company’s or management’s current
expectations as to the future and include, but are not limited to, statements about the amounts, timing and results of possible restructuring charges and future
earnings. Words such as “estimate,” “project,” “plan,” “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” and similar expressions may identify such forward-looking
statements. Some of the factors which could cause future financial performance to differ materially from the expectations as expressed in any forward-looking
statement made by us or on our behalf include:

 •  changes in international or national political conditions, including any terrorist attacks
 
 •  negative developments in economic conditions, including adverse impacts on customer demand
 
 •  changes in postal regulations
 
 •  timely development and acceptance of new products
 
 •  success in gaining product approval in new markets where regulatory approval is required
 
 •  successful entry into new markets
 
 •  mailers’ utilization of alternative means of communication or competitors’ products
 
 •  the company’s success at managing customer credit risk, including risks associated with commercial passenger and cargo aircraft leasing transactions
 
 •  the company’s success at managing costs associated with its strategy of outsourcing functions and operations not central to its business
 
 •  changes in interest rates
 
 •  foreign currency fluctuations
 
 •  cost, timing and execution of the restructuring plan, including any potential asset impairments
 
 •  regulatory approvals and satisfaction of other conditions to consummation of any acquisitions and integration of recent acquisitions
 
 •  impact on mail volume resulting from current concerns over the use of the mail for transmitting harmful biological agents
 
 •  third-party suppliers’ ability to provide product components
 
 •  negative income tax adjustments for prior audit years and changes in tax laws or regulations
 
 •  terms and timing of actions to reduce exposures and disposal of assets in our Capital Services segment, including the anticipated plan to spin-off the

majority of the assets in this segment
 
 •  continuing developments in the U.S. and foreign airline industry
 
 •  changes in pension and retiree medical costs.
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Item 3: Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

There were no material changes to the disclosures made in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 regarding this matter.

Item 4: Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures are designed to reasonably assure that information required to be disclosed in reports filed under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures are also
designed to reasonably assure that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and
Chief Financial Officer (CFO), as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Under the direction of our CEO and CFO, we evaluated our disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting. The CEO and
CFO concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of March 31, 2005. In addition, no change in internal control over financial
reporting occurred during the quarter ended March 31, 2005, that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, such internal control
over financial reporting. It should be noted that any system of controls is based in part upon certain assumptions designed to obtain reasonable (and not
absolute) assurance as to its effectiveness, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals. Notwithstanding this
caution, the disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance of achieving their stated objectives, and the CEO and CFO have
concluded that the disclosure controls and procedures are effective at that reasonable assurance level.

Part II — Other Information

Item 1: Legal Proceedings

There were no material changes to the legal proceedings disclosures made in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004
regarding this matter.

Item 2: Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

Share Repurchases

We repurchase shares of our common stock under a systematic program to manage the dilution created by shares issued under employee stock plans and for
other purposes. This program authorizes repurchases in the open market.

In May 2004, the Board of Directors of Pitney Bowes authorized $300 million for repurchases of outstanding shares of our common stock in the open market
during the subsequent 12 to 24 months. We repurchased 2.3 million shares in 2004 under this program for a total price of $100 million, leaving $200 million
remaining for future repurchases under this program. We repurchased 1.4 million shares during the three months ended March 31, 2005 under this program for
a total price of $64 million leaving $136 million remaining for future repurchases under this program.

Company Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table summarizes our share repurchase activity:

                 
          Total number of  Approximate dollar value 
  Total number  Average price  shares purchased as  of shares that may yet 
  of shares  paid per  part of a publicly  be purchased under the 
Period    purchased    share    announced plan    plan (in thousands) 
January 2005   —   —   —  $ 200,002 
February 2005   663,400  $ 46.50   663,400  $ 169,153 
March 2005   718,800  $ 45.74   718,800  $ 136,277 
   1,382,200       1,382,200     
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Item 6: Exhibits

   
Reg. S-K   
Exhibits  Description

(3)(a)
 

Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit (3a) to Form 10-K as filed with the Commission on
March 30, 1993.

   
(3)(a.1)

 
Certificate of Amendment to the Restated Certificate of Incorporation (as amended May 29, 1996). Incorporated by reference to Exhibit (a.1) to
Form 10-K as filed with the Commission on March 27, 1998.

   
(3)(b) By-laws, as amended. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit (3b) to Form 10-K as filed with the Commission on April 1, 1996.

   
(3)(c) By-laws, as amended. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit (3)(ii) to Form 10-Q as filed with the Commission on November 16, 1998.

   
(10) Subscription Agreement by and between Pitney Bowes Credit Corporation and JCC Management LLC dated as of March 31, 2005

   
(12) Computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges

   
(31.1) Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

   
(31.2) Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

   
(32.1) Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

   
(32.2) Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.

   
 PITNEY BOWES INC.

   
May 6, 2005   
   

 /s/ B. P. Nolop
 B. P. Nolop
 Executive Vice President and
 Chief Financial Officer
 (Principal Financial Officer)

   
 /s/ S. J. Green
 S. J. Green
 Vice President – Finance and
 Chief Accounting Officer
 (Principal Accounting Officer)
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                             SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

            This SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT (this "Agreement"), dated as of March
31, 2005, is made by and between Pitney Bowes Credit Corporation, a Delaware
corporation (the "Company"), and a wholly owned subsidiary of Pitney Bowes Inc.,
a Delaware corporation ("Pitney Bowes"), and JCC Management LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company (the "Purchaser"). Unless otherwise expressly set
forth in this Agreement, capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning
ascribed to such terms in Article I of this Agreement.

            WHEREAS, as a condition to the consummation of the Transactions
contemplated hereby, Pitney Bowes and the Company will enter into the
Distribution Agreements;

            WHEREAS, as a condition to the consummation of the Transactions and
in accordance with the Separation and Distribution Agreement and subject to the
terms and conditions thereof, prior to the PBGFS Distribution, the Company will
contribute to Pitney Bowes Global Financial Services Inc. (f/k/a PB Mailing
Financial Services Inc.), a Delaware corporation, and as of the date hereof a
Subsidiary of the Company ("PBGFS"), certain of its assets and transfer certain
of its liabilities, including, the Company's outstanding Indebtedness with
respect to the Indentures (collectively, the "PBGFS Contribution");

            WHEREAS, as a condition to the consummation of the Transactions and
in accordance with the Separation and Distribution Agreement and subject to the
terms and conditions thereof, after the PBGFS Contribution and prior to the
Company Contribution, the Company will obtain all of the Capital Stock of PBGFS
and thereafter will distribute all of the Capital Stock of PBGFS to Pitney Bowes
(the "PBGFS Distribution");

            WHEREAS, as a condition to the consummation of the Transactions and



in accordance with the Separation and Distribution Agreement, prior to the
Company Contribution, the Company shall consummate one or more transactions
taking the form of a high yield debt offering, a revolving credit facility,
securitization of certain financial assets of the Company or any other similar
transactions (the "Financing Transactions");

            WHEREAS, as a condition to the consummation of the Transactions and
in accordance with the Separation and Distribution Agreement and subject to the
terms and conditions thereof, after the PBGFS Distribution and Financing
Transactions and prior to the Distribution, Pitney Bowes will contribute to the
Company certain of its assets and transfer certain of its liabilities and Pitney
Bowes will assume or otherwise retire, cancel or forgive certain outstanding
intercompany Indebtedness of the Company and the Company will satisfy the
remaining outstanding intercompany Indebtedness that was not assumed or
otherwise retired, cancelled or forgiven by Pitney Bowes (collectively, the
"Company Contribution");

            WHEREAS, as a condition to the consummation of the Transactions and
in accordance with the Separation and Distribution Agreement and subject to the
terms and conditions thereof, after the Company Contribution, Pitney Bowes will
distribute all of the shares of the Common Stock held by Pitney Bowes (the
"Distribution") to the holders of record of

Pitney Bowes common stock as of the record date set forth in the Information
Statement or Prospectus, as applicable;

            WHEREAS, the Company desires, subject to the terms and conditions
set forth herein, to issue and sell to the Purchaser, immediately following the
consummation of the Company Contribution and prior to the Distribution, 114.2821
shares (as adjusted pursuant to Section 2.07) (the "Tranche I Stock") of Common
Stock of the Company, par value $0.001 per share (the "Common Stock");

            WHEREAS, the Company desires, subject to the terms and conditions
set forth herein, to issue and sell to the Purchaser, as soon as practicable
following the consummation of the Distribution, a number of shares (as adjusted
pursuant to Section 2.07) of the Company's Non-Voting Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock, par value $0.001 per share (the "Non-Voting Preferred Stock")
that are convertible into 310.3332 shares of Common Stock (in accordance with
the terms of the Certificate of Designation) (the "Tranche II Stock"); and

            WHEREAS, the Purchaser desires to purchase the Shares from the
Company and the Company desires to issue and sell the Shares to the Purchaser,
in each case subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein.

            NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound,
hereby agree as follows:

                                   ARTICLE I

                                  Definitions

            (a) As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the
following meanings:

            "Acquisition Proposal" means (a) any inquiry, proposal or offer
(whether or not in writing) from any Person or group directly or indirectly to
acquire or purchase, in a single transaction or series of transactions, by stock
acquisition, asset acquisition, merger, consolidation, liquidation, dissolution,
business combination, recapitalization or similar transaction (i) at least 10%
or more of the consolidated assets of the Company and its Subsidiaries (after
taking into effect the PBGFS Contribution, the PBGFS Distribution, the Financing
Transactions and the Company Contribution), (ii) at least 10% or more of any
class of equity or debt securities of the Company (after taking into effect the
PBGFS Contribution, the PBGFS Distribution, the Financing Transactions and the
Company Contribution) or (iii) at least 10% or more of any class of equity or
debt securities of one or more of the Company's Subsidiaries (after taking into
effect the PBGFS Contribution, the PBGFS Distribution, the Financing
Transactions and the Company Contribution) which in the aggregate constitute 10%
or more of the net revenues, net income or assets (including equity securities)
of the Company and its Subsidiaries (after taking into effect the PBGFS
Contribution, the PBGFS Distribution, the Financing Transactions and the Company
Contribution) or (b) any public announcement by or on behalf of the Company or
any of its Affiliates of a proposal, plan or intention to engage in any of
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the foregoing or enter into any agreement with respect to the foregoing, in each
case other than the Transactions or the Internal Restructuring.

            "Adjusted Net Worth Difference Amount" means in case the Net Worth
Difference Amount is adjusted pursuant to Section 2.06, an amount equal to the
Net Worth Difference Amount adjusted upward or downward as set forth in Section
2.06, and, in case the Net Worth Difference Amount is not adjusted pursuant to
Section 2.06, an amount equal to the New Worth Difference Amount.

            "Adjusted Projections" means the Projections adjusted solely to take
into account all adjustments to Projection Inputs with respect to the Specified
Leases in each taxable period within the Relevant Periods as prescribed by the
most recent Final Resolution of an SL Tax Matter and any prior Final Resolution
of an SL Tax Matter, regardless of whether a change to net taxable income is
actually reported on the Tax Return of any Party as a result of such adjustment.

            "Affiliate" means, with respect to any Person, any other Person
directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by, or under direct or indirect
common control with, such Person. For the purposes of this definition, "control"
when used with respect to any Person means the power to direct the management
and policies of such Person, directly or indirectly, whether through the
ownership of voting securities, whether or not through one or more
intermediaries, by Contract or otherwise; and the terms "controlling" and
"controlled" have meanings correlative to the foregoing.

            "Aggregate PV Audit Result Excess Amount" means the aggregate amount
of the PV Audit Result Excess in each taxable period within the Relevant
Periods.

            "Aggregate PV Base Case Excess Amount" means the aggregate amount of
the PV Base Case Excess in each taxable period within the Relevant Periods.

            "Applicable Law" means (a) any United States Federal, state, local
or foreign law, statute, rule, regulation, order, writ, injunction, judgment,
decree or Permit of any Governmental Authority and (b) any rule or regulation of
the Commission or any rule or listing requirement of any national stock
exchange, NASDAQ or Commission-recognized trading market on which securities
issued by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries are listed or quoted.

            "Audit Result Amount" means the net taxable income for the Specified
Leases in each taxable period based on the Adjusted Projections.

            "Audit Result Excess" means the amount by which the Audit Result
Amount exceeds the Base Case Amount. In the event the Audit Result Amount does
not exceed the Base Case Amount, the Audit Result Excess shall be zero and
deemed not to exist.

            "Audit Result Excess Amount" means forty percent (40%) of the Audit
Result Excess.

            "Base Case Amount" means the net taxable income for the Specified
Leases in each taxable period based on the Projections.
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            "Base Case Excess" means the amount by which the Base Case Amount
exceeds the Audit Result Amount. In the event the Base Case Amount does not
exceed the Audit Result Amount, the Base Case Excess shall be zero and deemed
not to exist.

            "Base Case Excess Amount" means forty percent (40%) of the Base Case
Excess.

            "Base Line Equity" means $115,000,000.

            "Big Four Public Accounting Firms" means each of Deloitte & Touche
LLP, Ernst & Young LLP, KPMG LLP, and PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

            "Board of Directors" means, with respect to any Person, its board of
directors or similar governing body.



            "Business" means the business and operations of providing financing
and syndication for a wide variety of real property and personal property not
manufactured or owned by Pitney Bowes as of the Distribution Date, including
vendor finance, single investor finance and large-ticket financing, but in any
event not the PBGFS Business or the Pitney Bowes Business.

            "Business Day" means any day other than a Saturday, a Sunday, or a
day when banks in The City of New York are required or authorized by Applicable
Law to be closed.

            "Capital Stock" means (a) with respect to any Person that is a
corporation, any and all shares, interests, participations, rights or other
equivalents (however designated) of corporate stock and (b) with respect to any
other Person, any and all partnership or other equity interests of such Person.

            "Cash Adjustment Amount" means an amount equal to the aggregate
amount of cash dividended or distributed by the Company to Pitney Bowes between
the date hereof and the Distribution Date (excluding any amounts dividended or
distributed to Pitney Bowes out of the proceeds of the Financing Transactions).

            "Cerberus" means Cerberus Capital Management, L.P., a Delaware
limited partnership.

            "Certificate of Designation" means the Certificate of Designation of
Non-Voting Series A Convertible Preferred Stock relating to the Non-Voting
Preferred Stock in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A.

            "Closing Date Balance Sheet" means the unaudited consolidated pro
forma balance sheet of the Company (taking into account the Internal
Restructuring (including the Financing Transactions), the PBGFS Contribution,
the PBGFS Distribution, the Company Contribution, and the non-capitalized
Transactions Expenses but excluding the Interim Warehouse Financing and any
accounting impact as a result of any and all Final Resolutions of any SL Tax
Matter) as of the last day of the month immediately preceding the month in which
the Closing Notice was delivered to the Purchaser prepared in accordance with
the same
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accounting policies, principles, practices and methods used in preparing the
Unaudited Balance Sheet as reflected in the notes thereto.

            "COBRA" means the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of
1985, as amended.

            "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

            "Commission" means the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, or
any other federal agency at the time administering the Securities Act and the
Exchange Act.

            "Confidentiality Agreement" means the Confidentiality Agreement,
dated September 27, 2004, by and between J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., as agent
for Pitney Bowes, and Cerberus, as amended from time to time.

            "Contract" means with respect to any specified Person, any written
contract, Lease, license, loan agreement, mortgage, security agreement, trust
indenture, note, bond, or other commitments, agreement or instrument to which
such Person is legally bound or under which such Person is legally obligated.

            "Cost Amounts" means the aggregate amount equal to the Pension Plan
Costs and the Pre-Distribution Costs.

            "Discount Rate" means fourteen percent (14%).

            "Distribution Agreements" means the Separation and Distribution
Agreement, the Employee Benefits Agreement, the Intellectual Property Agreement,
the Tax Sharing Agreement, and the Transition Services Agreement, and the
exhibits, schedules and annexes thereto.

            "Distribution Term Sheets" means, collectively each of the term
sheets containing the material terms and conditions of the Employee Benefits
Agreement (the "Employee Benefits Agreement Term Sheet"), the Intellectual



Property Agreement and the Transition Services Agreement (the "Transition
Services Agreement Term Sheet") attached hereto as Exhibit B-1 through Exhibit
B-3.

            "Effective Date" means the date the Registration Statement is first
declared effective by the Commission.

            "Employee Benefit Plan" means any "employee benefit plan" as defined
in Section 3(3) of ERISA and any other employee benefit plan or agreement,
including but not limited to, any bonus, deferred compensation, profit-sharing,
pension, severance, stay-bonus, retention, change in control, or stock option
plan or agreement, (a) that is currently maintained, sponsored, contributed to,
or required to be contributed to by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries with
respect to any employees or former employees of the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries or (b) with respect to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries
may otherwise have any liability, including but not limited, to a plan subject
to Title IV of ERISA or Section 412 of the Code to which an ERISA Affiliate
currently contributes.
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            "Employee Benefits Agreement" means the Employee Benefits Agreement
by and between the Company and Pitney Bowes to be entered into in connection
with the Distribution.

            "Environmental Claims" refers to any complaint, summons, citation,
notice, directive, order, claim, litigation, investigation, notice of violation,
judicial or administrative proceeding, judgment, letter or other communication
from any governmental agency, department, bureau, office or other authority, or
any third party involving violations of Environmental Laws or Releases of
Hazardous Substances (a) from any assets, properties or businesses of the
Company or any predecessor in interest or (b) from or onto any facilities which
received Hazardous Substances generated by the Company, its Subsidiaries or any
predecessor in interest.

            "Environmental Law" means any applicable federal, state, local,
common or foreign law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation, code, license,
Permit, authorization, approval, consent, judgment, decree, injunction,
requirement or enforceable agreement with any governmental entity relating to
(a) the protection, preservation or restoration of the environment (including
air, water vapor, surface water, groundwater, drinking water supply, surface
land, subsurface land, plant and animal life or any other natural resource) or
(b) the use, storage, recycling, treatment, generation, transportation,
processing, handling, labeling, production, Release or disposal of Hazardous
Substances, including the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and
Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. 9601 et seq., as amended; the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. 6901 et seq., as amended; the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C.
7401 et seq., as amended; the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq., as
amended; the Occupational Safety and Health Act, 29 U.S.C. 655 et seq., in each
case as amended.

            "Equity Commitment Letter" means the Equity Commitment Letter, dated
as of the date hereof, by and between the Purchaser (or its permitted assigns in
accordance with Section 8.14) and Cerberus.

            "Equity Documents" means this Agreement and the Escrow Agreement.

            "ERISA" means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974,
as amended.

            "ERISA Affiliate" means any trade or business (whether or not
incorporated) that is part of the same controlled group, or under common control
with, or part of an affiliated service group that includes the Company, within
the meaning of Code Section 414(b) or (c) and with respect to an Employee
Benefit Plan subject to Code Section 412 or Title IV of ERISA, within the
meaning of Code Section 414(b), (c), (m) or (o).

            "Escrow Agent" means the party identified as such in the Escrow
Agreement.

            "Escrow Agreement" means the escrow agreement by and among the
Purchaser, the Company and the Escrow Agent substantially in the form of Exhibit
C attached hereto to be entered into in accordance with this Agreement.
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            "Exchange Act" means the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, or any similar federal statute, and the rules and regulations of the
Commission thereunder, all as the same shall be in effect at the time.

            "Final Net Worth" means the Net Worth, plus the aggregate amount of
the Tranche I Stock Purchase Price and the Tranche II Stock Purchase Price.

            "Final Resolution" means the final resolution of liability for any
Income Tax, which resolution may be for a specific issue or adjustment or for a
taxable period, (a) by IRS Form 870 or 870-AD (or any successor forms thereto),
on the date of acceptance by or on behalf of the taxpayer, or by a comparable
form under the laws of a state, local, or foreign taxing jurisdiction, except
that a Form 870 or 870-AD or comparable form shall not constitute a Final
Resolution to the extent that it reserves (whether by its terms or by operation
of law) the right of the taxpayer to file a claim for refund or the right of the
Tax authority to assert a further deficiency in respect of such issue or
adjustment or for such taxable period (as the case may be); (b) by a decision,
judgment, decree, or other order by a court of competent jurisdiction that has
become final and unappealable; (c) by a closing agreement or accepted offer in
compromise under Sections 7121 or 7122 of the Code, or a comparable agreement
under the laws of a state, local, or foreign taxing jurisdiction; or (d) by any
other final disposition, including by mutual agreement of the parties.

            "Financing" means a transaction, which the Company, any Affiliate of
the Company or the PBG Partnership has entered into on behalf of the Business
whereunder such Person has extended credit to another party, including a loan,
lease or conditional sale, in each case, where the obligation of the other party
is secured by, or such transaction otherwise involves the financing of, Real
Property or personal property; for the avoidance of doubt, a Financing shall not
include a PBGFS Financing.

            "Financing Documents" means, with respect to each Financing, the
lease, loan or conditional sale agreement, including any lease, loan agreement,
conditional sale agreement, credit and sale agreement, tax indemnity agreement,
security agreement, promissory note, pledge agreement, mortgage, guarantee, or
other similar agreement, and including any amendment, modification or extension
thereof.

            "Financing File" means, as to each Financing: (a) the fully executed
copies of the Financing Documents; (b) the original title document for the
related leased property or a duplicate certified by the appropriate Governmental
Authority that issued the original thereof or the application for such title
document; (c) documents evidencing or relating to liability, casualty or
insurance policies; (d) documents evidencing any vendor recourse; (e) the credit
application of each Obligor; (f) the fully executed acceptance certificates with
respect to property covered by the applicable Large Ticket Financing; and (g)
all material correspondence and other documents relating to any breach or
default by the Obligor under such Financing.

            "GAAP" means United States generally accepted accounting principles,
consistently applied.
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            "Governmental Authority" means (a) any foreign, Federal, state or
local court or governmental or regulatory agency or authority, (b) any
arbitration board, tribunal or mediator and (c) any national stock exchange or
Commission-recognized trading market on which securities issued by the Company
or any of its Subsidiaries are listed or quoted.

            "Governmental Order" means any order, writ, judgment, injunction,
decree, stipulation, determination or award entered by or with any Governmental
Authority.

            "HSR Act" means the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of
1976, as amended, and the regulations promulgated thereunder.

            "Hazardous Substance" means, without regard to amount and/or
concentration (a) any element, compound, or chemical that is defined, listed or
otherwise classified as a contaminant, pollutant, toxic pollutant, toxic or
hazardous substances, extremely hazardous substance or chemical, hazardous



waste, medical waste, biohazardous or infectious waste, special waste, or solid
waste under Environmental Laws, (b) petroleum, petroleum-based or
petroleum-derived products, (c) polychlorinated biphenyls, (d) any substance
exhibiting a hazardous waste characteristic, including but not limited to
corrosivity, ignitibility, toxicity or reactivity, as well as any radioactive or
explosive materials and (e) any asbestos-containing materials in friable form.

            "Indebtedness" means as to any Person, all indebtedness to any other
Person for borrowed money, including capitalized lease obligations, synthetic
lease obligations, sale leaseback obligations and other similar indebtedness
obligations, whether secured or unsecured, and all such indebtedness of any
other Person which is directly or indirectly guaranteed by such Person or which
such Person has agreed to purchase or otherwise acquire or in respect of which
it has otherwise assured against loss.

            "Indentures" means collectively, the (a) Indenture, dated May 1,
1985, by and between the Company and Suntrust Bank (as successor trustee to
Bankers Trust Company), with supplemental indentures, dated December 1, 1986,
February 15, 1989, May 1, 1989 and February 4, 2005 and (b) Indenture, dated
July 31, 1999, by and between the Company and Suntrust Bank, with a supplemental
indenture, dated February 4, 2005.

            "Industry" means the equipment and Real Property financing and
syndication industry and any related industries.

            "Information Statement" means the information statement (including
any exhibits, schedules, or annexes attached thereto) and any amendments or
supplements thereof forming a part of the Registration Statement on Form 10.

            "Intellectual Property" means (a) all foreign and domestic patents
(including all reissues, divisions, continuations, renewals and extensions
thereof), patent applications and registrations, patent rights, trademarks,
trademark applications and registrations, service marks, trade names, brand
names, d/b/a's, domain names, logos, trade dress, other indicia of origin,
copyrights, copyright registrations and applications, confidential information,
trade secrets, proprietary technology, know-how, inventions, discoveries, and
improvements, (b) all information and data, whether in printed or electronic
form and whether contained in a database
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or otherwise, including customer lists (collectively, "Data") and (c) all other
forms of intellectual property or proprietary rights and claims or causes of
action arising out of or related to any infringement, misappropriation or other
violation of any of the foregoing, including rights to recover for past, present
and future violations thereof.

            "Intellectual Property Agreement" means the Intellectual Property
Agreement by and between the Company and Pitney Bowes to be entered into in
connection with the Distribution.

            "IRS" means the Internal Revenue Service.

            "IT Systems" means electronic data processing, information,
recordkeeping, communications, telecommunications, networking, account
management, inventory management and other such applications, software, and
hardware, equipment and services (including applications and software installed
on hardware and equipment, and databases, firmware, and related documentation),
and Internet websites and related content.

            "Large Ticket Financing" means a Financing that is not a Small
Ticket Financing. 

            "Lease" means any and all leases, subleases, tenancies, options, 
concession agreements, rental agreements, occupancy agreements, franchise
agreements, access agreements and any other agreements (including all
amendments, extensions, replacements, renewals, modifications and/or guarantees
thereof), whether or not of record and whether now in existence or hereafter
entered into, affecting the use or occupancy of all or any portion of any Real
Property.

            "Lien" means any mortgage, pledge, deed of trust, lien, security
interest, claim, restriction, charge or encumbrance of any kind.



            "Material Adverse Effect" means any change in or any effect on the
Company (after taking into effect the PBGFS Contribution, the PBGFS
Distribution, the Financing Transactions, the Warehouse Financing Transaction
and the Company Contribution) or the Business that is, individually or in the
aggregate, materially adverse to the Company (after taking into effect the PBGFS
Contribution, the PBGFS Distribution, the Financing Transactions, the Warehouse
Financing Transaction and the Company Contribution), or the assets (both
tangible and intangible), liabilities, financial condition, or results of
operations of the Company and its Subsidiaries (excluding the assets (both
tangible and intangible), liabilities and business to be contributed to PBGFS in
connection with the PBGFS Contribution); provided, however, that in no event
shall any change or effect related to or resulting from the following, be
considered a Material Adverse Effect: (a) changes generally applicable to
companies in the Industry (including changes in interest rates or conditions in
financial markets, on an international, national or regional basis or changes in
the United States or global economy in general or any act of terrorism, war or
natural disaster), as opposed to changes specifically applicable to the Business
or changes that affect the Company in a disproportionate manner as compared to
other companies of similar size and credit rating in the Industry; (b) any
action or inaction by the Business' employees, vendors and non-Affiliate
counterparties to the Financings and the Relevant Contracts, which relate to the
Business, solely as a result of the execution of this
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Agreement or the Transactions or the announcement thereof; (c) the transactions
(including, the Financing Transactions) contemplated by the proposed
reorganizations in connection with the PBGFS Contribution, the PBGFS
Distribution, the Company Contribution and the Distribution as more fully
described in Schedules 2.2(a)(i), 2.2(a)(iii) and 2.6(a)(iv) and Article III of
the Separation and Distribution Agreement (the "Internal Restructuring"); (d)
the termination of the Operating Agreement, dated as of November 1, 2001, by and
between Imagistics International Inc. ("Imagistics") and the Company, as
supplemented and amended from time to time; and (e) the audit of Pitney Bowes'
consolidated tax returns for 1995 and subsequent years.

            "NASDAQ" means the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc.,
Automated Quotations Systems.

            "Net Proceeds Amount" means an amount equal to $438,000,000, minus
the sum of (i) the Cash Adjustment Amount and (ii) the Cost Amounts.

            "Net Worth" means (a) the aggregate amount by which (i) the total
assets of the Company and its Subsidiaries exceed (ii) the total liabilities of
the Company and its Subsidiaries (excluding the impact of the Financing
Transactions and the Transactions Expenses on the assets and liabilities), minus
(b) the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the Financing Transactions,
minus (c) the aggregate amount of non-capitalized Transactions Expenses, in each
case, derived from the Closing Date Balance Sheet.

            "Net Worth Difference Amount" means an amount equal (in the positive
or negative) to the difference between the Net Worth and the Base Line Equity.

            "Obligor" means a Person (other than the Company or any of its
Affiliates) who is obligated under a Financing.

            "PBG Partnership" means PBG Capital Partners L.L.C., a Delaware
limited liability company.

            "PBGFS Business" means (a) the business and operations of providing
lease financing of equipment manufactured or supplied by Pitney Bowes, (b) all
other business (other than Company Business) conducted by PBGFS and (c) except
as otherwise expressly provided herein, any terminated, divested or discontinued
businesses or operations that at the time of termination, divestiture or
discontinuation primarily related to the businesses and operations as described
in subsection (a) above as then conducted, but in any event not the Business,
the Pitney Bowes Business and businesses and operations related to the Excluded
PBGFS Assets (as such term is defined in the Separation and Distribution
Agreement).

            "PBGFS Financing" means a transaction (other than a Financing) which
relates to the PBGFS Business and in which Pitney Bowes or any Subsidiary of
Pitney Bowes has extended credit to another party, including a loan, lease or
conditional sale, in each case, where the obligation of the other party is



secured by, or such transaction otherwise involves the financing of personal
property manufactured or supplied by Pitney Bowes.

            "Pension Plan Costs" has the meaning set forth in the Employee
Benefits Agreement Term Sheet.
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            "Permit" means permits, licenses, franchises, variances, exemptions,
orders, registrations, certificates, consents, approvals and other
authorizations issued or granted by Governmental Authorities and any other right
or authorization held by a specified Person granted or recognized by a
Governmental Authority in any jurisdiction and required for the conduct of the
Business.

            "Permitted Liens" means (a) mechanics', carriers', workmen's,
repairmen's or other like Liens arising or incurred in the ordinary course of
business, Liens arising under original purchase price conditional sales
contracts and equipment leases with third parties entered into in the ordinary
course of business and Liens for Taxes that are not due and payable or that may
thereafter be paid without penalty, (b) Liens that secure obligations that are
reflected as liabilities in the Unaudited Financial Statements or the Audited
Financial Statements, (c) Liens that are permitted under any Financing Document,
(d) Liens that that do not materially impair, and could not reasonably be
expected to materially impair, the continued use and operation of the assets
that relate to the Financings, (e) other leases, subleases and similar
agreements, imperfections of title or easements, covenants, rights-of-way and
encumbrances, if any, that do not materially impair, and could not reasonably be
expected to materially impair, the value of the ownership interest in (whether
it be fee, leasehold or other), or the continued use and operation of the assets
to which they relate in the conduct of the Business as presently conducted and
(f) to the extent that the following do not materially impair, and could not
reasonably be expected to materially impair, the value of the ownership interest
in (whether it be fee, leasehold or other), or continued use and operation of,
the assets to which they relate in the conduct of the Business as presently
conducted (i) zoning, building and other similar legal restrictions, (ii) Liens
that have been placed by any developer, landlord or other third party on
property over which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries has easement rights
or on any leased property and subordination or similar agreements relating
thereto and (iii) unrecorded easements, covenants, rights of way and other
similar restrictions.

            "Permitted Transferee" means, with respect to the Purchaser or any
Permitted Transferee of the Purchaser, any Subsidiary of the Purchaser or any
Affiliate of the Purchaser (but excluding any portfolio company of any member of
the Purchaser's Group that does not engage in businesses similar to the
Business); provided, however, that each Permitted Transferee must agree in
writing to be bound by the terms of this Agreement and the Equity Commitment
Letter to the same extent, and in the same manner, as the Purchaser or the
transferring Permitted Transferee prior to the transfer of any Shares to such
Permitted Transferee; provided, further, however, that the transfer of Shares to
such Permitted Transferee is in compliance with all applicable securities laws.

            "Person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, limited
liability company, joint venture, association, joint-stock company, trust,
unincorporated organization, government or agency or political subdivision
thereof, or other entity.

            "Pitney Bowes Business" means (a) the business and operations of
providing integrated mail, messaging, and document management systems, services
and solutions for organizations of all sizes, (b) all other business (including
the business and operations (other than the Business) related to the Company)
and (c) except as otherwise expressly provided herein, any terminated, divested
or discontinued businesses or operations that at the time of termination,
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divestiture or discontinuation primarily related to the businesses and
operations as described in subsection (a) above as then conducted, but in any
event not the Business, the PBGFS Business and businesses and operations related
to the Excluded PBGFS Assets (as such term is defined in the Separation and
Distribution Agreement).



            "Pre-Distribution Costs" has the meaning set forth in the Transition
Services Agreement Term Sheet.

            "Preferred Premium" means twelve and one-half percent (12.5%).

            "Present Value" means the value as of the Distribution Date of each
future Base Case Excess Amount and Audit Result Excess Amount, as applicable,
discounted from the end of each calendar year to which such Base Case Excess
Amount and Audit Result Excess Amount relates, as applicable, at the Discount
Rate and assuming annual compounding.

            "Private Letter Ruling" means the private letter ruling from the
IRS, in which the IRS rules that: (a) no gain or loss will be recognized by, and
no amount will be included in the income of, the Company or Pitney Bowes upon
the distribution of all of the PBGFS Capital Stock held by the Company to Pitney
Bowes in the PBGFS Distribution, (b) no gain or loss will be recognized by, and
no amount will be included in the income of, Pitney Bowes or the stockholders of
Pitney Bowes upon the distribution of all of the Common Stock held by Pitney
Bowes to the stockholders of Pitney Bowes in the Distribution, (c) no gain or
loss will be recognized by, and no amount will be included in the income of, the
Company as a result of the PBGFS Contribution, and (d) provided the merger of PB
Equipment Management Inc. with and into the Company (the "PB Equipment Merger")
qualifies as a statutory merger under applicable state law, the PB Equipment
Merger will qualify as a reorganization within the meaning of Section
368(a)(1)(A) of the Code.

            "Projection Inputs" means (a) the following inputs set forth in the
Projections that were used to calculate net taxable income for purposes of the
Projections: "rents and residuals", "interest" (on non-recourse debt),
"depreciation" and "fees and other revenues and expenses", (b) any
recharacterization by the IRS of the inputs enumerated in clause (a), and (c)
any new or different item of income, gain, loss, deduction or credit in respect
of the Specified Leases, without regard to whether such item is enumerated in
clause (a).

            "Projections" means the hypothetical net taxable income or loss of
the Company with respect to the Specified Leases set forth in the projections
attached hereto on Schedule 1.01.

            "Prospectus" means the prospectus (including any exhibits,
schedules, or annexes attached thereto) and any amendments thereof or
supplements thereto forming a part of the Registration Statement on Form S-1, if
any.

            "Purchase Price Adjustment Amounts" means the Tranche I Adjustment
Amount and the Tranche II Adjustment Amount.

            "Purchaser's Group" means, collectively, any Person that is an
Affiliate of the Purchaser or Cerberus.
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            "PV Audit Result Excess" means the Present Value of the Audit Result
Excess Amount for each period within the Relevant Periods.

            "PV Base Case Excess" means the Present Value of the Base Case
Excess Amount for each period within the Relevant Periods.

            "Qualified Equity Offering" means a public or nonpublic offering of
shares of Common Stock or securities convertible into or exchangeable or
exercisable for shares of Common Stock (collectively, "New Stock") solely for
cash; provided, however, that none of the following shall constitute a Qualified
Equity Offering: (a) the Tranche II Issuance; (b) any offering pursuant to any
Employee Benefits Plan, stock purchase plan, stock ownership plan, stock option
plan or other similar plan where stock is being issued or offered to a trust,
other entity or otherwise, for the benefit of any employees, officers,
consultants or directors of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries; (c) any
offering made as part of or in connection with any non-capital-raising
transactions (including a partnership or joint venture or strategic alliance or
investment or in consideration of an acquisition, merger or other business
combination transaction approved by the Board of Directors of the Company); (d)
any offering to any employee, consultant or director of the Company or any of
its Subsidiaries made pursuant to any employment agreement or other written
arrangement approved by the Board of Directors of the Company; (e) any issuance



of Series B Preferred Stock or any other securities of the Company pursuant to
the Rights Agreement; and (f) any issuance in connection with an antidilution
adjustment to the Non-Voting Preferred Stock as a result of Section 8 of the
Certificate of Designation.

            A "Qualifying Ownership Interest" shall be deemed to exist at any
time the Purchaser and the Permitted Transferees collectively own a number of
shares of Common Stock (giving effect to the conversion of the Non-Voting
Preferred Stock into Common Stock) that in the aggregate represent not less than
fifteen percent (15%) of the aggregate number of shares of Common Stock (giving
effect to the conversion of the Non-Voting Preferred Stock into Common Stock)
and initially acquired by the Purchaser pursuant to this Agreement.

            "Real Property" means, collectively, all right, title and interest
(including any leasehold, mineral or other estate) in and to any and all parcels
of or interests in real property owned, leased or operated by any Person,
whether by lease, license or other means, together with, in each case, all
easements, hereditaments and appurtenances relating thereto, all improvements
and appurtenant fixtures and equipment, all general intangibles and Contract
rights and other property and rights incidental to the ownership, lease or
operation thereof.

            "Registration Rights Agreement" means the Registration Rights
Agreement by and between the Company and the Initial Holders (as defined in the
Registration Rights Agreement) in the form of Exhibit D attached hereto to be
entered into in accordance with this Agreement.

            "Registration Statement" means the registration statement on Form 10
(including any and all exhibits filed thereto) to be filed under the Exchange
Act or the registration statement on Form S-1 (including any and all exhibits
filed thereto) to be filed under the Securities Act and the Form 8-A (including
any and all exhibits filed thereto) to be filed under the Exchange Act, as
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applicable, pursuant to which the shares of Common Stock to be issued in
connection with the Distribution will be registered, together with all
amendments thereto.

            "Release" means any spilling, leaking, pumping, emitting, emptying,
discharging, injecting, escaping, leaching, migrating, dumping, or disposing of
Hazardous Substances (including the abandonment or discarding of barrels,
containers or other closed receptacles containing Hazardous Substances) into the
environment.

            "Relevant Contracts" means the following categories of Contracts
(excluding the Financing Documents) that solely relate to the Business: (a) any
Contract to purchase or otherwise acquire or sell or otherwise dispose of any
interest in Real Property; (b) any Lease or similar agreement to which a
non-affiliated party is the lessee of, or holds or uses, any machinery,
equipment, vehicle or other tangible personal property owned by the Company or
any of its Subsidiaries (at the time of the Distribution); (c) any Contract
relating to a partnership, joint venture, strategic alliance, exclusivity,
consortium or other similar arrangement; (d) any Contract relating to
Indebtedness; (e) any outstanding customer option relating to any Contract; and
(f) any employment Contract.

            "Relevant Periods" means all taxable periods beginning after the
Distribution Date and ending on December 31, 2022.

            "Representatives" means, collectively, with respect to any Person,
such Person's directors, partners, members, officers, employees, financial
advisors, lenders, insurers, consultants, accountants, attorneys, agents,
representatives, equity investors, rating agencies, controlled Affiliates and
controlling persons of such Person or its controlled Affiliates.

            "Rights Agreement" means the Rights Agreement by and between the
Company and EquiServe Trust Company, N.A., as rights agent, substantially in the
form of Exhibit D attached to the Separation and Distribution Agreement.

            "Ruling Request" means the submission to the IRS requesting the
Private Letter Ruling and any supplemental submissions or other material
correspondence in respect of the Private Letter Ruling.



            "Securities Act" means the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
or any similar federal statute, and the rules and regulations of the Commission
thereunder, all as the same shall be in effect at the time.

            "Separation and Distribution Agreement" means the Separation and
Distribution Agreement by and between the Company and Pitney Bowes substantially
in the form of Exhibit E attached hereto to be entered into in connection with
the PBGFS Distribution and the Distribution.

            "Series B Preferred Stock" has the meaning ascribed to such term in
the Rights Agreement.

            "Shares" means collectively the shares of Tranche I Stock and
Tranche II Stock.
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            "SL Tax Matter" means any Tax Matter related to an IRS audit of any
Specified Lease.

            "Small Ticket Financing" means a Financing within the Dictaphone
portfolio listed or described on Schedule 3.18(a)(ii) hereto or within the
Imagistics portfolio listed or described on Schedule 3.18(a)(ii) hereto.

            "Specified Leases" means the Financings listed on Schedule 1.02.

            "Subordinated Debt Agreement" means the Note Purchase Agreement by
and between the Company and the Purchaser substantially in the form of Exhibit F
attached hereto to be entered into in accordance with this Agreement.

            "Subordinated Notes" means the Notes as such term is defined in the
Subordinated Debt Agreement.

            "Subsidiary" means, with respect to any Person (a) a corporation, a
majority of whose Capital Stock with voting power, under ordinary circumstances,
to elect directors is at the time, directly or indirectly, owned by such Person,
by a subsidiary of such Person, or by such Person and one or more subsidiaries
of such Person, (b) a partnership in which such Person or a subsidiary of such
Person is, at the date of determination, a general partner of such partnership
and has the power to direct the policies and management of such partnership or
(c) any other Person (other than a corporation) in which such Person, a
subsidiary of such Person or such Person and one or more subsidiaries of such
Person, directly or indirectly, at the date of determination thereof, has (i) at
least a majority ownership interest or (ii) the power to elect or direct the
election of a majority of the directors or other governing body of such Person.

            "Suit" means any suit, claim, action, arbitration, mediation,
opposition, investigation or other proceeding.

            "Superior Proposal" means a written offer made by a Person other
than the Purchaser, its Affiliates or Persons acting on its behalf (a) on terms
(taken as a whole) that either the Board of Directors of the Company or the
Board of Directors of Pitney Bowes determines in good faith would, if
consummated, be more favorable to the Company or Pitney Bowes and their
respective stockholders, as applicable, than the Transactions and (b) that
either the Board of Directors of the Company or the Board of Directors of Pitney
Bowes determines in good faith is reasonably capable of being consummated
(taking into account such factors as the Board of Directors of the Company or
Board of Directors of Pitney Bowes, as applicable, in good faith deems relevant,
including but not limited to all legal, financial, regulatory and other aspects
of such proposal and the likely availability of any necessary financing).

            "Tax" means any federal, state, local or foreign net income, gross
income, net receipts, gross receipts, profit, severance, property, production,
sales, use, license, excise, franchise, employment, payroll, withholding,
alternative or add-on minimum, ad valorem, value-added, transfer, stamp,
employment or other tax, custom duty, fee or other governmental charge of any
kind, together with any interest, fine, penalty, addition to tax or additional
amount imposed with respect thereto.
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            "Tax Sharing Agreement" means the Tax Sharing Agreement by and



between the Company and Pitney Bowes substantially in the form of Exhibit G
attached hereto to be entered into in connection with the Distribution.

            "Transactions" means solely the transactions contemplated by the
Equity Documents, which, for the avoidance of doubt, does not include the
transactions contemplated by the Internal Restructuring, including the PBGFS
Contribution, the PBGFS Distribution, the Financing Transactions, the Company
Contribution and the Distribution.

            "Transactions Expenses" means any and all expenses incurred in
connection with the Transactions, the Internal Restructuring, the PBGFS
Contribution, the PBGFS Distribution, the Company Contribution and the
Distribution calculated and determined in accordance with GAAP.

            "Transition Services Agreement" means the Transition Services
Agreement by and between the Company and Pitney Bowes to be entered into in
connection with the Distribution.

            (b) As used herein, the phrase "to the knowledge" of the Company as
of any date shall mean the actual knowledge of Keith Williamson, Lawrence
Osmanski, Michael Costello, Stephen Wayne, Ann Schaumberger, David Kleinman,
Christian Schulitz, Jeffrey Ramos, Michael Ryan and Christian Hughes.

            (c) Titles and headings of sections of this Agreement are for
convenience only and shall not affect the construction of any provision of this
Agreement. Unless the context otherwise requires:

            (i) a term has the meaning assigned to it;

            (ii) "or" is not exclusive;

            (iii) "including" means including without limitation; and

            (iv) words in the singular include the plural and words in the
      plural include the singular.

            (d) As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the
meanings given thereto in the Sections set forth opposite such terms:

 

Term                                                   Section
----                                                   -------
                                                            
Agreement                                              Preamble
Amended Bylaws                                         5.04
Audited Balance Sheet                                  3.05(b)
Audited Financial Statements                           3.05(b)
Cash Flows                                             3.05(a)
Closing Financial Statements                           2.05(a)
Closing Notice                                         2.05(a)
Common Stock                                           Recitals
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Term                                                   Section
----                                                   -------
                                                            
Company                                                Preamble
Company Contribution                                   Recitals
Company Cure Period                                    8.04(a)
Company Intellectual Property                          3.08(a)
Company Lease                                          3.16(a)
Data                                                   Article I - definition of
                                                       "Intellectual Property"
Designated Stock                                       5.15(a)



Distribution                                           Recitals
Distribution Date                                      2.03
Eligible Purchasers                                    5.15(a)
Employee Benefits Agreement Term Sheet                 Article I - definition of
                                                       "Distribution Term Sheet"
Escrow Funds                                           2.02(a)
Expense Reimbursement                                  8.04(b)
Financing Policies                                     3.19
Financing Transactions                                 Recitals
Imagistics                                             Article I - definition of
                                                       "Material Adverse Effect"
Independent Accounting Firm                            2.05(b)
Initial Directors                                      5.06(a)
Interim Warehouse Financing                            6.10
Internal Restructuring                                 Article I - definition of
                                                       "Material Adverse Effect"
Material Contracts                                     3.20(a)
Net Worth Statement                                    2.05(a)
New Stock                                              Article I - definition of
                                                       "Qualified Equity
                                                       Offering"
Non-Voting Preferred Stock                             Recitals
Notice of Disagreement                                 2.05(b)
PB Equipment Merger                                    Article I - definition of
                                                       "Private Letter Ruling"
PBGFS                                                  Recitals
PBGFS Contribution                                     Recitals
PBGFS Distribution                                     Recitals
Pitney Bowes                                           Preamble
Private Placement                                      5.15(c)
Preferred Director                                     5.06
Purchaser                                              Preamble
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Term                                                   Section
----                                                   -------
                                                            
Purchaser Cure Period                                  8.04(a)
Repurchase Date                                        2.08(a)
Restated Certificate                                   5.04
Schedules                                              8.11
Specified Lease Adjustment Amount                      2.05(a)
Statements of Operations                               3.05(a)
Tax Returns                                            3.17
Termination Payment                                    8.04(b)
Tranche I Adjustment Amount                            2.05(d)
Tranche I Closing                                      2.02
Tranche I Closing Date                                 2.02
Tranche I Issuance                                     2.01(a)
Tranche I Stock                                        Recitals
Tranche I Stock Purchase Price                         2.01(a)
Tranche II Adjustment Amount                           Section 2.05(e)
Tranche II Closing                                     2.04
Tranche II Closing Date                                2.04
Tranche II Issuance                                    2.01(a)
Tranche II Stock                                       Recitals
Tranche II Stock Certificates                          2.04(a)
Tranche II Stock Purchase Price                        2.01(a)
Transition Services Agreement Term Sheet               Article I - definition of
                                                       "Distribution Term Sheet"
Unaudited Balance Sheet                                3.05(a)
Unaudited Financial Statements                         3.05(a)
Update Notice                                          3.26(b)

                                   ARTICLE II

                          Sale, Purchase and Repurchase



            SECTION 2.01. Agreement to Sell and to Purchase; Purchase Price. (a)
Upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement and, in
case of the Tranche II Issuance, this Agreement and the Escrow Agreement:

            (i) immediately following the consummation of the Company
      Contribution and immediately prior to the Distribution, the Company shall
      issue and sell to the Purchaser, and the Purchaser shall purchase and
      accept from the Company the Tranche I Stock (the "Tranche I Issuance"),
      for an aggregate purchase price equal to $28,570,536.83, subject to
      adjustment as set forth in Section 2.05(d) (the "Tranche I Stock Purchase
      Price"); and

            (ii) as soon as practicable following the consummation of the
      Distribution, the Company shall issue and sell to the Purchaser, and the
      Purchaser shall purchase and accept from the Company the Tranche II Stock
      (the "Tranche II Issuance") for a
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      purchase price equal to $87,281,222.99, subject to adjustment as set forth
      in Section 2.05(e) (the "Tranche II Stock Purchase Price").

            (b) An aggregate amount equal to the Tranche I Stock Purchase Price
shall be paid by wire transfer of immediately available funds to a bank account
or bank accounts designated by the Company on or before the Tranche I Closing
Date.

            (c) An aggregate amount equal to the Tranche II Stock Purchase Price
shall be paid by wire transfer of immediately available funds to the Escrow
Agent on or before the Tranche I Closing Date to be held in escrow in accordance
with the terms of this Agreement and the Escrow Agreement.

            (d) The Company shall not be required to issue and sell any shares
of Tranche I Stock to the Purchaser, and the Purchaser shall not be required to
purchase any shares of Tranche I Stock from the Company, unless the conditions
set forth in Section 2.02, Section 7.01 and Section 7.02 to the issuance and
sale of the Tranche I Stock to the Purchaser shall have been satisfied or
waived.

            (e) The Company shall not be required to issue and sell any shares
of Tranche II Stock to the Purchaser, and the Purchaser shall not be required to
purchase any shares of Tranche II Stock from the Company, unless the conditions
set forth in Section 2.04 and Section 7.05 to the issuance and sale of the
Tranche II Stock to the Purchaser shall have been satisfied or waived.

            SECTION 2.02. Tranche I Closing. Subject to the satisfaction or
waiver of the conditions set forth in Sections 7.01 and 7.02, the closing in
respect of the Tranche I Issuance (the "Tranche I Closing") shall occur
immediately after the Company Contribution and immediately prior to the
Distribution, which is expected to occur no later than 12 months from the date
hereof, or at such other time and date as the parties hereto shall agree in
writing (such date and time, the "Tranche I Closing Date"). The Tranche I
Closing shall be held at the offices of White & Case LLP, located at 1155 Avenue
of the Americas, New York, New York 10036 or at such other place as the parties
hereto shall agree in writing.

            On the Tranche I Closing Date:

            (a) The Purchaser shall deliver:

                  (i)   to the Company, the officer's certificate of the
                        Purchaser as contemplated by Section 7.01(c);

                  (ii)  to each of the Company and the Escrow Agent, a copy of
                        the Escrow Agreement executed by the Purchaser;

                  (iii) to the Company, a copy of the Registration Rights
                        Agreement executed by the Purchaser;

                  (iv)  to the Company, an amount in cash equal to the Tranche I
                        Stock Purchase Price; and
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                  (v)   to the Escrow Agent, an amount in cash equal to the
                        Tranche II Stock Purchase Price (the "Escrow Funds").

            (b) The Company shall deliver:

                  (i)   to the Purchaser, the officer's certificate of the
                        Company as contemplated by Section 7.02(c);

                  (ii)  to each of the Purchaser and the Escrow Agent, a copy of
                        the Escrow Agreement executed by the Company;

                  (iii) to the Purchaser, a copy of the Registration Rights
                        Agreement executed by the Company; and

                  (iv)  to the Purchaser, certificates representing the shares
                        of Tranche I Stock being purchased by the Purchaser
                        pursuant to Section 2.01(a)(i), which shall be in
                        definitive form and registered in the name of the
                        Purchaser or a Permitted Transferee and in such
                        denominations as the Purchaser shall request not later
                        than three (3) Business Days prior to the Tranche I
                        Closing Date.

            (c) The Escrow Agent shall deliver to each of the Company and the
Purchaser a copy of the Escrow Agreement executed by the Escrow Agent.

            SECTION 2.03. Distribution. Subject to the satisfaction or waiver of
the conditions set forth in Sections 7.03 and 7.04, the Distribution shall occur
immediately after the Tranche I Closing (the "Distribution Date").

            On the Distribution Date:

            (a) The Purchaser shall deliver:

                  (i)   to the Company, the officer's certificate of the
                        Purchaser as contemplated by Section 7.03(c);

                  (ii)  to the Company, a copy of the Subordinated Debt
                        Agreement executed by the Purchaser; and

                  (iii) to the Company, an amount in cash equal to $5,000,000,
                        constituting full payment for the Subordinated Notes.

            (b) The Company shall deliver:

                  (i)   to the Purchaser, the officer's certificate of the
                        Company as contemplated by Section 7.04(c); and

                  (ii)  to the Purchaser, a copy of the Subordinated Debt
                        Agreement and the Subordinated Notes executed by the
                        Company.
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            SECTION 2.04. Tranche II Closing. Subject to the satisfaction or
waiver of the conditions set forth in Section 7.05, the closing in respect of
the Tranche II Issuance (the "Tranche II Closing") shall occur as soon as
practicable after the Distribution or at such other time and date as the parties
hereto shall agree in writing (such date and time, the "Tranche II Closing
Date"). The Tranche II Closing shall be held at the offices of White & Case LLP,
located at 1155 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York 10036 or at such
other place as the parties hereto shall agree in writing.

            On the Tranche II Closing Date:

            (a) The Company shall deliver to the Purchaser, certificate(s)
representing the shares of the Tranche II Stock (the "Tranche II Stock
Certificates") being purchased by the Purchaser pursuant to Section 2.01(a)(ii),
which shall be in definitive form and registered in the name of the Purchaser or
a Permitted Transferee and in such denominations as the Purchaser shall request
no later than three (3) Business Days prior to the Tranche II Closing Date.

            (b) Each of the Company and the Purchaser shall deliver to the



Escrow Agent the Tranche II Instructions (as such term is defined in the Escrow
Agreement) and the Tranche II Certificate (as such term is defined in the Escrow
Agreement), in each case in accordance with the terms of the Escrow Agreement.

            (c) The Escrow Agent shall release and deliver to the Company the
Escrow Funds and shall release and deliver to the Purchaser the Earned Income
(as such term is defined in the Escrow Agreement), in accordance with the terms
of the Escrow Agreement.

            SECTION 2.05. Preparation of Closing Date Balance Sheet; Purchase
Price Adjustment. The Tranche I Stock Purchase Price and the Tranche II Stock
Purchase Price shall be adjusted as follows:

            (a) The Company shall deliver to the Purchaser a notice notifying
the Purchaser of the proposed Tranche I Closing Date (the "Closing Notice"),
which proposed Tranche I Closing Date shall be no less than 30 calendar days and
no more than 60 calendar days from the date such Closing Notice is delivered to
the Purchaser. The Company shall prepare and deliver to the Purchaser at least
fifteen (15) Business Days prior to the proposed Tranche I Closing Date (i) the
Closing Date Balance Sheet, (ii) a statement derived from the Closing Date
Balance Sheet setting forth a calculation of the Net Worth, the Net Worth
Difference Amount, the Adjusted Net Worth Difference Amount and the Purchase
Price Adjustment Amounts as of the date of the Closing Date Balance Sheet (the
"Net Worth Statement", and, together with the Closing Date Balance Sheet, the
"Closing Financial Statements") and (iii) if applicable, a statement setting
forth the calculation of the Aggregate PV Audit Result Excess Amount and the
Aggregate PV Base Case Excess Amount, including the calculation adjusting the
Net Worth Difference Amount (the "Specified Lease Adjustment Statement"). For
purposes of preparing the Net Worth Statement, it will be assumed by the Company
that the Internal Restructuring (which includes the Financing Transactions), the
PBGFS Contribution, the PBGFS Distribution, and the Company Contribution were
consummated as of the date of the Net Worth Statement and the Closing Date
Balance Sheet shall be prepared in accordance with the same accounting
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policies, principles, practices and methods used in preparing the Unaudited
Balance Sheet as reflected in the notes thereto.

            (b) Within ten (10) Business Days following the Purchaser's receipt
of the Net Worth Statement and the Specified Lease Adjustment Statement, if
applicable, the Purchaser and its independent auditors shall be permitted to
review the working papers of the Company relating to the Net Worth Statement and
the Specified Lease Adjustment Statement, if applicable. The Net Worth Statement
and the Specified Lease Adjustment Statement, if applicable, shall become final
and binding upon the Company and the Purchaser on the eleventh (11th) Business
Day following delivery thereof, unless the Purchaser gives written notice of its
disagreement with the Net Worth Statement and/or the Specified Lease Adjustment
Statement, if applicable, (a "Notice of Disagreement") to the Company prior to
such date.

            (c) Any Notice of Disagreement shall (i) specify in reasonable
detail the nature of any disagreement so asserted and (ii) only include
disagreements based on mathematical errors or based on the Net Worth Statement
not being prepared or any of the Net Worth, the Net Worth Difference Amount, the
Adjustment Net Worth Difference Amount or the Adjusted Purchase Price Amounts
not being determined in accordance with this Section 2.05 or the Specified Lease
Adjustment Statement not being prepared or the Aggregate PV Audit Result Amount
or the Aggregate PV Base Case Excess Amount not being determined in accordance
with Section 2.06. During the seven (7) Business Day period following the
delivery of a Notice of Disagreement, the Company and the Purchaser shall seek
in good faith to resolve in writing any differences that they may have with
respect to the matters specified in the Notice of Disagreement and agree on a
final determination of the disagreements set forth in the Notice of
Disagreement. During such period the Company and its auditors shall have access
to the working papers of the Purchaser and, if applicable, the Purchaser's
auditors' working papers prepared in connection with the Notice of Disagreement.
At the end of such seven (7) Business Day period, the Company and the Purchaser
shall submit to a nationally recognized independent accounting firm (the
"Independent Accounting Firm") for arbitration of any and all matters that
remain in dispute and that were properly included in the Notice of Disagreement.
The Independent Accounting Firm shall be Ernst & Young, or, if such firm is
unable or unwilling to act, the first of the Big Four Public Accounting Firms
(on an alphabetical basis) that is not currently serving as the auditor of



either the Company or the Purchaser shall be selected to resolve the dispute.
The Company and the Purchaser shall instruct the Independent Accounting Firm to
render its reasoned written decision as promptly as practicable but in no event
later than fifteen (15) Business Days after submission of all matters in
dispute. The cost of any arbitration (including the fees and expenses of the
Independent Accounting Firm and reasonable attorney fees and expenses pursuant
to this Section 2.05 shall be borne by the Purchaser and the Company in inverse
proportion as they may prevail in matters resolved by the Independent Accounting
Firm, which proportionate allocations shall also be determined by the
Independent Accounting Firm at the time the determination of the Independent
Accounting Firm is rendered on the merits of the matters submitted. Except as
otherwise provided herein, the procedures for resolution of disputes concerning
the Closing Financial Statements and the Specified Lease Adjustment Statement,
if applicable, shall (i) be final, binding and conclusive on the Company and the
Purchaser for purposes of the purchase price adjustments only and for no other
purpose in connection with this Agreement so that when the Closing Financial
Statements and the Specified Lease Adjustment Statement, if applicable, are
deemed final hereunder, neither the Company nor
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the Purchaser will be entitled to subject the Closing Financial Statements, any
resolution by and between the Company and the Purchaser under this Section
2.05(b) or the Independent Accounting Firm's decision to any court or tribunal,
for purposes of the purchase price adjustments and (ii) shall constitute an
arbitral determination upon which a judgment may be entered by a court of
competent jurisdiction.

            (d)In the event that the Net Worth is not equal to the Base Line
Equity, the Tranche I Stock Purchase Price shall be adjusted downward or upward,
as applicable, by an amount equal to the product of (i) the quotient of (x) the
Adjusted Net Worth Difference Amount, divided by (y) 0.801, times (ii) 0.199
(the "Tranche I Adjustment Amount"). This formula is set forth immediately
below.

      (Adjusted Net Worth Difference Amount / 0.801) x 0.199 = Tranche I
Adjustment Amount

            (e) In the event that the Net Worth is not equal to the Base Line
Equity, the Tranche II Stock Purchase Price shall be adjusted downward or
upward, as applicable by an amount equal to (i) the product of (x) the quotient
of (A) the Adjusted Net Worth Difference Amount, divided by (B) 0.52, times (y)
0.48, minus (ii) the Tranche I Adjustment Amount, times (iii) the sum of 1, plus
the Preferred Premium (the "Tranche II Adjustment Amount"). This formula is set
forth immediately below.

(((Adjusted Net Worth Difference Amount / 0.52) x 0.48) - Tranche I Adjustment
Amount) x (1 + Preferred Premium) = Tranche II Adjustment Amount

            SECTION 2.06. Specified Lease Purchase Price Adjustment. (a) In the
event that a Final Resolution of an SL Tax Matter occurs prior to the delivery
of the Specified Lease Adjustment Statement to the Purchaser in accordance with
Section 2.05(a) then:

                  (i) If the Aggregate PV Audit Result Excess Amount exceeds the
Aggregate PV Base Case Excess Amount, then the Net Worth Difference Amount shall
be reduced by any amount equal to such excess; or

                  (ii) If the Aggregate PV Base Case Excess Amount exceeds the
Aggregate PV Audit Result Excess Amount, then the Net Worth Difference Amount
shall be increased by an amount equal to such excess.

            (b) An example of the purchase price adjustment set forth in this
Section 2.06 is attached as Schedule 2.06(b) hereto solely for illustrative
purposes.

            SECTION 2.07. Stock Split; Common Stock Issuances. (a) In the event
that the Company effects a stock split for its Common Stock on or prior to the
Tranche I Closing Date, the number of shares of (i) Tranche I Stock and (ii)
Common Stock upon conversion of the Tranche II Stock, each to be purchased by
the Purchaser in accordance with Section 2.01 shall be adjusted proportionately
based on the stock split ratio. All fractions of a share of Common Stock shall
be rounded down.



            (b) In the event that the Company, between the date hereof and the
Tranche I Closing Date, consummates issuances of shares of Common Stock of the
Company in
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accordance with Section 5.16(d), the number of shares of (i) the Tranche I Stock
to be purchased by the Purchaser in accordance with Section 2.01(a)(i) shall be
adjusted to represent an economic interest in the Company of 12.9% of the then
issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock on a fully diluted basis
(including taking into account the shares of Common Stock to be issued upon
conversion of the Tranche II Stock) as of the Tranche II Closing Date and (ii)
Common Stock upon conversion of the Tranche II Stock to be purchased by the
Purchaser in accordance with Section 2.01(a)(ii) shall be adjusted to represent
an economic interest in the Company of 35.1% of the then issued and outstanding
shares of Common Stock on a fully diluted basis (including taking into account
the shares of Common Stock to be issued upon conversion of the Tranche II Stock)
as of the Tranche II Closing Date. For the avoidance of doubt, following the
issuance of any of the Shares, such Shares shall be subject to dilution as a
result of any issuance by the Company of any of its securities after the Tranche
II Closing Date.

            SECTION 2.08. Repurchase of the Tranche I Stock. (a) If the
Distribution has not been consummated on or prior to the next Business Day
immediately succeeding the Tranche I Closing Date, then, on the third Business
Day immediately succeeding the Tranche I Closing Date (the "Repurchase Date"),
the Company, shall (subject to all Applicable Laws and the next sentence)
repurchase from the Purchaser all shares of Tranche I Stock purchased by the
Purchaser free from all claims, charges, Liens, rights of preemption or equities
whatsoever for an aggregate amount equal to the Tranche I Stock Purchase Price.
For the avoidance of doubt, if the Distribution shall have occurred prior to the
third Business Day immediately succeeding the Tranche I Closing Date, the
Company shall have no obligation to repurchase from the Purchaser the shares of
Tranche I Stock purchased by the Purchaser.

            (b) On the Repurchase Date, (i) the Purchaser shall deliver to the
Company the share certificate(s) for the Tranche I Stock, (ii) the Company shall
pay to the Purchaser an aggregate amount equal to the Tranche I Stock Purchase
Price as payment in full for the repurchase of the shares of Tranche I Stock,
(iii) the Purchaser and the Company shall each execute and deliver to the Escrow
Agent the Termination Instructions and the Termination Certificate (as such
terms are defined in the Escrow Agreement) to the Escrow Agent and (iv) the
Escrow Agent shall release the Escrow Amount, (as such term is defined in the
Escrow Agreement) to the Purchaser in accordance with the terms of the Escrow
Agreement.

                                  ARTICLE III

                  Representations and Warranties of the Company

            The Company hereby represents and warrants to the Purchaser on the
date hereof, on the Tranche I Closing Date and on the Distribution Date, as if
made on such date, as applicable, as follows:

            SECTION 3.01. Organization and Standing. (a) The Company is duly
incorporated, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State
of Delaware and has all requisite corporate power and authority to own its
properties and assets and to carry on the Business as it is now being conducted
and as proposed to be conducted immediately following the Distribution. The
Company is duly qualified as a foreign corporation to do
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business, and is in good standing, in each jurisdiction where the character of
its properties owned or leased or the nature of its activities makes such
qualification necessary, except where the failure to be so qualified would not
have or would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. The
Company has furnished to the Purchaser true and correct copies of the Company's
certificate of incorporation and by-laws as amended through the date of this
Agreement and true and correct copies of the Restated Certificate, the Amended
Bylaws and the Certificate of Designation in substantially the form as will be
in effect as of the Distribution (exclusive of the certificate of designation to
be filed in connection with the Rights Agreement).



            (b) Each Subsidiary of the Company is an entity duly incorporated,
formed or organized, validly existing and, where applicable, in good standing
under the laws of its jurisdiction of incorporation, formation or organization
and has all requisite power and authority to own its properties and assets and
to carry on its business as it is presently conducted or as it is proposed to be
conducted immediately following the Distribution, and each such Subsidiary is
qualified to transact business, and is in good standing, in each jurisdiction in
which the properties owned, leased or operated by it or the nature of the
business conducted by it makes such qualification necessary; except in all cases
as would not have or would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse
Effect. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.01(b)(i) all of the outstanding shares
of Capital Stock of each such Subsidiary set forth on Schedule 3.01(b)(iii) are
validly issued, fully paid, nonassessable and free of preemptive rights and upon
consummation of the Distribution will be owned directly or indirectly by the
Company and (ii) except as set forth on Schedule 3.01(b)(ii), there are no
subscriptions, options, warrants, rights, calls, Contracts, voting trusts,
proxies or other commitments, understandings, restrictions or arrangements
relating to the issuance, sale, voting or transfer of any shares of Capital
Stock of any such Subsidiary set forth on Schedule 3.01(b)(iii), including any
right of conversion or exchange under any outstanding security, instrument or
agreement. Schedule 3.01(b)(iii) sets forth a list of the ownership interests of
the Company in each of its Subsidiaries as of immediately after the
Distribution.

            SECTION 3.02. Capital Stock. (a) The authorized Capital Stock of the
Company as of the date hereof consists of 20,000 shares, of which (i) 10,000
shares are preferred stock with no par value of which no shares are issued and
outstanding and (ii) 10,000 shares are common stock with the par value of $0.001
per share, of which 460 Common Shares are issued and outstanding and are owned
by Pitney Bowes as of the date hereof.

            (b) Each share of Capital Stock of the Company that will be issued
and outstanding immediately following the Tranche I Closing and Tranche II
Closing, as applicable, will be duly authorized and validly issued and fully
paid and nonassessable, and the issuance thereof, subject to Section 5.15, will
not be subject to any preemptive rights or made in violation of any Applicable
Law. Except as may otherwise be provided for in this Agreement, the Internal
Restructuring and the Transactions, there are no outstanding material
contractual obligations of the Company to repurchase, redeem, or otherwise
acquire any shares of Capital Stock of the Company. Except as may otherwise be
provided for in this Agreement, the Distribution Agreements, the Transactions
and the Internal Restructuring, there are no outstanding material contractual
obligations of any of the Subsidiaries set forth on Schedule 3.01(b)(iii) to
repurchase, redeem, or otherwise acquire any shares of Capital Stock of such
Subsidiaries.
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            (c) Except as provided for in the Equity Documents, the Certificate
of Designation, the Rights Agreement and the certificate of designation to be
filed in accordance with the Rights Agreement, there are (i) no outstanding
options, warrants, agreements, conversion rights, exchange rights, preemptive
rights or other rights (whether contingent or not) to subscribe for, purchase or
acquire any issued or unissued shares of Capital Stock of the Company or options
that will be converted into options to purchase shares of Common Stock or
Non-Voting Preferred Stock and (ii) no restrictions upon, or Contracts or
understandings of the Company with respect to, the voting or transfer of any
shares of Capital Stock of the Company.

            SECTION 3.03. Authorization; Enforceability. The Company has the
power and authority to execute, deliver and perform the terms and provisions of
each of the Equity Documents and the Registration Rights Agreement, and, as of
the Tranche I Closing Date, and the Distribution Date, as applicable, will have
taken all action necessary to authorize the execution, delivery and performance
by it of each of such Equity Documents, the Registration Rights Agreement, the
Subordinated Debt Agreement and the Distribution Agreements and to consummate
the transactions contemplated thereby. As of the Tranche I Closing Date and the
Distribution Date, as applicable, no other corporate proceeding on the part of
the Company will be necessary for such authorization, execution, delivery and
consummation. The Company has duly executed and delivered this Agreement and, on
the Tranche I Closing Date, the Company will have duly executed and delivered
each of the other Equity Documents and the Registration Rights Agreement to be
executed and delivered on or prior to the Tranche I Closing Date and, on the



Distribution Date, the Company will have duly executed and delivered the
Subordinated Debt Agreement. This Agreement constitutes, and each of the Escrow
Agreement, the Registration Rights Agreement, the Subordinated Debt Agreement
and the Subordinated Notes, when executed and delivered by the Company, will
constitute, a legal, valid and binding obligation of the Company, enforceable
against the Company in accordance with its terms, subject to bankruptcy,
insolvency, fraudulent transfer, reorganization, moratorium and similar laws of
general applicability relating to or affecting creditors' rights and to general
equity principles.

            SECTION 3.04. No Violation; Consents. (a) Subject to the
governmental filings and other matters referred to in Section 3.04(b), the
execution, delivery and performance by the Company of each of the Equity
Documents, the Registration Rights Agreement and the Subordinated Debt Agreement
and the consummation by the Company of the Transactions do not and will not
contravene any Applicable Law, except for any such contravention that would not
have or would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.
Except as set forth on Schedule 3.04(a), the execution, delivery and performance
by the Company of each of the Equity Documents, the Registration Rights
Agreement and the Subordinated Debt Agreement and the consummation of the
Transactions (i) will not (A) violate, result in a breach of or constitute (with
or without due notice or lapse of time or both) a default (or give rise to any
right of termination, cancellation or acceleration) under any Contract to which
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries are a party or by which the Company or
any of its Subsidiaries are bound or to which any of the assets of the Business
will be subject immediately following the Distribution or (B) result in the
creation or imposition of any Lien upon any of the assets of the Business,
except, in each case, for any such violations, breaches, defaults or Liens that
would not have or would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse
Effect and (ii) will not conflict with or violate any provision of the
certificate of incorporation or bylaws or other organizational documents of the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries.
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            (b) Except as set forth on Schedule 3.04(b) and except for (i)
applicable filings, if any, with the Commission pursuant to the Securities Act
or the Exchange Act, (ii) filings under state securities or "blue sky" laws and
(iii) filing of the Restated Certificate and Certificate of Designation, each
with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, no consent, authorization
or order of, or filing or registration with, any Governmental Authority or other
Person (including the stockholders of Pitney Bowes) is required to be obtained
or made by the Company, Pitney Bowes or any of their respective Subsidiaries for
the execution, delivery and performance of any of the Equity Documents, the
Registration Rights Agreement, the Subordinated Debt Agreement or the
consummation of the Transactions, except where the failure to obtain such
consents, authorizations or orders, or make such filings or registrations, would
not have or would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

            SECTION 3.05. Financial Statements. (a) The Company has made
available to the Purchaser the unaudited consolidated pro forma balance sheet
(taking into account the Internal Restructuring (which includes the Financing
Transactions), the PBGFS Contribution, the PBGFS Distribution, the Company
Contribution and $15,000,000 of expenses in the aggregate to be reimbursed by
the Company to Pitney Bowes and the Purchaser, but excluding the Interim
Warehouse Financing) (the "Unaudited Balance Sheet") as of December 31, 2004
attached hereto as Exhibit H and statements of operations (the "Statements of
Operations"), and cash flows (the "Cash Flows") of the Company and its
consolidated Subsidiaries (taking into account the Internal Restructuring (which
includes the Financing Transactions), the PBGFS Contribution, the PBGFS
Distribution, the Company Contribution and $15,000,000 of expenses in the
aggregate to be reimbursed by the Company to Pitney Bowes and the Purchaser, but
excluding the Interim Warehouse Financing) as of, and for the year ended,
December 31, 2004 (the Statements of Operations and the Cash Flows, together
with the Unaudited Balance Sheet, the "Unaudited Financial Statements"). The
Unaudited Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Company's accounting policies, principles, practices and methods consistently
applied, which policies are consistent with and comply with GAAP as of such date
and present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
positions and the results of operation and cash flows of the Company and its
consolidated Subsidiaries (subject to the absence of footnotes and other
presentation items and of normal year end adjustments).

            (b) When delivered to the Purchaser, the audited consolidated pro



forma balance sheet (the "Audited Balance Sheet") and statements of operations,
and cash flows of the Company and its consolidated Subsidiaries (taking into
account the Internal Restructuring (which includes the Financing Transactions),
the PBGFS Contribution, the PBGFS Distribution, the Company Contribution and
$15,000,000 of expenses in the aggregate to be reimbursed by the Company to
Pitney Bowes and the Purchaser, but excluding the Interim Warehouse Financing)
as of, and for the year ended, December 31, 2004 and related footnotes thereof
(the "Audited Financial Statements"), shall have been prepared in accordance
with the Company's accounting policies, principles, practices and methods
consistently applied, which policies are consistent with and comply with GAAP as
of such date and present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position and the results of operations and cash flows of the Company
and its consolidated Subsidiaries as of the date of the Audited Financial
Statements.

            SECTION 3.06. Material Adverse Change. Since December 31, 2004,
except as set forth on Schedule 3.06 or as contemplated by this Agreement and in
the Distribution
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Agreements, including the Transactions and the Internal Restructuring, (a) the
Company and its Subsidiaries have conducted the Businesses in the ordinary
course of business consistent with past practices in all material respects and
(b) nothing has occurred which has had, or would reasonably be expected to have
a Material Adverse Effect.

            SECTION 3.07. Assets. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.07, the
Company and its Subsidiaries own and have and, immediately following the
Distribution, will own and have, good and valid title to, or a valid leasehold
interest in, and, immediately following the Distribution will have, sufficient
rights to use, all of the properties and assets (real, personal or mixed,
tangible or intangible) reasonably necessary to conduct the Business, free and
clear of all Liens, except for Permitted Liens, and all of the assets reflected
in the Unauditied Financial Statements or the Audited Financial Statements,
other than those assets disposed of in the ordinary course of business
consistent with past practice. This Section 3.07 does not apply to Intellectual
Property (for which Section 3.08 is applicable).

            SECTION 3.08. Intellectual Property. (a) Immediately following the
Distribution, in accordance with the Separation and Distribution Agreement, the
Transition Services Agreement and the Intellectual Property Agreement, the
Company and its Subsidiaries will have sufficient rights to use the Intellectual
Property that is reasonably necessary to conduct the Business as currently
conducted and as currently contemplated to be conducted by the Company and its
Subsidiaries, as applicable, immediately after the Distribution (the "Company
Intellectual Property").

            (b) Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as granting to the
Company any license, whether express or implied, to use any Intellectual
Property owned or controlled by Pitney Bowes or conveying any other rights to
the Company in any Intellectual Property owned or controlled by Pitney Bowes.

            (c) Since January 1, 2003, to the knowledge of the Company, neither
the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has received written notification that
the conduct of the Business by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries has
infringed upon or violated the Intellectual Property rights of others in any
material respects, and to the knowledge of the Company no material Company
Intellectual Property is being used or enforced by the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries in a manner that would reasonably be expected to result in a
violation or infringement of the Intellectual Property rights of any Person or
the abandonment, cancellation, or unenforceability of any material Company
Intellectual Property.

            (d) Except as set forth on Schedule 3.08(d), the Company or one of
its Subsidiaries will, immediately following the Distribution, have good title
to each item of Company Intellectual Property material to the conduct of the
Business that is owned by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, after giving
effect to the transactions contemplated by the Distribution Agreements, free and
clear of any Liens other than Permitted Liens.

            (e) Since January 1, 2003, to the knowledge of the Company, there
have been no Suits decided, settled, pending, or, threatened against the
Business that involve claims concerning the validity, enforceability, ownership



or license or other right to use any Company Intellectual Property or Data that
is owned by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries.
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            (f) The Company and each of its Subsidiaries have timely made all
filings, payments and ownership recordations with the appropriate foreign and
domestic agencies required to maintain in subsistence all material Intellectual
Property that is owned by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries.

            (g) The Company and each of its Subsidiaries have taken all
reasonable measures to protect the secrecy and confidentiality of all material
trade secrets used or held for use in the Business.

            (h) To the knowledge of the Company, the conduct of the Business
does not require any license to any patent that Pitney Bowes licenses pursuant
to any patent cross license agreement previously entered into by Pitney Bowes
with any third party licensor.

            (i) The IT Systems that are used in the Business are adequate in all
material respects for their intended use and for the operation of the Business,
as currently operated and as currently contemplated to be operated by the
Company in the future, and are in good working condition (normal wear and tear
expected); provided, that this provision provides no warranty of non
interruption of operation.

            SECTION 3.09. Employee Benefit Plans. (a) Schedule 3.09(a)(i) sets
forth a list of all Employee Benefit Plans as of the date hereof. The Company
has delivered or made available to Purchaser complete and correct copies of each
Employee Benefit Plan, or written summaries of any unwritten material Employee
Benefit Plan. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.09(a)(ii) or as would not have
or would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect, no
Employee Benefit Plan provides health, life insurance or other welfare benefits
to retirees or other terminated employees of the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries, other than continuation coverage required by COBRA. Except as set
forth on Schedule 3.09(a)(iii) or as would not have or would not reasonably be
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect, each Employee Benefit Plan has been
operated in accordance with its terms, ERISA, the Code, and all other Applicable
Laws. There has been no "prohibited transaction" within the meaning of Section
406 of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Code involving any Employee Benefit Plan
except as would not have or would not reasonably be expected to have a Material
Adverse Effect. No Employee Benefit Plan that is or was subject to Section 302
of ERISA or Section 412 of the Code has incurred an accumulated funding
deficiency, whether or not waived except as would not have or would not
reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. There are no pending
or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened investigations or claims by the
IRS, Department of Labor, Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation or any other
governmental agency or any individual relating to any of the Employee Benefit
Plans. Neither the Company nor any ERISA Affiliate is required to contribute to
any "multiemployer plan" (as defined in Section 4001(a)(3) of ERISA) or has
withdrawn from any multiemployer plan where such withdrawal has resulted or
would result in any "withdrawal liability" (within the meaning of Section 4201
of ERISA) or "mass withdrawal liability" (within the meaning of PBGC Regulation
4219.2) that has not been fully paid. Except as set forth on Schedule
3.09(a)(iv) and except as would not have or would not reasonably be expected to
have a Material Adverse Effect, the consummation of the Transactions
contemplated by this Agreement will not increase any benefits or payments or
result in the acceleration or creation of any rights of any Person to benefits
under any Employee Benefit Plan or agreement (including but not limited to, the
acceleration of the vesting
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or exercisability of any stock options or the acceleration of the accrual or
vesting of any benefits under any Employee Benefit Plan or agreement). Except as
set forth on Schedule 3.09(a)(v) or as would not have or would not reasonably be
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect, no payment or benefit to be provided
to any employee of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries in connection with the
consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement is reasonably
expected to constitute an "excess parachute payment" within the meaning of
Section 280G of the Code.

            SECTION 3.10. Employees and Labor Relations. Except as set forth on



Schedule 3.10, as of the date hereof, neither the Company nor any of its
Subsidiaries is a party to any employment or collective bargaining agreement.
The Company has made available to the Purchaser complete and correct copies of
the agreements set forth on Schedule 3.10. To the knowledge of the Company, no
employee organizing efforts are pending with respect to nonunionized employees
of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries. There are no existing or, to the
knowledge of the Company, threatened labor strikes, work stoppages or slowdowns
affecting the Company or any of its Subsidiaries. There are no complaints,
charges, grievances, unfair labor practices, labor arbitration proceedings, or
claims against the Company or any of its Subsidiaries pending or to the
knowledge of the Company threatened in writing to be brought or filed, with any
governmental entity or arbitrator based on, arising out of, in connection with,
or otherwise relating to, the employment or termination of employment of any
individual by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, in each case, that would
have or would reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. The
Company and its Subsidiaries are in compliance with all laws governing the
employment of labor, including, but not limited to, all such laws relating to
wages, hours, collective bargaining, discrimination, civil rights, safety and
health, workers' compensation and the collection and payment of withholding
and/or Social Security taxes and similar taxes, except where noncompliance would
not have or would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.
No event giving rise to the requirement that notice be given to any employee of
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries under the Worker Adjustment and
Retraining Notification Act or under any similar state or local law has occurred
or been announced during the ninety (90)-day period ending on the date of this
Agreement or any longer period required by any local legislation.

            SECTION 3.11. No Undisclosed Material Liabilities. Except as
disclosed on Schedule 3.11, there are no liabilities of the Company and its
Subsidiaries (taking into effect the Internal Restructuring (including the
Financing Transactions), the PBGFS Contribution, the PBGFS Distribution and the
Company Contribution) of any kind whatsoever, whether accrued, contingent,
absolute, determined, determinable or otherwise, other than (a) liabilities
disclosed, reflected or reserved against in the Unaudited Balance Sheet or the
Audited Balance Sheet, as applicable, (b) liabilities incurred in the ordinary
course consistent with past practice since December 31, 2004, (c) liabilities
arising under the Equity Documents and the Distribution Agreements, (d)
liabilities not required by GAAP to be recognized or disclosed on the Unaudited
Balance Sheet or the Audited Balance Sheet or the notes thereto, as applicable,
(e) liabilities to be retained or assumed by Pitney Bowes and from which the
Company shall be released, in accordance with the Distribution Agreements, (f)
Tax liabilities and (g) such other liabilities as would not have or would not
reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.
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            SECTION 3.12. Compliance with Laws. The Business, the Company and
its Subsidiaries are in compliance in all material respects with all Applicable
Laws, except for (a) instances of noncompliance that have not had and would not
reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect, (b) compliance with
Environmental Laws (as to which certain representations and warranties are made
pursuant to Section 3.15) and (c) compliance with Tax laws (as to which certain
representations and warranties are made pursuant to Section 3.17).

            SECTION 3.13. Litigation. Except as disclosed on Schedule 3.13,
there are no (a) outstanding Suits or Governmental Orders against or affecting
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, (b) proceedings pending or, to the
knowledge of the Company, threatened against or affecting the Business, the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries or (c) investigations by any Governmental
Authority that are, to the knowledge of the Company, pending or threatened
against or affecting the Business, the Company or any of its Subsidiaries that,
in any case would have or would reasonably be expected to have a Material
Adverse Effect.

            SECTION 3.14. Compliance with Constituent Documents. Neither the
Company nor any of its Subsidiaries are in breach or violation of or in default
in the performance or observance of any material term or provision of, and no
event has occurred which, with lapse of time or action by a third party, would
result in a material default under the respective articles or certificate of
incorporation, bylaws or similar organizational instruments of such entities.

            SECTION 3.15. Environmental Matters. Except as set forth on Schedule
3.15 and except as would not have or would not reasonably be expected to have a
Material Adverse Effect, (a) the Business and the operations of the Company are



conducted in material compliance with all applicable Environmental Laws, (b) the
Company has obtained and is in material compliance with all material Permits or
authorizations that are required under applicable Environmental Laws to operate
the facilities, assets and Business of the Company, (c) no Environmental Claims
have been asserted against the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, nor does the
Company have knowledge or notice of any threatened or pending Environmental
Claim against the Company or its Subsidiaries and (d) there has been no Release
(i) at any of the properties owned or operated by the Company or its
Subsidiaries or (ii) as a result of any activity of the Business.

            SECTION 3.16. Real Property. (a) Schedule 3.16 contains a list of
each interest in Real Property relating to the Business that is (i) owned by the
Company as of the date hereof and describing the type of interest therein held
by the Company and whether the Company leases such owned Real Property and (ii)
leased, subleased or otherwise occupied or utilized by the Company, as lessee,
sublessee, franchisee or licensee, as of the date hereof and describing the type
of interest therein held by such Company (a "Company Lease") except, in each
case, to interests in Real Property in connection with a Financing.

            (b) The Real Property described in clause (a)(i) of this Section
3.16 is owned by the Company, free and clear of all Liens, except for Permitted
Liens.

            (c) The Company's interest under each Company Lease is free and
clear of all Liens, except for Permitted Liens.
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            SECTION 3.17. Taxes. The Company and its Subsidiaries have timely
filed or caused to be timely filed all material tax returns, reports, statements
and forms for Taxes ("Tax Returns") required to be filed under the Code, or
applicable state, local or foreign Tax laws and to the knowledge of the Company
such Tax Returns are true, correct and complete. To the knowledge of the
Company, all Taxes required to be paid with respect to the periods covered by
the Tax Returns have been paid in full, except for Taxes the nonpayment of which
are not, in the aggregate, material. Except as described in Schedule 3.17, (a)
no Tax Liens have been filed and no claims are being asserted with respect to
any Taxes of the Company, except for Liens and claims (i) relating to the
Specified Leases or (ii) which are not, in the aggregate, material, (b) no Tax
examination or audit of the Company or including the Company is currently being
conducted by any taxing authority which examination or audit is reasonably
expected to result in an additional Tax liability of in excess of $50,000, (c)
the Company has complied with all Applicable Laws, rules and regulations
relating to the payment and withholding of material Taxes, (d) except for the
Tax Sharing Agreement and except for tax indemnity provisions contained in the
Financing Documents, the Company is not a party to or otherwise bound by any
agreement or understanding under which the Company has obligations for the
allocation and sharing of material Taxes that will survive the Distribution
(which for the avoidance of doubt, does not include agreements or understandings
that do not relate solely or primarily to Tax Maters but that include tax
indemnities or in which payment of non-Tax items are adjusted with reference to
Taxes), (e) the Company is not required to include in income any adjustment
pursuant to Section 481(a) of the Code, (f) neither the Company nor any
Subsidiary is a party to any lease made pursuant to Section 168(f)(8) of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as amended, (g) other than the Specified Leases,
the Company has not entered into any transaction described in Treasury
Regulation Section 1.6011-4(b)(2), (3) or (4) and (h) there has been no
resolution of any Tax audit or examination, or any decision, judgment, decree or
order of any court, or the execution of any closing agreement, IRS Form 870 or
870-AD (or successor form), or the execution of any other agreement with any
Taxing authority that changes items of income or deductions relating to a
Financing.

            SECTION 3.18. Financings. (a) Schedule 3.18(a)(i) sets forth a list
of all Large Ticket Financings, including the name of the Obligor and a
statement of cash flows related to each Large Ticket Financing. Schedule
3.18(a)(ii) sets forth a list of all Small Ticket Financings, including a
statement of cash flows related to the Small Ticket Financings in the aggregate.
Each Financing has been administered substantially in accordance with its
Financing Documents.

            (b) Except as set forth on Schedule 3.18(b)(i), to the knowledge of
the Company, no material default or material event of default that has been
declared by the Company as such (as defined in the applicable Financing



Documents relating to the Large Ticket Financings) is continuing (i) relating to
any payment obligations with respect to any Large Ticket Financing or (ii)
relating to any obligations other than payment obligations with respect to such
Large Ticket Financing. To the knowledge of the Company, no valid offset,
defenses or counterclaims may be asserted against the Company or its
Subsidiaries, the Purchaser or its assigns with respect to any Large Ticket
Financing and no Suit or any legal proceeding, administrative, judicial or
otherwise has been brought by or against the Company or its Subsidiaries in
connection therewith. Schedule 3.18(b)(ii) sets forth a report of payment
delinquency with respect to payment obligations of the Obligors under the Small
Ticket Financings as of the date set forth thereon. Except as set forth on
Schedule 3.18(b)(ii), to the knowledge of the Company,
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no default or event of default that has been declared by the Company as such (as
defined in the applicable Financing Documents relating to the Small Ticket
Financings) is continuing with respect to the Small Ticket Financings, which, in
the aggregate, would have or would reasonably be expected to have a Material
Adverse Effect.

            (c) Each Financing Document to which the Company or one of its
Subsidiaries is a party (i) constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation
of the Company or such Subsidiary, as applicable, and, to the knowledge of the
Company, each Obligor thereunder; and (ii) is enforceable in accordance with its
respective terms, subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent transfer,
reorganization, moratorium and similar laws of general applicability relating to
or affecting creditors' rights and to general equity principles. There are no
oral agreements or understandings, which modify or amend the terms of the
Financing Documents.

            (d) With respect to each Financing, either (i) the Company or a
Subsidiary of the Company is the legal title owner of the property financed
thereunder and has good title to such property free and clear of all Liens other
than Permitted Liens and other Liens permitted under the Financings Documents
relating to such Financing, subject to the purchase options of the Obligors
under the applicable Financing Documents or (ii) the Company or a Subsidiary of
the Company has filed all Uniform Commercial Code financing statements
(including all amendments) with respect to the Large Ticket Financings as are
necessary to create a first priority security interest in such property.

            (e) In connection with each Financing, neither the Company nor its
Subsidiaries have made any representations or warranties to the Obligors or to
third party purchasers with respect to any manufacturer warranties, including
product performance standards of any financed property.

            (f) Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has maintenance,
product liability, manufacturer warranty, or equipment servicing obligations in
connection with the property financed under any Financing, or pursuant to any
Financing Documents relating thereto, in each case, during the term of such
Financing.

            (g) Except as set forth on Schedule 3.18(g), to the knowledge of the
Company, no Obligor is the subject of any bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding.

            (h) The Company's Financing Files pertaining to each Financing are
complete in all material respects to the Company's interest in such Financing.

            SECTION 3.19. Financing Policies. Schedule 3.19 sets forth a
description of the policies and practices of the Company and its Subsidiaries
used by the Company and its Subsidiaries in the origination, management and
administration of the Small Ticket Financings (the "Financing Policies"). Since
January 1, 2002, the Company and each of its Subsidiaries have utilized policies
and procedures substantially similar to the Financing Policies in the
origination, management and administration of the Small Ticket Financings.
Except as set forth on Schedule 3.19, each Small Ticket Financing has been
authorized, collateralized, guaranteed, documented and administered
substantially in accordance with the Financing Policies.
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            SECTION 3.20. Contracts. (a) Schedule 3.20 sets forth the following
categories of Contracts (excluding the Financing Documents) which are material



to the Company and its Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, which solely relate to
the Business and to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is a party or
by which the Company, any of its Subsidiaries, or any of their respective assets
is in any way affected or bound, including all material amendments and
supplements thereto and modifications thereof ("Material Contracts"):

            (i) any Contract (A) involving the obligation of the Company to
      purchase products or services pursuant to which the aggregate of payments
      to become due from the Company is equal to or exceeds $1,000,000 in any
      calendar year or $2,000,000 in the aggregate, and which is not terminable
      on ninety (90) calendar days' or less notice or (B) any Contract which
      involves the obligation for a payment to be made, or expected to be made,
      to the Company in excess of $1,000,000 or pursuant to which payments have
      been made to the Company during the six months prior to the date hereof in
      excess of $1,000,000, either pursuant to a Contract with a customer of the
      Company or pursuant to any other Contract;

            (ii) (A) any finder, promotion, sales, advertising, agency,
      consultant, lobbying, franchise or similar Contract or (B) any other
      Contract, in each case, requiring the payment of any commissions or other
      similar payments or commitments by the Company in excess of $1,000,000 per
      calendar year;

            (iii) any Contract to purchase or otherwise acquire or sell or
      otherwise dispose of any interest in Real Property for consideration in
      excess of $1,000,000;

            (iv) any commitment of the Company to make a capital expenditure or
      to purchase a capital asset of at least $1,000,000;

            (v) any Contract that contains a covenant not to compete or any
      other agreement or obligation that materially limits or will materially
      limit the Company, any Subsidiary of the Company, and following
      consummation of the Transactions the Purchaser, from engaging in any
      business related to the Industry;

            (vi) any Lease or similar agreement under which the Company is the
      lessee, or pursuant to which the Company holds or uses, any machinery,
      equipment, vehicle or other tangible personal property owned by any third
      Person for an annual rent in excess of $250,000;

            (vii) any Contract establishing or relating to a partnership, joint
      venture, strategic alliance, vendor financing arrangement or program or
      exclusivity, consortium or other similar arrangement;

            (viii) any asset purchase agreements, stock purchase agreements and
      other acquisition or divestiture agreements and similar Contracts relating
      to the sale, lease or disposal of any material properties or assets of the
      Company, for consideration in excess of $500,000;

            (ix) any Contract relating to Indebtedness in excess of $1,000,000;
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            (x) any Contract under which Company has directly or indirectly
      guaranteed any liabilities in excess of $1,000,000;

            (xi) any outstanding or pending customer bid or proposal or any
      outstanding customer option relating to any Contract in excess of
      $500,000;

            (xii) any Contract containing any "change in control" provision (or
      similar provisions);

            (xiii) any Contract relating to any Suit or Governmental Order which
      involves any unpaid liability of the Company in excess of $1,000,000;

            (xiv) (A) any employment Contract or (B) any agreement with any
      executive officer or other key employee of the Company, including such
      Contracts, the benefits of which are contingent, or the terms of which are
      materially altered, upon the occurrence of a transaction involving the
      Company or of the consummation of the Transactions contemplated by this
      Agreement, providing any compensation guarantee of more than $100,000 per
      calendar year;



            (xv) any Contract granting a right to first refusal or first
      negotiation with respect to the sale of any portion of the equity of the
      Company or of all or any material portion of Company's assets (including
      the equity interests in any Subsidiary of the Company);

            (xvi) any Contract under which the Company has agreed to indemnify
      any third Person with respect to, or to share, the Tax liability of any
      third Person other than (i) Contracts with suppliers or customers in the
      ordinary course of business in which no payments on account of Tax
      liabilities have been made or incurred or are reasonably expected to be
      made or incurred and (ii) the Tax Sharing Agreement; and

            (xvii) all commitments and agreements to enter into any of the
      foregoing.

            For purposes of this Section 3.20(a), all references to the Company
shall include any Subsidiary of the Company unless the context otherwise
provides.

            (b) Except as set forth on Schedule 3.20, all Material Contracts are
legally valid and binding obligations of the Company or a Subsidiary of the
Company, as the case may be, and, to the knowledge of the Company, represent
valid and binding obligations of the other respective parties thereto, subject
to bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent transfer, reorganization, moratorium and
similar laws of general applicability relating to or affecting creditors' rights
and to general equity principles. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.20 and
except as would not have or not reasonably be expected to have a Material
Adverse Effect, there are no defaults or breaches by the Company or any
Subsidiary of the Company, as the case may be, thereunder, and there are no
defaults or breaches by other parties thereunder.

            SECTION 3.21. Certain Business Practices. None of the Company, any
Subsidiary of the Company nor, to the knowledge of the Company, any of their
respective directors, officers, agents or employees (in their capacities as
such) have (a) used any funds for
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unlawful contributions, gifts, entertainment or other unlawful expenses relating
to political activity or (b) made any unlawful payment to any foreign or
domestic government officials or employees or to any foreign or domestic
political parties or campaigns or violated any provision of the Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act of 1977, as amended.

            SECTION 3.22. Insurance. To the knowledge of the Company, all
material insurance policies maintained by, or for the benefit of, the Company
and its Subsidiaries: (a) are in full force and effect, (b) are sufficient for
compliance by the Company and its Subsidiaries with all requirements of
Applicable Law, and (c) are valid and outstanding policies and enforceable
against the insurer. To the knowledge of the Company, each of the Company and
its Subsidiaries has complied in all material respects with the terms of such
policies.

            SECTION 3.23. Licenses and Permits; Governmental Notices. (a)
Schedule 3.23 sets forth a list of all material Permits of or with any
Governmental Authority, which are held by the Company and its Subsidiaries, that
are necessary under Applicable Law to conduct the Business and to own and
operate their respective assets and such material Permits are valid and in full
force and effect, except where the failure to have such Permits would not have
or would not be reasonably likely to have a Material Adverse Effect. No material
defaults or violations exist or have been recorded in respect of any such Permit
of the Company and its Subsidiaries. There are no proceedings pending, or, to
the knowledge of the Company, threatened, seeking the revocation, limitation or
non-renewal of any such material Permits.

            (b) Since December 31, 2002, except as set forth on Schedule 3.23,
none of the Company and its Subsidiaries have received any written notice
regarding, and have not been made a party to, any proceeding brought by any
Governmental Authority alleging that (i) any such Person is in, or may be in,
violation in any material respect of any Applicable Law or Governmental Order,
(ii) any such Person must change in any material respect any of its business
practices to remain in compliance with any Applicable Law or Governmental Order,
(iii) any such Person has failed to obtain any material Permit required for the



conduct of its business or (iv) any such Person is in default under or in
violation of any material Permit.

            SECTION 3.24. Affiliated Transactions. Immediately following the
Distribution Date, there will be no material Contracts by and between the
Company and/or its Subsidiaries, or officers or directors of the Company (and/or
any family members of such officers or directors), on the one hand, and Pitney
Bowes and/or its Subsidiaries, or officers or directors of Pitney Bowes (and/or
any family members of such officers or directors), on the other hand, other than
the Distribution Agreements and any and all Contracts that relate to the
Internal Restructuring (including the Financing Transactions), the PBGFS
Contribution, the PBGFS Distribution and the Company Contribution and survive
the Distribution in accordance with the provisions of the Separation and
Distribution Agreement.

            SECTION 3.25. Vote Required. The affirmative vote of the holders of
a majority of the outstanding shares of Common Stock is the only vote of the
holders of any class or series of Company Capital Stock or Pitney Bowes Capital
Stock necessary to approve the Transactions
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contemplated hereby and approve and adopt the Restated Certificate, the Amended
Bylaws or the Certificate of Designation.

            SECTION 3.26. Representations and Warranties

            (a) Except for the representations and warranties expressly set
forth in this Agreement, the Purchaser acknowledges, for itself and on behalf of
its Representatives, that neither the Company nor any of its Representatives or
any other Person makes any other express or implied representation or warranty
with respect to the Company, the Business, the Transactions, the documents
related hereto or otherwise or with respect to any other information provided to
the Purchaser or any of its Representatives, whether on behalf of the Company or
such other Persons, including, as to the operation, probable success, prospects,
projections or profitability of the Company or the Business.

            (b) During the period between the date hereof and the Distribution
Date, the Company shall, from time to time, amend or add Schedules, to make such
additions to, or modifications of such Schedules, as are necessary to make the
information set forth therein true, accurate and complete in all material
respects on the date of this Agreement, the Tranche I Closing Date and the
Distribution Date, as applicable. Such amendments, additions or modifications
shall be specified in a written notice delivered to the Purchaser (an "Update
Notice"), which shall identify the Schedules affected by such amendments,
additions or modifications and enclose such amended Schedules. Subject to
Section 3.26(c) below, upon delivery of the Update Notice, such Schedules shall
thereupon be deemed amended to reflect such amendments, additions and
modifications and the truth and accuracy of the representations and warranties
of the Company contained in this Agreement shall, for purposes of determining
whether any breach thereof shall have occurred, be determined by reference to
such Schedules as so amended; provided, that such amendments, additions or
modifications shall not be deemed to cure any breach for purposes of this
Agreement, except as set forth in Section 3.26(c).

            (c) The Purchaser shall, within thirty (30) calendar days of the
delivery of the Update Notice, have the right to terminate this Agreement
pursuant to Section 8.04(a)(ix) in connection with any breach or violation of
any representation or warranty on the part of the Company that occurred on or
prior to the delivery date of the Update Notice and meets the standard set forth
in Sections 7.02(a) and 7.04(a) and follows the procedure in Section
8.04(a)(ix), as a result of the information disclosed in such Update Notice. If
the Purchaser does not exercise such termination right within the thirty (30)
day-period, (i) the Purchaser shall be deemed to waive any such breach or
violation of the Agreement and to waive its right to terminate this Agreement
with respect thereto and (ii) the Update Notice shall be deemed to cure any such
breach or violation for purposes of this Agreement.

                                   ARTICLE IV

                 Representations and Warranties of the Purchaser

            The Purchaser hereby represents and warrants to the Company on the
date hereof, on the Tranche I Closing Date and on the Distribution Date, as



follows:
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            SECTION 4.01. Organization; Authorization; Enforceability. The
Purchaser is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the
laws of the State of Delaware and has all requisite power and authority to own
its properties and assets and to carry on its business as it is now being
conducted and as currently proposed to be conducted after the Tranche I Closing.
The Purchaser has the power to execute, deliver and perform its obligations
under each of the Equity Documents, the Equity Commitment Letter, the
Registration Rights Agreement and the Subordinated Debt Agreement and has taken
all necessary action to authorize the execution, delivery and performance by it
of such Equity Documents, the Equity Commitment Letter, the Registration Rights
Agreement and the Subordinated Debt Agreement and to consummate the
Transactions. No other proceedings on the part of the Purchaser are necessary
for such authorization, execution, delivery and consummation. The Purchaser has
duly executed and delivered this Agreement and the Equity Commitment Letter and,
on the Tranche I Closing Date, the Purchaser will have duly executed and
delivered the Escrow Agreement and the Registration Rights Agreement to be
executed and delivered by it on or prior to the Tranche I Closing Date and, on
the Distribution Date, the Purchaser will have duly executed and delivered the
Subordinated Debt Agreement. This Agreement constitutes, and the Equity
Commitment Letter, the Escrow Agreement, the Registration Rights Agreement and
the Subordinated Debt Agreement to which the Purchaser is a party, when executed
and delivered by the Purchaser, will constitute, a legal, valid and binding
obligation of the Purchaser, enforceable against the Purchaser in accordance
with its terms, subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent transfer,
reorganization, moratorium and similar laws of general applicability relating to
or affecting creditors' rights and to general equity principles.

            SECTION 4.02. Private Placement. (a) The Purchaser understands that
(i) the offering and sale of the Shares by the Company is intended to be exempt
from registration under the Securities Act pursuant to Section 4(2) thereof and
(ii) there is no existing public or other market for the Shares.

            (b) The Purchaser (i) is a "qualified institutional buyer", as such
term is defined in Rule 144A under the Securities Act or (ii) is an "accredited
investor", as such term is defined in Rule 501(a) of Regulation D under the
Securities Act.

            (c) The Purchaser is acquiring the Shares to be acquired hereunder
for its own account (or for accounts over which it exercises investment
authority), for investment and not with a view to the resale or distribution
thereof in violation of any securities law.

            (d) The Purchaser understands that the Shares will be issued in a
transaction exempt from the registration or qualification requirements of the
Securities Act and applicable state securities laws, and that such Shares must
be held indefinitely unless a subsequent disposition thereof is registered or
qualified under the Securities Act and such laws or is exempt from such
registration or qualification.

            (e) The Purchaser (i) has been furnished with or has had full access
to all the information that it considers necessary or appropriate to make an
informed investment decision with respect to the Shares and that it has
requested from the Company, (ii) has had an opportunity to discuss with
management of the Company the intended Business and financial affairs of the
Company and to obtain information (to the extent the Company possessed such
information
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or could acquire it without unreasonable effort or expense) necessary to verify
any information furnished to it or to which it had access, (iii) can bear the
economic risk of (x) an investment in the Shares indefinitely and (y) a total
loss in respect of such investment and (iv) has such knowledge and experience in
business and financial matters so as to enable it to understand and evaluate the
risks of and form an investment decision with respect to its investment in the
Shares and to protect its own interest in connection with such investment.

            SECTION 4.03. No Violation; Consents. (a) Subject to the
governmental filings and other matters referred to in Section 4.03(b), the



execution, delivery and performance by the Purchaser of each of the Equity
Documents, the Equity Commitment Letter, the Registration Rights Agreement and
the Subordinated Debt Agreement and the consummation by the Purchaser of the
Transactions do not and will not contravene any Applicable Law, except for any
such contravention that would not have and would not reasonably be expected to
have a material adverse effect on the ability of the Purchaser to timely perform
its obligations under the Equity Documents, the Equity Commitment Letter, the
Registration Rights Agreement and the Subordinated Debt Agreement. The
execution, delivery and performance by the Purchaser of each of the Equity
Documents, the Equity Commitment Letter, the Registration Rights Agreement and
the Subordinated Debt Agreement and the consummation of the Transactions (i)
will not (A) violate, result in a breach of or constitute (with or without due
notice or lapse of time or both) a default (or give rise to any right of
termination, cancellation or acceleration) under any Contract to which the
Purchaser is party or by which the Purchaser is bound or to which any of its
assets is subject or (B) result in the creation or imposition of any Lien upon
any of the assets of the Purchaser, except for any such violations, breaches,
defaults or Liens that would not have or would not reasonably be expected to
have a material adverse effect on the ability of the Purchaser to timely perform
its obligations under this Agreement and (ii) will not conflict with or violate
any provision of the certificate of formation or operating agreement (or similar
agreement) or other governing documents of the Purchaser.

            (b) Except for applicable filings, if any, with the Commission
pursuant to the Exchange Act, no consent, authorization or order of, or filing
or registration with, any Governmental Authority or other Person is required to
be obtained or made by the Purchaser for the execution, delivery and performance
of any of the Equity Documents, the Equity Commitment Letter, the Registration
Rights Agreement, the Subordinated Debt Agreement or the consummation of any of
the Transactions, except where the failure to obtain such consents,
authorizations or orders, or make such filings or registrations, would not have
or would not reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on the
ability of the Purchaser to timely perform its obligations under the Equity
Documents, the Equity Commitment Letter, the Registration Rights Agreement and
the Subordinated Debt Agreement.

            SECTION 4.04. Litigation. There are no (a) outstanding Suits or
Governmental Orders against or affecting the Purchaser or any of its
Subsidiaries, (b) proceedings pending or, to the knowledge of the Purchaser,
threatened against or affecting the Purchaser or any of its Subsidiaries or (c)
investigations by any Governmental Authority that are, to the knowledge of the
Purchaser, pending or threatened against or affecting the Purchaser or any of
its Subsidiaries that, in any case would have or would reasonably be expected to
have a material adverse effect on the ability of the Purchaser to timely perform
its obligations under the Equity Documents and the Subordinated Debt Agreement.
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            SECTION 4.05. Financing. The Purchaser has on call and will have on
the Tranche I Closing Date available funds sufficient to (a) consummate the
purchase of the Tranche I Stock to be purchased by it on the Tranche I Closing
Date and (b) consummate the purchase of the Tranche II Stock to be purchased by
it on the Tranche II Closing Date.

            SECTION 4.06. Ownership of Shares. The Purchaser does not, and its
Affiliates do not, own, directly or indirectly, or have any option or right to
acquire, any securities of Pitney Bowes or the Company other than the Shares
being purchased by the Purchaser hereunder.

            SECTION 4.07. Future Acquisitions. The Purchaser has no plan or
intention to acquire or to participate in a plan or arrangement to acquire,
directly or indirectly, 50% or more of the total voting power or total fair
market value (as such terms are interpreted for purposes of Section 355 of the
Code) of all shares of outstanding Capital Stock of the Company.

            SECTION 4.08. Future Dispositions. The Purchaser has no plan or
intention to sell or transfer or to participate in a plan or arrangement to sell
or transfer any Capital Stock of the Company to a party participating in a plan
or arrangement to acquire, directly or indirectly, 50% or more of the total
voting power or total fair market value (as such terms are interpreted for
purposes of Section 355 of the Code) of all shares of outstanding Capital Stock
of the Company.

            SECTION 4.09. Conversion of the Non-Voting Preferred Stock. The



Purchaser has no plan, intention or formal or informal understanding to convert
the Non-Voting Preferred Stock it will purchase in accordance with the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

            SECTION 4.10. HSR. The "ultimate parent entity" (as defined in the
HSR Act) of the Purchaser will not have total assets or annual net sales of
$10,700,000 or more (as calculated in accordance with the HSR Act) as of the
Tranche I Closing Date.

            SECTION 4.11. Representations and Warranties. Except for the
representations and warranties expressly set forth in this Agreement, the
Company acknowledges, for itself and on behalf of its Representatives, that
neither the Purchaser nor any of its Representatives or any other Person makes
any other express or implied representation or warranty with respect to the
Purchaser, the Transactions, the documents related hereto or otherwise or with
respect to any other information provided to the Company or any of its
Representatives, whether on behalf of the Purchaser or such other Persons.

                                   ARTICLE V

                            Covenants of the Company

            SECTION 5.01. Compliance with Conditions; Commercially Reasonable
Efforts. The Company shall use all commercially reasonable efforts to cause all
conditions precedent to the obligations of the Company and the Purchaser to be
satisfied. Upon the terms and subject to the conditions of this Agreement, the
Company shall use all commercially reasonable efforts to take, or cause to be
taken, all action, and to do, or cause to be done, all things necessary, proper
or advisable consistent with Applicable Law to consummate and make effective in
the most expeditious manner practicable the Tranche I Issuance and the Tranche
II Issuance in accordance
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with the terms of the Equity Documents, the Restated Certificate, the
Certificate of Designation and the Amended Bylaws.

            SECTION 5.02. Access to Books and Records

            (a) The Company shall (i) afford to the Purchaser and its
Representatives reasonable access during normal business hours throughout the
period prior to the Tranche II Closing Date (or the earlier termination of this
Agreement pursuant to Section 8.04) to the properties, books, Contracts and
records related to the Business and, during such period, shall, upon request,
furnish as soon as reasonably practicable to the Purchaser all other information
concerning the Business as the Purchaser may reasonably request; provided, that
(x) such access shall not interfere with the day-to-day operations of the
Company and its Subsidiaries and (y) no investigation or receipt of information
pursuant to this Section 5.02 shall affect any representation or warranty of the
Company or the conditions to the obligations of the Purchaser, (ii) provide to
the Purchaser copies of the execution copies of the Distribution Agreements
(other than the Tax Sharing Agreement) and the Rights Agreement concurrently
with the execution thereof and in no event later than five (5) Business Days
before the Tranche I Closing Date and (iii) shall provide to the Purchaser
copies of the execution copies of the Tax Sharing Agreement on the Distribution
Date.

            (b) All requests pursuant to this Section 5.02 shall be made to the
Persons designated from time to time by the Company for this purpose, who shall
initially be the individuals listed on Schedule 5.02.

            SECTION 5.03. Consents and Approvals. Except as set forth on
Schedule 5.03, the Company (a) shall use all commercially reasonable efforts to
obtain all necessary consents, waivers, authorizations and approvals of all
Governmental Authorities and of all other Persons required in connection with
the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement or the consummation of
the Transactions by the Company and (b) shall diligently assist and cooperate
with the Purchaser in preparing and filing all documents required to be
submitted by the Purchaser to any Governmental Authority in connection with the
issuances pursuant to this Agreement (which assistance and cooperation shall
include timely furnishing to the Purchaser all information concerning the
Company and its Subsidiaries that counsel to the Purchaser reasonably determines
is required to be included in such documents or would be helpful in obtaining
any such required consent, waiver, authorization or approval).



            SECTION 5.04. Certificate of Incorporation, Certification of
Designation and Bylaws. On or prior to the Tranche I Closing Date, the Company
shall (a) file the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation
substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit I with the Secretary of
State of the State of Delaware pursuant to Sections 242 and 245 of the Delaware
General Corporation Law (the "Restated Certificate"), (b) adopt the Amended
Bylaws substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit J (the "Amended
Bylaws") and (c) file the Certificate of Designation and the certificate of
designation to be filed in accordance with the Rights Agreement with the
Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, each pursuant to Section 151(g) of
the Delaware General Corporation Law.
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            SECTION 5.05. Use of Proceeds. The Company shall use the proceeds
from the issuance of the Shares for payment of expenses incurred in connection
with the Transactions, the PBGFS Distribution and the Distribution and for
working capital and general corporate purposes. The Company shall hold the
proceeds from the Tranche I Issuance until the Distribution is consummated in
accordance with the terms of the Separation and Distribution Agreement.

            SECTION 5.06. Board of Directors. (a) On the Tranche I Closing Date,
each of the directors of the Company (other than Keith Williamson or his duly
appointed successor who shall be serving as a member of the Board of Directors
of the Company at such time) shall resign from the Board of Directors of the
Company and each of the individuals designated on Schedule 5.06 as directors of
the Board of Directors of the Company shall be appointed or elected (subject to
reasonably satisfactory background checks and the individuals' willingness to
serve) to the applicable class of the Board of Directors of the Company as
specified on Schedule 5.06 (the "Initial Directors"). The term for each of the
Initial Directors shall be as provided for in the Restated Certificate and the
Amended Bylaws.

            (b) On the Distribution Date, the Board of Directors of the Company
shall be comprised of seven (7) directors.

            (c) Upon the Tranche II Stock Issuance, the Purchaser, as holder of
the Tranche II Stock, shall have the right to designate and elect one (1)
director to Class III of the Board of Directors of the Company in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the Certificate of Designation (the "Preferred
Director").

            SECTION 5.07. No Solicitation of Other Offers. (a) The Company and
its Affiliates and their respective Representatives have ceased any activities,
discussions or negotiations with any Person or Persons other than the Purchaser
or Persons acting on its behalf that were conducted prior to December 24, 2004
with respect to any Acquisition Proposal.

            (b) The Company and its Subsidiaries shall not take, and shall use
commercially reasonable efforts to cause their respective Representatives and
Affiliates (including Pitney Bowes) not to take, any action to (i) knowingly
solicit the making or submission of any Acquisition Proposal or (ii) knowingly
initiate or participate in any discussions or negotiations with any Person
(other than the Purchaser) in furtherance of any proposal that constitutes or
could reasonably be expected to lead to any Acquisition Proposal; provided,
however, that the Company and the Representatives, in response to a bona fide
unsolicited proposal that constitutes an Acquisition Proposal, may participate
in discussions or negotiations with, or furnish or disclose any non-public
information to, any Person which makes such Acquisition Proposal if (A) either
the Board of Directors of the Company or the Board of Directors of Pitney Bowes
reasonably determines in good faith, after consultation with its independent
financial advisors, that such Acquisition Proposal is, or may reasonably be
expected to lead to, a Superior Proposal and (B) the Company shall have provided
(1) prompt notice to the Purchaser of its intent or Pitney Bowes, intent to take
such action, the identity of the Person making the Acquisition Proposal and the
material terms and conditions of such proposal and (2) received from such Person
an executed confidentiality agreement in reasonably customary form on terms not
in the aggregate materially more favorable to such Person than the terms
contained in the Confidentiality Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
nothing in this Section 5.07 or any
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other provision of this Agreement shall prohibit the Company, its
Representatives or the Board of Directors of the Company or the Board of
Directors of Pitney Bowes from making any disclosure to the stockholders of the
Company and Pitney Bowes as, in the good faith judgment of the Board of
Directors of the Company or the Board of Directors of Pitney Bowes is required
under Applicable Law or that the failure to make such disclosure is reasonably
likely to cause the Board of Directors of the Company or the Board of Directors
of Pitney Bowes to violate its respective fiduciary duties.

            (c) The Board of Directors of the Company or the Board of Directors
of Pitney Bowes (or any committee thereof) shall not (i) approve or recommend,
or propose to approve or recommend, any Acquisition Proposal or (ii) cause the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries to enter into and approve any letter of
intent, agreement in principle or similar agreement relating to any Acquisition
Proposal; provided, however, that the Board of Directors of the Company or the
Board of Directors of Pitney Bowes may recommend to their respective
stockholders an Acquisition Proposal if (x) the Board of Directors of the
Company or the Board of Directors of Pitney Bowes, has received an Acquisition
Proposal that the Board of Directors of the Company or the Board of Directors of
Pitney Bowes has determined in good faith, is a Superior Proposal and has
complied with its obligations under this Section 5.07 and (y) the Company has
notified the Purchaser in writing of the terms of the Superior Proposal and of
its or Pitney Bowes, intent to take such action, and has taken into account any
revised proposal made by the Purchaser to the Company within five (5) Business
Days after delivery to the Purchaser of such notice and again has determined in
good faith that such Acquisition Proposal (as if the same may have been modified
or amended) remains a Superior Proposal.

            (d) In addition to the obligations set forth in Section 5.07(c), the
Company shall as promptly as practicable (and in any event within two (2)
Business Days) advise the Purchaser of any request for information with respect
to any Acquisition Proposal or of any Acquisition Proposal, or any inquiry with
respect to any Acquisition Proposal, including the terms and conditions of such
Acquisition Proposal (but not modifications to terms and conditions proposed
during discussions or negotiations permitted by this Section 5.07). The Company
shall as promptly as practicable provide to the Purchaser any non-public
information concerning the Company provided to any other Person in connection
with any Acquisition Proposal or any inquiry with respect to any Acquisition
Proposal, which was not previously provided or made available to the Purchaser.

            (e) Nothing in this Agreement shall prohibit or restrict the Board
of Directors of the Company or the Board of Directors of Pitney Bowes from
amending, modifying or withdrawing from the Transactions or this Agreement to
the extent that the Board of Directors of the Company or the Board of Directors
of Pitney Bowes determines in good faith that such action is necessary in order
for the Board of Directors of the Company or the Board of Directors of Pitney
Bowes to comply with their respective fiduciary duties to the Company's
stockholders or Pitney Bowes's stockholders, respectively.

            SECTION 5.08. Confidentiality; Information. (a) The Company and each
of its Subsidiaries shall and shall cause their respective Representatives to
keep all information received by it or them in connection with the negotiations
and execution of this Agreement and the consummation of the Transactions from
the Purchaser or its Representatives confidential, and
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the Company shall not, without the Purchaser's prior written consent, disclose
such information in any manner whatsoever, in whole or in part, except (i) for
disclosure to the Representatives of the Company, its Subsidiaries and Pitney
Bowes who have a need to know such information for the purpose of assisting in
the consummation of the Transactions, (ii) to the extent, in the sole judgment
of the Company, disclosure is required by Applicable Law, court process or by
applicable rules or listing agreements with any national securities exchange or
quotation system on which the Company lists securities and (iii) to the extent
disclosure is requested by any Governmental Authority having jurisdiction over
the Company, any of its Subsidiaries or any Company Representative. The Company
shall use all commercially reasonable efforts to cause its Representatives and
its Subsidiaries' Representatives to comply with the foregoing requirement.

            (b) Section 5.08(a) shall not apply to any such information that (i)
is or becomes generally available to the public other than as a result of any
disclosure or other action or inaction by the Company or its Subsidiaries or any



of their respective Representatives, (ii) is or becomes known or available to
the Company or its Subsidiaries on a non-confidential basis from a source (other
than the Purchaser or its Representatives) that, to the knowledge of the
Company, is not under a legal obligation to disclose such information or (iii)
was independently developed by the Company or its Subsidiaries or any of their
respective Representatives without reference to any information provided by the
Purchaser or any of its Representatives (except pursuant to clauses (i) or (ii))
that was known to the Company or its Subsidiaries prior to such disclosure by
the Purchaser or its Representatives.

            (c) In the event that the Company or its Subsidiaries or any of
their respective Representatives become legally compelled (by oral questions,
interrogatories, requests for information or documents, subpoenas, civil
investigative demands or otherwise), to disclose any information referred to in
Section 5.08(a), the Company shall or shall cause its Subsidiaries to provide
the Purchaser with prompt written notice so that the Purchaser may seek a
protective order or other appropriate remedy. Failing the entry of a protective
order or other appropriate remedy or receipt of a waiver hereunder, the Company
shall or shall cause its Subsidiaries, as applicable, to furnish only that
portion of the information which it is advised by its counsel is legally
required to be furnished and shall exercise its commercially reasonable efforts
to obtain reliable assurance that confidential treatment shall be accorded such
information.

            (d) The Company acknowledges that the Purchaser may not have an
adequate remedy at law and may be irreparably harmed in the event that any of
the provisions of the Confidentiality Agreement or this Section 5.08 were not
performed in accordance with their specific terms or were otherwise breached.
Accordingly, the Purchaser shall be entitled to seek equitable relief, including
injunction and specific performance, in the event the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries or any of their respective Representatives breach or threaten to
breach any of the provisions of the Confidentiality Agreement or this Section
5.08, without the necessity of posting any bond or proving special damages or
irreparable injury. Such remedies shall not be deemed to be the exclusive
remedies for a breach or threatened breach of the Confidentiality Agreement or
this Section 5.08, but shall be in addition to all other remedies available at
law or equity.
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            SECTION 5.09. Registration Rights Agreement and Subordinated Debt
Agreement. The Company shall enter into the Registration Rights Agreement on or
prior to the Tranche I Closing Date and the Subordinated Debt Agreement on the
Distribution Date. The Company shall have the right, at the Company's sole
discretion, to make any amendment, additions and modifications to the
Subordinated Debt Agreement as requested by lenders of the Corporation during
negotiations of the Financing Transactions with such lenders; provided, however,
that if any such amendments, additions or modifications shall, directly or
indirectly, or individually or in the aggregate, adversely affect the rights,
powers or financial interests of the Purchaser, the Company shall not make any
such amendments, additions and modifications without the prior written consent
of the Purchaser, which such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed
or conditioned; provided, further, however, that the Company shall not make any
amendments or modifications to Section 7.2 of the Subordinated Debt Agreement
without the prior written consent of the Purchaser, which such consent may be
withheld in Purchaser's sole and absolute discretion.

            SECTION 5.10. Escrow Agreement. The Company shall enter into the
Escrow Agreement prior to the Tranche I Closing Date. The Company shall have the
right, at the Company's sole discretion, to make any such amendments, additions
and modifications to the Escrow Agreement as requested by the Escrow Agent;
provided, however, that if any such amendments, additions or modifications
shall, directly or indirectly, or individually or in the aggregate, adversely
affect the rights, powers or financial interests of the Purchaser, the Company
shall not make any such amendments, additions and modifications without the
prior written consent of the Purchaser, which such consent may be withheld in
Purchaser's sole and absolute discretion.

            SECTION 5.11. The Distribution Agreements. (a) Prior to the Tranche
I Closing Date, the Company shall enter into (i) the Separation and Distribution
Agreement in substantially the same form of agreement attached hereto as Exhibit
F and (ii) the Employment Benefits Agreement, the Intellectual Property
Agreement and the Transition Services Agreement, in each case, on substantially
the same terms and conditions set forth in their respective Distribution Term



Sheet. On the Distribution Date, the Company shall enter into the Tax Sharing
Agreement in substantially the same form of agreement attached hereto as Exhibit
H.

            (b) The Company shall not materially alter, amend or modify any of
the Distribution Term Sheets, or any of the Distribution Agreements without the
prior written consent of the Purchaser, which such consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned; provided, however, that if any
such alteration, amendment or modification shall, directly or indirectly, or
individually or in the aggregate, adversely affect the rights, powers or
financial interests of the Purchaser, the Purchaser may withhold its consent in
its complete and absolute discretion.

            (c) Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Section 5.11 or
any other provision of this Agreement shall prohibit the Company from, at any
time prior to the Tranche I Closing Date, amending any Schedules of the
Separation and Distribution Agreement, to make such additions to or
modifications of such Schedules as are necessary to make the information set
forth therein true, accurate and complete in all material respects; provided,
however, that if any such alteration, amendment or modification shall, directly
or indirectly, or individually or in
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the aggregate, adversely affect the rights, powers or financial interests of the
Purchaser, such alteration, amendment or modification shall not occur without
the prior written consent of the Purchaser, which such consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned.

            SECTION 5.12. Rights Agreement. The Company shall have the right, at
the Company's sole discretion, to make any such amendments, additions and
modifications to the Rights Agreement as requested by the rights agent;
provided, however, that if any such amendments, additions or modifications
shall, directly or indirectly, or individually or in the aggregate, adversely
affect the rights, powers or financial interests of the Purchaser, the Company
shall not make any such amendments, additions and modifications without the
prior written consent of the Purchaser, which such consent may be withheld in
Purchaser's sole and absolute discretion.

            SECTION 5.13. Reservation of Shares. Except as otherwise provided
herein, the Company shall (a) cause to be authorized and reserve and keep
available at all times during which any of the Shares remain outstanding, free
from preemptive rights, out of its treasury stock or authorized but unissued
shares of Capital Stock, or both, solely for the purpose of effecting the
conversion of the Non-Voting Preferred Stock pursuant to the terms of the
Certificate of Designation sufficient shares of Common Stock (including any
related rights issuable in respect thereof pursuant to the Rights Agreement) to
provide for the issuance of the maximum number of shares issuable upon
conversion of outstanding shares of the Non-Voting Preferred Stock and (b) issue
and cause the transfer agent to deliver such shares of Common Stock (including
any related rights issuable in respect thereof pursuant to the Rights Agreement)
as required upon conversion of the Non-Voting Preferred Stock, and take all
actions necessary to ensure that all such shares will, when issued and paid for
pursuant to the conversion of the Non-Voting Preferred Stock, be duly and
validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable.

            SECTION 5.14. Listing of Shares. The Company shall use all
commercially reasonable efforts to cause the Tranche I Shares and the shares of
Common Stock issuable upon conversion of the Non-Voting Preferred Stock to be
listed or otherwise eligible for trading on the New York Stock Exchange or other
United States national securities exchanges or quoted on NASDAQ; provided,
however, the Company shall not seek to list the Tranche I Shares and the shares
of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of the Non-Voting Preferred Stock on a
United States national securities exchange other than the New York Stock
Exchange or quote such shares on NASDAQ without prior written consent of the
Purchaser, which such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or
conditioned.

            SECTION 5.15. Preemptive Rights. (a) So long as the Purchaser and
the Permitted Transferees own a Qualifying Ownership Interest, if at any time on
or prior to the second anniversary of the Distribution Date, the Company makes a
Qualified Equity Offering, the Purchaser and the Permitted Transferees who own
the securities constituting the Qualifying Ownership Interest (the "Eligible
Purchasers") shall be afforded the opportunity to acquire for the same price



(net of any underwriting discounts or sales commissions) and on the same terms
as such securities are proposed to be offered to others, in the aggregate, up to
the amount of New Stock that, if purchased by all the Eligible Purchasers, would
result in the Purchaser's ownership interest in the Company after giving pro
forma effect to the sale of New Stock (and assuming conversion of the Non-Voting
Preferred Stock into Common Stock after any applicable anti-
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dilution adjustments) being equal to the Purchaser's ownership interest
(including conversion of the Non-Voting Preferred Stock into Common Stock)
before giving effect to such sale of New Stock. The amount of New Stock to be
made available to the Eligible Purchasers calculated in accordance with the
preceding sentence is referred to herein as the "Designated Stock". The Eligible
Purchasers may allocate among themselves the aggregate amount of Designated
Stock made available to them for purchase pursuant to this Section 5.15.

            (b) (i) So long as the Purchaser and the Permitted Transferees own a
Qualifying Ownership Interest if at any time on or prior to the second
anniversary of the Distribution Date, the Company proposes to make a Qualified
Equity Offering that is an underwritten public offering or a private offering
made to financial institutions for resale pursuant to Rule 144A, no later than
five (5) Business Days after the initial filing of a registration statement with
the Commission with respect to such underwritten public offering or the
commencement of such Rule 144A offering, the Company shall give the Eligible
Purchasers written notice of its intention (including in the case of a
registered public offering, a copy of the prospectus contained in the
registration statement filed in respect of such offering) describing, to the
extent possible, the anticipated amount of securities, price, timing and other
terms of such offering. Each Eligible Purchaser shall have five (5) Business
Days from the date of receipt of any such notice to notify the Company in
writing that it wishes to be offered the opportunity to exercise its preemptive
purchase rights. Such notice shall constitute a non-binding indication of
interest of the Eligible Purchaser to exercise its preemptive rights. The
failure to respond during such five (5) Business Day period shall constitute a
waiver of the preemptive rights in respect of such offering.

            (ii) If any Eligible Purchaser indicates an interest in
      participating in such underwritten public offering or Rule l44A offering,
      the Company shall offer the Eligible Purchasers who have indicated an
      interest in participating in such offering, if such underwritten offering
      or Rule l44A offering is consummated, the Designated Stock (as adjusted to
      reflect the actual size of such offering when priced) on the same terms as
      the New Stock is offered to the underwriters. Each Eligible Purchaser
      exercising its preemptive rights shall enter into a binding commitment to
      purchase the Designated Stock to be acquired contemporaneously with the
      execution of any underwriting agreement or purchase agreement entered into
      by and between the Company and the underwriters of such underwritten
      public offering or Rule l44A offering, and the failure to enter into such
      an agreement at or prior to such time shall constitute a waiver of the
      preemptive rights in respect of such offering. Any offers and sales
      pursuant to this Section 5.15 in the context of a registered public
      offering shall be conditioned on representations and warranties of each
      Eligible Purchaser in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the
      Company regarding such Eligible Purchaser's status as the type of offeree
      to whom a private sale can be made concurrently with a registered public
      offering in compliance with applicable securities laws. If an Eligible
      Purchaser elects not to or fails to consummate any purchase, the Company
      shall thereafter be entitled for a period of ninety (90) calendar days to
      sell or enter into an agreement to sell the Designated Stock not purchased
      at a price and upon terms no more favorable to the purchaser of such
      securities than were provided to the those offered to the Eligible
      Purchaser.
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            (c) (i) So long as the Purchaser and the Permitted Transferees own a
Qualifying Ownership Interest if at any time on or prior to the second
anniversary of the Distribution Date, the Company proposes to make a Qualified
Equity Offering that it is not an underwritten public offering or Rule 144A
offering (a "Private Placement"), the Company shall give the Eligible Purchasers
written notice of its intention, describing, to the extent possible, the
anticipated amount of securities, price and other terms upon which the Company



proposes to offer the same. Each Eligible Purchaser shall have five (5) Business
Days from the date of receipt of any such notice to notify the Company in
writing that it intends to exercise such preemptive purchase rights and as to
the amount of Designated Stock the Purchaser desires to purchase, up to the
maximum amount calculated pursuant to Section 5.15(a). Such notice shall
constitute a binding agreement of such Eligible Purchaser to purchase the amount
of Designated Stock so specified (or a proportionally lesser amount if the
amount of New Stock to be offered in such Private Placement is subsequently
reduced) upon the price and other terms set forth in the Company's notice to
Eligible Purchasers. The failure to respond during the five (5) Business Day
period shall constitute a waiver of the preemptive rights in respect of such
offering.

            (ii) If an Eligible Purchaser exercises its preemptive purchase
      rights in respect of a Private Placement, the closing of the purchase of
      the New Stock with respect to which such right has been exercised shall
      take place within thirty (30) calendar days after the giving of notice of
      such exercise, which period of time shall be extended for a maximum of one
      hundred thirty-five (135) calendar days in order to comply with Applicable
      Laws and regulations; provided, however, that (i) such closing shall be
      conditioned on consummation of the closing of the sale of shares of New
      Stock in the transaction giving rise to the preemptive rights and (ii) the
      actual amount of Designated Stock to be sold to such Eligible Purchaser
      shall be reduced if the aggregate number of shares of New Stock sold in
      the transaction giving rise to the preemptive rights is reduced and, at
      the option of such Eligible Purchaser, may be proportionally increased if
      the aggregate number of shares of New Stock sold in such transaction is
      increased. Each of the Company and each Eligible Purchaser agree to use
      its commercially reasonable efforts to secure any regulatory approvals or
      other consents, and to comply with any law or regulation necessary in
      connection with the offer, sale and purchase of, such New Stock.

            (iii) In the event an Eligible Purchaser fails to exercise its
      preemptive purchase rights provided in respect of a Private Placement
      within said five (5) Business Day period or, if so exercised, such
      Eligible Purchaser does not consummate such purchase, the Company shall
      thereafter be entitled during the period of ninety (90) calendar days
      following the conclusion of the applicable period to sell or enter into an
      agreement (pursuant to which the sale of the New Stock covered thereby
      shall be consummated, if at all, within thirty (30) calendar days from the
      date of such agreement) to sell the Designated Stock not purchased
      pursuant to this Section 5.15, at a price and upon terms no more favorable
      to the purchaser of such securities than were specified in the Company's
      notice to the Eligible Purchasers. In the event the Company has not sold
      the New Stock or entered into an agreement to sell the New Stock within
      said ninety (90)-day period, the Company shall not thereafter offer, issue
      or sell such Designated Stock without first offering such securities to
      the Eligible Purchasers in the manner provided above.
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            (d) The Eligible Purchasers shall not have any rights to participate
in the negotiation of the proposed terms of any Private Placement and shall be
passive investors with respect to such Private Placement; provided, that they
shall have the same economic rights (including preemptive rights and rights
relating to closing conditions and indemnification, if any) as to the other
investors in such Private Placement; provided, however, that unless agreed to by
the Company and the lead purchaser in such Private Placement, the Eligible
Purchaser shall not have the corporate governance or other rights granted to the
other investors in such Private Placement.

            (e) Subject to Sections 6.03 and 6.04, if registration rights are
granted to the investors in any Private Placement, the Company shall provide
registration rights to the Eligible Purchasers that exercised their preemptive
rights on a pari passu basis with such other investors in such Private
Placement. In all other instances, the Company will provide (subject to Sections
6.03 and 6.04) for the registration, on terms consistent with the Registration
Rights Agreement, for any shares of Common Stock acquired (or issuable upon
conversion, exercise or exchange of any other security acquired) within six
months after (i) the closing of the applicable acquisition (with respect to any
Common Stock acquired) or (ii) the earliest date on which such other securities
can be converted, exercised or exchanged for Common Stock (with respect to any
other security acquired).



            (f) The Company and the Eligible Purchasers shall cooperate in good
faith to facilitate the exercise of the Eligible Purchasers' preemptive rights
in a manner that does not jeopardize the timing, marketing or execution of such
offering.

            SECTION 5.16. Conduct of Business. During the period from the date
hereof to the Tranche II Closing Date (unless earlier terminated in accordance
with Section 8.04), the Company shall, and shall cause each of its Subsidiaries
to (a) conduct the Business in the ordinary course of business in a manner
consistent with past practice and (b) take all reasonable steps available to
maintain the goodwill of the Business. Notwithstanding the immediately preceding
sentence, unless otherwise contemplated by this Agreement, the Distribution Term
Sheets, the Distribution Agreements, the Transactions or the Internal
Restructuring, during the period from the date hereof to the Tranche I Closing
(unless earlier terminated in accordance with Section 8.04), the Company shall
not, and shall cause each of its Subsidiaries not to take any of the following
actions without the prior written consent of the Purchaser (which such consent
shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned):

            (a) amend the certificate of incorporation (other than as a result
of a stock split of the Common Stock in connection with the Transactions or to
authorize additional shares to effect a capital contribution as permitted
hereunder), bylaws or other similar corporate governance instrument of the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or subdivide or reclassify in any way any of
its Capital Stock or change or agree to change in any manner the rights of its
outstanding Capital Stock (other than a stock split of the Common Stock in
connection with the Transactions or to authorize additional shares to effect a
capital contribution as permitted hereunder);

            (b) declare or pay any dividend or make any other distribution
whether or not upon or in respect of any of its Capital Stock or other equity
interests of the Company in excess
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of $438,000,000 in the aggregate; provided, that the aggregate amount of all
dividend payments or cash distributions by the Company to Pitney Bowes shall
reduce (on a dollar-for-dollar basis) the aggregate amount of net proceeds the
Company is required to raise in connection with the Financing Transactions as
contemplated herein and in the Separation and Distribution Agreement.

            (c) redeem, purchase or otherwise acquire any of the Capital Stock
or other equity interests of any Person;

            (d) issue or sell any shares of Capital Stock or other equity
interests of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or securities convertible
into or exchangeable for, or options, warrants or rights to purchase or
subscribe to, such shares or equity interests other than issuances of shares of
Common Stock to Pitney Bowes or any of its wholly-owned Subsidiaries in
connection with any capital contributions made by Pitney Bowes or any of its
wholly-owned Subsidiaries to the Company;

            (e) adopt or amend any collective bargaining agreement that is a
Material Contract other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with
past practice;

            (f) adopt a plan of liquidation or resolutions providing for the
liquidation, dissolution, merger, consolidation or other reorganization of the
Company or any Subsidiary of the Company having assets or liabilities in excess
of $50,000;

            (g) grant to any employee of the Business any material increase in
compensation or benefits; provided, however, that an increase of ten percent
(10.0%) or less in compensation or benefits shall not be considered a material
increase for purposes of this Section 5.16(g) if such increases shall not result
in an aggregate of a ten percent (10.0%) increase in compensation or benefits of
all employees of the Business;

            (h) incur or assume any liabilities, obligations or Indebtedness for
borrowed money or guarantee any such liabilities, obligations or Indebtedness
or, incur or assume any debt, obligation or liability (whether absolute or
contingent and whether or not currently due and payable) that in the aggregate
exceeds $1,000,0000;



            (i) make any loan or advance to its officers, directors, employees,
consultants, agents or equity holders, other than travel advances, expense
reimbursement and similar payments, which is in the ordinary course of business
consistent with past practice as provided above;

            (j) permit, allow or suffer any of assets of the Business to become
subjected to any Lien, other than Permitted Liens;

            (k) make any change in any method of accounting or accounting
practice or policy other than those required by Applicable Law or by GAAP;

            (l) merge or consolidate with, or acquire all or any significant
portion of the assets of any business or any Person, or agree to change in any
material respect the character of its Business;
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            (m) make or incur any capital expenditure that in the aggregate
exceeds $1,000,000;

            (n) enter into, materially modify or terminate any lease of Real
Property other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past
practice;

            (o) enter into any (i) employment or consulting Contract other than
in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice or (ii) any
other Contract either involving consideration in excess of $1,000,000 under each
such Contract or $2,000,000 under such Contracts in the aggregate;

            (p) accelerate, terminate, materially modify or cancel any Contract
involving consideration in excess of $1,000,000 under each such Contract or
$2,000,000 under such Contracts in the aggregate;

            (q) materially change any of its business policies material to the
Business, including advertising, marketing, pricing, purchasing, personnel,
sales, returns, budget or product acquisition policies other than in the
ordinary course of business consistent with past practice;

            (r) transfer to or from the Company any employees from or to,
respectively, Pitney Bowes or any of its Affiliates other than in the ordinary
course of business consistent with past practice;

            (s) sell, lease, distribute or otherwise dispose of any material
assets of the Business that in the aggregate exceeds $1,000,000;

            (t) (i) make or change any Tax election or adopt or change any Tax
accounting method that, in each case, applies solely to and only affects the
Company or (ii) settle any Tax claim or assessment or surrender any right to
claim a Tax refund or credit, in each case, with respect to any tax examination
or audit of the Company or including the Company that is reasonably expected to
result in an additional Tax liability in excess of $1,000,000 and that is not
listed on Schedule 3.17 that, in the case of either clause (i) or (ii), would
materially increase the post-Distribution Tax liability of the Company or any of
its Subsidiaries after giving effect to the provisions of the Tax Sharing
Agreement;

            (u) originate or service any Financing other than in accordance with
the Financing Policies or in the ordinary course of business consistent with
past practice;

            (v) hire any single employee whose annual base salary will exceed
$120,000 or hire more than one employee whose annual base salaries will in the
aggregate exceed $240,000;

            (w) enter into any Contract with respect to any IT System or
component thereof involving consideration in excess of $100,000 under each such
Contract or $200,000 under such Contracts in the aggregate; and

            (x) agree, whether or not in writing, to do any of the foregoing.
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            SECTION 5.17. Registration Statement; Information Statement or



Prospectus. (a) As promptly as practicable after the execution and delivery of
this Agreement, the Company shall:

            (i) prepare and, after consultation with and review by the Purchaser
      and its outside counsel (and after approval by the Purchaser of the
      information in the Registration Statement that specifically relates to the
      Purchaser or its Affiliates), file with the Commission the Registration
      Statement relating to the Distribution, the Transactions and this
      Agreement and use its commercially reasonable efforts (A) to obtain and
      furnish the information required by the Commission to be included in the
      Registration Statement after consultation with and review by the Purchaser
      (and after approval by the Purchaser of the information in the
      Registration Statement that specifically relates to the Purchaser or its
      Affiliates) and (B) to respond promptly to any comments made by the
      Commission with respect to the Registration Statement and promptly after
      the Company is informed by the Commission or its outside nationally
      recognized legal counsel (which may be its current outside legal counsel)
      that it may do so, cause the Information Statement or Prospectus, as
      applicable, to be mailed to Pitney Bowes's stockholders and, if necessary,
      after the Information Statement or Prospectus, as applicable, shall have
      been so mailed, promptly circulate amended or supplemental material;
      provided, that no such amendment or supplemental material will be mailed
      by the Company without consultation with and review by the Purchaser and
      its outside counsel (and after approval by the Purchaser of the
      information in the Registration Statement that specifically relates to the
      Purchaser or its Affiliates); provided, however, that if the Purchaser has
      not provided a response and/or comments to the Company (or a notice of 
      disapproval with respect to the information in the Registration Statement 
      that specifically relates to the Purchaser or its Affiliates) within (A) 
      seven (7) Business Days with respect to the initial filing of the 
      Registration Statement or (B) twenty-four (24) hours with respect to any 
      comments or amendments to the Registration Statement or any written 
      response to the Commission's comments, from receipt of the Company's 
      notice of the information to be delivered to the Commission, then the 
      Purchaser shall be deemed to waive its right of consultation and approval,
      as applicable, with respect to such information and the Company may take 
      any action with respect to such filing, comments or amendments to the 
      Registration Statement or such written response to the Commission's 
      comments that relates to such Company's notice, without such consultation
      with, and review by, the Purchaser and its outside counsel and without
      approval by the Purchaser, as applicable.

            (ii) simultaneously with the filing of the Registration Statement
      and the Information Statement or the Prospectus, as applicable, or any
      amendment or supplement thereto with the Commission, the Company shall
      provide the Purchaser with a copy of such Registration Statement and
      Information Statement or the Prospectus, as applicable, or amendment or
      supplement thereto; and

            (iii) if at any time after the Information Statement or Prospectus,
      as applicable, is mailed and prior to the Distribution the Company shall
      become aware of the occurrence of any event that is required by Applicable
      Law to be set forth in an amendment of, or a supplement to, the
      Information Statement or Prospectus, as applicable, in which case, the
      Company will, as soon as practicable upon learning of such event, (x)
      prepare and
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      mail such amendment or supplement and (y) inform the Purchaser of the
      occurrence of such event.

            (b) The Registration Statement will not, at the respective times it
is filed with the Commission or first published, sent or given to stockholders,
contain a false or misleading statement with respect to any material fact or
omit to state any material fact required to be stated in it or necessary in
order to make the statements in it, not misleading or necessary to correct any
statement in any earlier communication with respect to the Distribution. The
Registration Statement (including any amendments thereto) will comply as to form
and substance in all material respects with the requirements of the Securities
Act or the Exchange Act, as applicable, and the rules and regulations
promulgated under it.

            (c) The Information Statement or Prospectus, as applicable, will



not, at the date mailed to Pitney Bowes' stockholders and at the time of the
Distribution, contain a false or misleading statement with respect to any
material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated in it or
necessary in order to make the statements in it, in light of the circumstances
under which they are made, not misleading or necessary to correct any statement
in any earlier communication with respect to the Distribution. The definitive
Information Statement or Prospectus, as applicable, will comply as to form and
substance in all material respects with the requirements of the Exchange Act or
the Securities Act, as applicable, and the rules and regulations promulgated
under it.

            SECTION 5.18. Compliance with Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. On or
prior to the Effective Date, the Company will be in compliance with any and all
applicable requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that are effective as
of the date thereof, and any and all applicable rules and regulations
promulgated thereunder that are effective as of the date thereof, as and when
the requirements become applicable to the Company.

            SECTION 5.19. Imagistics. The Company shall use commercially
reasonable efforts to preserve the relationship of the Company with Imagistics
as established under the Operating Agreement, dated November 1, 2001, by and
between the Company and Imagistics as supplemented by the Agreement, dated as of
the same date.

            SECTION 5.20. Financial Statements. The Company shall deliver to the
Purchaser the Audited Financial Statements no later than June 29, 2005.

            SECTION 5.21. Monthly Management Reports. As soon as available and
in any event within twenty (20) Business Days after the end of each month in
each fiscal year of the Company, the Company shall provide to the Purchaser a
copy of the Company's management report for such month, which shall include (a)
for the Small Ticket Financings (excluding the Dictaphone Portfolio) a balance
sheet, an income statement, portfolio statistics, volume (new business), yield,
delinquency and write-off report for such month and (b) for the Large Ticket
Financings a balance sheet, an income statement, portfolio statistics, volume
(new business), delinquency and write-off report for such month prepared in a
manner consistent with past practice.
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            SECTION 5.22. Ruling Request. The Company shall provide the
Purchaser with a copy of the Ruling Request at or prior to the time the Ruling
Request is filed with the IRS.

            SECTION 5.23. Tax Elections; Tax Accounting Changes. To the extent
reasonable and practicable, the Company will consult with the Purchaser prior to
making or changing any Tax election or adopting or changing any Tax accounting
method that, in each case, does not apply solely to and only affect the Company
and would materially increase the Tax liability of the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries in respect of the first five (5) taxable periods of the Company
after the Distribution, and to the extent practicable it will make reasonable
efforts, at the request of the Purchaser, to exclude the Company and its
Subsidiaries from such action.

            SECTION 5.24. Statute of Limitations. The Company shall prepare and
deliver to the Purchaser a list of all outstanding waivers or comparable
consents regarding the application of the statute of limitations with respect to
any material Taxes or material Tax Returns of the Company or its Subsidiaries.

            SECTION 5.25. Financing Transactions. At such time as the Company
deems appropriate, the Company shall commence a competitive bid process to
obtain financing through certain Financing Transactions that will in the
aggregate result in net proceeds to the Company in an amount of not less than
the Net Proceeds Amount. The Purchaser's Affiliates or designees shall have the
right to bid and participate in the competitive bid process. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the Company, the Purchaser, and Pitney Bowes shall collaborate during
the competitive bid process in the selection of the lenders who will ultimately
provide the financing contemplated herein.

                                   ARTICLE VI

                           Covenants of the Purchaser

            SECTION 6.01. Compliance with Conditions; Commercially Reasonable



Efforts. The Purchaser shall use all commercially reasonable efforts to cause
all conditions precedent to the obligations of the Purchaser to be satisfied.
The Purchaser shall cooperate to cause all conditions precedent to the
obligations of the Company to be satisfied in which the Purchaser's
participation is reasonably required by the Company to satisfy such conditions
precedent. Upon the terms and subject to the conditions of this Agreement, the
Purchaser will cooperate with the Company in its efforts to take, or cause to be
taken, all action, and to make, or cause to be made, all filings necessary,
proper or advisable under Applicable Laws and all things necessary, proper or
advisable consistent with Applicable Law to consummate and make effective in the
most expeditious manner practicable the Transactions to the Purchaser in
accordance with the terms of the Equity Documents, the Registration Rights
Agreement, the Restated Certificate, the Certificate of Designation and the
Amended Bylaws.

            SECTION 6.02. Consents and Approvals. The Purchaser (a) shall use
all commercially reasonable efforts to obtain all necessary consents, waivers,
authorizations and approvals of all Governmental Authorities and of all other
Persons required in connection with
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the execution, delivery and performance of the Equity Documents, the Equity
Commitment Letter, the Registration Rights Agreement and the Subordinated Debt
Agreement or the consummation of the Transactions by the Purchaser and (b) shall
diligently assist and cooperate with the Company in preparing and filing all
documents required to be submitted by the Company to any Governmental Authority
in connection with the Transactions (which assistance and cooperation shall
include timely furnishing to the Company all information concerning the
Purchaser that counsel to the Company reasonably determines is required to be
included in such documents or would be helpful in obtaining any such required
consent, waiver, authorization or approval).

            SECTION 6.03. Restrictions on Transfer. (a) Subject to the
Purchaser's compliance with Section 6.06, on or prior to the second anniversary
of the Distribution Date, the Purchaser and the Permitted Transferees shall not
knowingly sell, assign, transfer, pledge, hypothecate, deposit in a voting trust
or otherwise dispose of the Shares (giving effect to the conversion of the
Non-Voting Preferred Stock into Common Stock) to any Person or group (as defined
for purposes of Rule 13d under the Exchange Act) in a single transaction or
series of related transactions.

            (b) If the Purchaser is not in violation of this Section 6.03, the
restrictions set forth in Section 6.03(a) shall not apply to any transfer of the
Shares (i) pursuant to a tender offer, exchange offer or any other business
combination available to all stockholders of the Company or (ii) as part of a
distribution of such Shares to a Permitted Transferee.

            SECTION 6.04. Standstill. (a) The Purchaser agrees that, on or prior
to the second anniversary of the Distribution Date, it will not and will not
permit any member of the Purchaser's Group to, in any manner, whether publicly
or otherwise, directly or indirectly (i) acquire, agree to acquire or make any
public proposal to acquire, directly or indirectly, beneficial ownership of any
voting securities or assets of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, (ii)
enter into or publicly propose to enter into, directly or indirectly, any merger
or other business combination or similar transaction or change of control
involving the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, (iii) make, or in any way
participate, directly or indirectly, in any "solicitation" of "proxies" (as such
terms are used in the proxy rules of the Commission) to vote, or seek to advise
or influence any Person with respect to the voting of, any securities of the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries, (iv) call, or seek to call, a meeting of the
Company's stockholders or initiate any stockholder proposal for action by
stockholders of the Company, (v) bring any action or otherwise act to contest
the validity of this Section 6.04 or seek a release of the restrictions
contained herein, (vi) form, join or in any way participate in a "group" (within
the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act) with respect to any
securities of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, (vii) other than as
provided for in Section 5.06, seek representation on the Board of Directors of
the Company, (viii) seek the removal of any directors from the Board of
Directors of the Company or a change in the size or composition of the Board of
Directors of the Company (including voting for any directors not nominated by
the Board of Directors of the Company), (ix) enter into any discussions,
negotiations, arrangements, understandings or agreements (whether written or
oral) with any other Person regarding any possible purchase or sale of any



securities or assets of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, (x) disclose any
intention, plan or arrangement inconsistent with the foregoing, (xi) take, or
solicit, propose to or agree with any other Person to take, any similar actions
designed to influence the management or control of the
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Company or (xii) advise, assist or encourage any other Persons in connection
with any of the foregoing.

            (b) Nothing in this Section 6.04 shall (i) limit any action taken by
a Preferred Director in his or her capacity as a member of the Board of
Directors of the Company, (ii) prohibit or restrict the Purchaser or any member
of the Purchaser's Group from responding to any inquiries from any stockholders
of the Company as to such Person's intention with respect to the voting of
shares of Common Stock or any other voting securities of the Company
beneficially owned by the Purchaser or any member of the Purchaser's Group so
long as such response is consistent with the terms of this Agreement, (iii)
prohibit the purchase of the Shares pursuant to Article II, (iv) prohibit or
restrict any agreement, arrangement, understanding, negotiation, discussion,
disclosure or other action exclusively involving the Purchaser's Affiliates
(other than any portfolio companies), the Purchaser, any member of the
Purchaser's Group, and any employee, officer or director thereof or (v) prohibit
any notice to the holders of a Purchaser's Group member in respect of a proposed
distribution of securities of the Company to such holders.

            SECTION 6.05. Confidentiality; Information. (a) The Purchaser shall
and shall cause its Representatives to keep all information received by it or
them in connection with the negotiations and execution of this Agreement and the
consummation of the Transactions from the Company or its Representatives
confidential, and the Purchaser shall not, without the Company's prior written
consent, disclose such information in any manner whatsoever, in whole or in
part, except (i) for disclosure to the Representatives of the Purchaser who have
a need to know such information for the purpose of assisting in the consummation
of the Transactions, (ii) to the extent, in the sole judgment of the Purchaser,
disclosure is required by Applicable Law or court process and (iii) to the
extent disclosure is requested by any Governmental Authority having jurisdiction
over the Purchaser, any of its Subsidiaries or any Company Representative. The
Purchaser shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to cause its
Representatives and the Preferred Director to comply with the foregoing
requirement.

            (b) Section 6.05(a) shall not apply to any such information that (i)
is or becomes generally available to the public other than as a result of any
disclosure or other action or inaction by the Purchaser or any of its
Representatives, (ii) is or becomes known or available to the Purchaser on a
non-confidential basis from a source (other than the Company or its
Representatives) that, to the knowledge of the Purchaser, is not under a legal
obligation to disclose such information to the Purchaser or (iii) was
independently developed by the Purchaser or its Representatives without
reference to any information provided by the Company or its Representatives
(except pursuant to clauses (i) or (ii)) that was known to the Purchaser prior
to such disclosure by the Company or its Representatives.

            (c) In the event that the Purchaser or its Representatives become
legally compelled (by oral questions, interrogatories, requests for information
or documents, subpoenas, civil investigative demands or otherwise), to disclose
any information referred to in Section 6.05(a), the Purchaser shall provide the
Company with prompt written notice so that the Company may seek a protective
order or other appropriate remedy. Failing the entry of a protective order or
other appropriate remedy or receipt of a waiver hereunder, the Purchaser shall
furnish only that portion of the information which it is advised by its counsel
is legally required
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to be furnished and shall exercise its commercially reasonable efforts to obtain
reliable assurance that confidential treatment shall be accorded such
information.

            (d) The Purchaser acknowledges that the Company may not have an
adequate remedy at law and may be irreparably harmed in the event that any of
the provisions of the Confidentiality Agreement or this Section 6.05 were not



performed in accordance with their specific terms or were otherwise breached.
Accordingly, the Company shall be entitled to seek equitable relief, including
injunction and specific performance, in the event the Purchaser or its
Representatives breach or threaten to breach any of the provisions of the
Confidentiality Agreement or this Section 6.05, without the necessity of posting
any bond or proving special damages or irreparable injury. Such remedies shall
not be deemed to be the exclusive remedies for a breach or threatened breach of
the Confidentiality Agreement or this Section 6.05, but shall be in addition to
all other remedies available at law or equity.

            (e) The Purchaser shall cause the Preferred Director (if designated
prior to the Effective Date) to provide such information to the Company as may
reasonably be required in connection with the Registration Statement and the
Information Statement or Prospectus, as applicable, or any other filings with
the Commission or any other Governmental Authority in connection with the
Distribution or the Transactions.

            SECTION 6.06. Compliance with Section 355 of the Code. (a) The
Purchaser shall not, and shall cause its Subsidiaries and all members of the
Purchaser's Group not to, take any action that could result in the recognition
of gain to Pitney Bowes or the Company by virtue of the PBGFS Distribution or
the Distribution failing to qualify under Section 355(a) or (c) of the Code.

            (b) The Purchaser shall not, and shall cause its Subsidiaries and
all members of the Purchaser's Group not to, omit to take any action (i)
required by the Equity Documents, the Separation and Distribution Agreement, the
Tax Sharing Agreement and the Subordinated Debt Agreement or (ii) that is
requested in writing by the Company or Pitney Bowes and reasonably available to
the Purchaser that in either case could result in the recognition of gain to
Pitney Bowes or the Company by virtue of the PBGFS Distribution or the
Distribution failing to qualify under Section 355(a) or (c) of the Code.

            SECTION 6.07. Prohibition on Solicitation and Hiring. (a) The
Purchaser shall not, nor shall it permit any Affiliate (other than a portfolio
company) to, for a period of two (2) years from the date hereof, directly or
indirectly, solicit for employment or hire any senior management employee or
senior technical employee of the Business, the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries, with whom the Purchaser came into contact as a result of either
the due diligence process in respect of the Transactions or the exercise of the
Preferred Director's rights as provided in this Agreement, the Restated
Certificate and the Amended Bylaws, whether or not such Person would commit a
breach of his or her contract of service in leaving such employment; provided,
however, that the foregoing shall not prohibit the Purchaser or an Affiliate of
the Purchaser from making general solicitations of employment (or engaging
search firms to make such solicitations) not specifically directed toward
employees of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries and/or hiring any employee
who responds to any such general solicitation or initiates contact with the
Purchaser or Affiliate without solicitation.

                                      -57-

            (b) The Purchaser shall not, nor shall it permit any Affiliate
(other than a portfolio company to the extent permitted below) to, for a period
of two (2) years from the date hereof, directly or indirectly, assist (including
through identification, introduction or otherwise for the purpose of inducing
employment) a portfolio company of the Purchaser or Affiliate in soliciting for
employment any senior management employee or senior technical employee of the
Business, the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, with whom the Purchaser came
into contact as a result of either the due diligence process in respect of the
Transactions or the exercise of the Preferred Director's rights as provided in
this Agreement, the Restated Certificate and the Amended Bylaws, whether or not
such Person would commit a breach of his or her contract of service in leaving
such employment; provided, however, that the foregoing shall not prohibit any
portfolio company of the Purchaser or an Affiliate of the Purchaser from making
general solicitations of employment (or engaging search firms to make such
solicitations) not specifically directed toward employees of the Company or any
of its Subsidiaries.

            SECTION 6.08. Registration Rights Agreement and Subordinated Debt
Agreement. The Purchaser shall enter into the Registration Rights Agreement on
or prior to the Tranche I Closing Date and the Subordinated Debt Agreement on
the Distribution Date.

            SECTION 6.09. Escrow Agreement. The Purchaser shall enter into the 



Escrow Agreement prior to the Tranche I Closing Date.

            SECTION 6.10. Warehouse Financing Agreement. Provided that Pitney
Bowes has determined that entering into a warehouse financing agreement would
not compromise in any way Pitney Bowes' ability to obtain the Private Letter
Ruling, then, upon written notice from the Company, the Purchaser shall promptly
enter into a warehouse financing agreement on terms and conditions as set forth
in the Warehouse Financing Term Sheet attached as Exhibit K hereto (the "Interim
Warehouse Financing"), but, in any event, no later than fourteen (14) calendar
days after receipt of such notice

                                  ARTICLE VII

           Conditions Precedent to Tranche I Closing, the Distribution
                             and Tranche II Closing

            SECTION 7.01. Conditions to the Company's Obligations in Respect of
the Tranche I Closing. The obligations of the Company to issue and sell the
shares of Tranche I Stock hereunder shall be subject, at the election of the
Company, to the satisfaction or waiver, on the Tranche I Closing Date, of the
following conditions:

            (a) The representations and warranties of the Purchaser in this
Agreement shall be true and correct in all respects (without regard to any
material adverse effect or materiality qualification) on and as of the Tranche I
Closing Date with the same force and effect as though such representations and
warranties were made as of the Tranche I Closing Date, except to the extent such
representations and warranties expressly relate to an earlier date (in which
case such representations and warranties shall be true and correct on and as of
such earlier date); provided, that the condition set forth in this Section
7.01(a) shall only be deemed to not
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have been satisfied if the failure of any such representation(s) and
warranty(ies) to be true and correct have or would reasonably be likely to have,
individually or in the aggregate, a material adverse effect on the ability of
the Purchaser to consummate the Transactions.

            (b) The Purchaser shall have performed in all material respects all
obligations and agreements, and complied in all material respects with all
covenants contained in this Agreement to be performed and complied with by the
Purchaser on the Tranche I Closing Date.

            (c) The Purchaser shall have delivered to the Company a certificate
executed by it or on its behalf by a duly authorized representative, dated the
Tranche I Closing Date, to the effect that each of the conditions specified in
paragraphs (a) and (b) of this Section 7.01 has been satisfied.

            (d) No provision of any Applicable Law or Governmental Order shall
be in effect which has the effect of making the Transactions or the ownership by
the Purchaser of the Shares illegal or shall otherwise prohibit the consummation
of the Transactions.

            (e) Each of the Closing Financial Statements and the Specified Lease
Adjustment Statement, if any, shall have been final and conclusively determined
in accordance with Section 2.05.

            (f) The Private Letter Ruling shall (i) have been obtained and
Pitney Bowes, in its good faith judgment, is not exposed to material Tax risk
and (ii) not have been withdrawn, invalidated or modified (or the IRS shall not
have notified Pitney Bowes that the consummation of the PBGFS Contribution, the
PBGFS Distribution, the Company Distribution or the Distribution would not be
tax free).

            (g) The Purchaser shall have entered into the Escrow Agreement and
delivered it to the Company.

            (h) The Escrow Funds shall have been delivered to the Escrow Agent.

            (i) Pitney Bowes and the Company shall have entered into each of the
Distribution Agreements (other than the Tax Sharing Agreement) and delivered a
copy of each of the Distribution Agreements (other than the Tax Sharing
Agreement) to the Purchaser.



            (j) The Registration Statement shall have been declared effective by
the Commission.

            (k) The Final Net Worth shall be no less than $200,000,000.

            (l) The Purchaser shall have entered into the Registration Rights
Agreement and delivered it to the Company.

            (m) The Equity Commitment Letter shall be in full force and effect.

            SECTION 7.02. Conditions to the Purchaser's Obligations in Respect
of the Tranche I Closing. The obligations of the Purchaser to purchase the
shares of Tranche I Stock
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hereunder shall be subject to the satisfaction or waiver, on the Tranche I
Closing Date, of the following conditions:

            (a) The representations and warranties of the Company in this
Agreement shall be true and correct in all respects (without regard to any
Material Adverse Effect or materiality qualification) on and as of the Tranche I
Closing Date with the same force and effect as though such representations and
warranties were made as of the Tranche I Closing Date, except to the extent such
representations and warranties expressly relate to an earlier date (in which
case such representations and warranties shall be true and correct on and as of
such earlier date); provided, that the condition set forth in this Section
7.02(a) shall only be deemed to not have been satisfied if the failure of any
such representation(s) and warranty(ies) to be true and correct have or would
reasonably be likely to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Material
Adverse Effect.

            (b) The Company shall have performed in all material respects all of
its obligations, agreements and covenants contained in this Agreement to be
performed and complied with at or prior to the Tranche I Closing Date.

            (c) The Company shall have delivered to the Purchaser a certificate
executed by it or on its behalf by a duly authorized representative, dated the
Tranche I Closing Date, to the effect that each of the conditions specified in
paragraphs (a) and (b) of this Section 7.02 has been satisfied.

            (d) No provision of any Applicable Law or Governmental Order shall
be in effect which has the effect of making the Transactions or the ownership by
the Purchaser of the Shares illegal or shall otherwise prohibit the consummation
of the Transactions.

            (e) Each of the Closing Financial Statements and the Specified Lease
Adjustment Statement, if any, shall have been final and conclusively determined
in accordance with Section 2.05.

            (f) The Final Net Worth shall be no less than $200,000,000.

            (g) The Company shall have filed the Restated Certificate with the
Secretary of State of the State of Delaware.

            (h) The Company shall have filed the Certificate of Designation with
the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, which shall be declared
effective.

            (i) The Company shall have entered into the Escrow Agreement and
delivered it to the Purchaser.

            (j) Pitney Bowes and the Company shall have entered into each of the
Distribution Agreements (other than the Tax Sharing Agreement) and delivered a
copy of each of the Distribution Agreements (other than the Tax Sharing
Agreement) to the Purchaser.

            (k) The Registration Statement shall have been declared effective by
the Commission.
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            (l) The Company shall have entered into the Registration Rights
Agreement and delivered it to the Purchaser.

            (m) The consents listed on Schedule 7.02(m) will have been obtained.

            SECTION 7.03. Conditions to the Company's Obligations in Respect of
the Distribution. The obligations of the Company hereunder to be performed on
the Distribution Date shall be subject, at the election of the Company, to the
satisfaction or waiver at the Distribution, of the following conditions:

            (a) The representations and warranties of the Purchaser in this
Agreement shall be true and correct in all respects (without regard to any
material adverse effect or materiality qualification) on and as of the
Distribution Date with the same force and effect as though such representations
and warranties were made as of the Distribution Date, except to the extent such
representations and warranties expressly relate to an earlier date (in which
case such representations and warranties shall be true and correct on and as of
such earlier date); provided, that the condition set forth in this Section
7.03(a) shall only be deemed to not have been satisfied if the failure of any
such representation(s) and warranty(ies) to be true and correct have or would
reasonably be likely to have, individually or in the aggregate, a material
adverse effect on the ability of the Purchaser to consummate the Transactions.

            (b) The Purchaser shall have performed in all material respects all
obligations and agreements, and complied in all material respects with all
covenants contained in this Agreement to be performed and complied with by the
Purchaser on or prior to the Distribution Date.

            (c) The Purchaser shall have delivered to the Company a certificate
executed by it or on its behalf by a duly authorized representative, dated the
Distribution Date, to the effect that each of the conditions specified in
paragraphs (a) and (b) of this Section 7.03 has been satisfied.

            (d) No provision of any Applicable Law or Governmental Order shall
be in effect which has the effect of making the Transactions or the ownership by
the Purchaser of the Shares illegal or shall otherwise prohibit the consummation
of the Transactions.

            (e) Pitney Bowes and the Company shall have entered into the Tax
Sharing Agreement and delivered a copy to the Purchaser.

            (f) The Equity Commitment Letter shall be in full force and effect.

            (g) The Purchaser shall have delivered to the Company an amount in
cash equal to $5,000,000, constituting full payment for the Subordinated Notes.

            SECTION 7.04. Conditions to the Purchaser's Obligations in Respect
of the Distribution. The obligations of the Purchaser hereunder to be performed
on the Distribution Date shall be subject, at the election of the Purchaser, to
the satisfaction or waiver at the Distribution, of the following conditions:
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            (a) The representations and warranties of the Company in this
Agreement shall be true and correct in all respects (without regard to any
Material Adverse Effect or materiality qualification) on and as of the
Distribution Date with the same force and effect as though such representations
and warranties were made as of the Distribution Date, except to the extent such
representations and warranties expressly relate to an earlier date (in which
case such representations and warranties shall be true and correct on and as of
such earlier date); provided, that the condition set forth in this Section
7.04(a) shall only be deemed to not have been satisfied if the failure of any
such representation(s) and warranty(ies) to be true and correct have or would
reasonably be likely to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Material
Adverse Effect.

            (b) The Company shall have performed in all material respects all of
its obligations, agreements and covenants contained in this Agreement to be
performed and complied with at or prior to the Distribution Date.

            (c) The Company shall have delivered to the Purchaser a certificate
executed by it or on its behalf by a duly authorized representative, dated the
Distribution Date, to the effect that each of the conditions specified in
paragraphs (a) and (b) of this Section 7.04 has been satisfied.



            (d) No provision of any Applicable Law or Governmental Order shall
be in effect which has the effect of making the Transactions or the ownership by
the Purchaser of the Shares illegal or shall otherwise prohibit the consummation
of the Transactions.

            (e) Pitney Bowes and the Company shall have entered into the Tax
Sharing Agreement and delivered a copy to the Purchaser.

            (f) The Company shall have issued the Subordinated Notes to the
Purchaser or its designees in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Subordinated Debt Agreement.

            SECTION 7.05. Conditions to Each Party's Obligations in Respect of
the Tranche II Closing. The respective obligations of the Company and the
Purchaser hereunder to be performed on the Tranche II Closing Date shall be
subject to the satisfaction or waiver at the Tranche II Closing Date, of the
following conditions:

            (a) No provision of any Applicable Law or Governmental Order shall
be in effect which has the effect of making the Transactions or the ownership by
the Purchaser (other than as a result of the Purchaser not being a U.S. person)
of the Shares illegal or shall otherwise prohibit the consummation of the
Transactions.

            (b) Each of the Registration Statement, the Restated Certificate and
the Certificate of Designation shall continue to be effective.

            (c) The Distribution shall have been consummated in accordance with
the Separation and Distribution Agreement.
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            (d) The Equity Commitment Letter shall be in full force and effect;
provided, that satisfaction or waiver at the Tranche II Closing Date of this
condition shall be at the sole election of the Company.

                                  ARTICLE VIII

                                  Miscellaneous

            SECTION 8.01. Survival. All representations, warranties, agreements
and covenants of the parties shall not survive and shall expire and be
terminated on the earlier of the Distribution Date or the date this Agreement is
terminated in accordance with its terms. Notwithstanding the foregoing, (i)
those agreements and covenants of the parties contained in Sections 2.01, 2.02,
2.03, 2.04, 2.05, 2.06 and 2.07, Article V, Article VI and this Article VIII and
expressly requiring performance after the Distribution Date shall survive the
Distribution Date and (ii) Sections 2.08, 8.03, 8.05, 8.06, 8.07, 8.08, 8.12,
8.13, 8.14, 8.15 and 8.17 shall survive the Distribution Date. The
Confidentiality Agreement and Section 6.07 shall survive any termination of this
Agreement.

            SECTION 8.02. Legends. (a) So long as applicable, each certificate
representing any portion of the shares of Common Stock or Non-Voting Preferred
Stock shall be stamped or otherwise imprinted with a legend in the following
form (in addition to any legend required under applicable state securities
laws):

      "THE SHARES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER
      THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "SECURITIES ACT") OR THE
      SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OF THE UNITED STATES. SUCH SHARES MAY NOT BE
      OFFERED, SOLD, TRANSFERRED, PLEDGED, HYPOTHECATED OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF
      IN THE ABSENCE OF SUCH REGISTRATION OR PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM SUCH
      REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS AND DELIVERY TO THE ISSUER OF AN OPINION OF
      COUNSEL REASONABLY SATISFACTORY TO IT TO THE EFFECT THAT SUCH TRANSFER IS
      EXEMPT FROM REGISTRATION UNDER THOSE LAWS."

            (b) In addition, so long as applicable, each certificate
representing any portion of the shares of the Tranche I Stock and the Tranche II
Stock shall be stamped or otherwise imprinted with a legend in the following
form:

      "THE SHARES EVIDENCED BY THIS CERTIFICATE ARE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN



      RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFER AS SET FORTH IN A SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT, DATED
      AS OF THE 31ST DAY OF MARCH, 2005, BY AND BETWEEN PITNEY BOWES CREDIT
      CORPORATION (THE "COMPANY") AND JCC MANAGEMENT LLC AS IT MAY BE AMENDED
      FROM TIME TO TIME, A COPY OF WHICH IS ON FILE AT THE PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE
      OFFICES OF THE COMPANY. NO REGISTRATION OF TRANSFER OF SUCH SHARES WILL BE
      MADE ON THE BOOKS OF THE COMPANY UNLESS AND UNTIL SUCH
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      RESTRICTIONS SHALL HAVE BEEN COMPLIED WITH. ANY TRANSFER NOT IN COMPLIANCE
      WITH SUCH AGREEMENT SHALL BE VOID."

            The legend referred to in this paragraph (b) shall be removed after
the second anniversary date of this Agreement and at such time as such security
is transferred to a Person other than the Purchaser or a Permitted Transferee.

            SECTION 8.03. Notices. All notices, demands, requests, consents,
approvals or other communications required or permitted to be given hereunder or
which are given with respect to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be
personally served, delivered by reputable air courier service with charges
prepaid, or transmitted by hand delivery, telegram, telex or facsimile,
addressed as set forth below, or to such other address as such party shall have
specified most recently by written notice. Notice shall be deemed given on the
date of service or transmission if personally served or transmitted by telegram,
telex or facsimile. Notice otherwise sent as provided herein shall be deemed
given on the next Business Day following delivery of such notice to a reputable
air courier service.

            To the Company:

                  Pitney Bowes Credit Corporation
                  27 Waterview Drive
                  Shelton, CT  6484
                  Attn:  Christian D. Hughes
                  Telephone: (203) 922-4023
                  Fax: (203) 922-4034

            with copies to (which shall not constitute a notice):

                  White & Case LLP
                  1155 Avenue of the Americas
                  New York, New York 10036
                  Attn:  Mark L. Mandel, Esq.
                  Telephone:  (212) 819-8200
                  Fax:  (212) 354-8113

            To the Purchaser:

                  JCC Management LLC
                  c/o Cerberus Capital Management, L.P.
                  299 Park Avenue
                  New York, NY  10171
                  Attention: W. Brett Ingersoll
                  Telephone: (212) 891-2100
                  Fax: (212) 891-1540
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            with a copy to (which shall not constitute a notice):

                  Schulte Roth & Zabel LLP
                  919 Third Avenue
                  New York, New York 10022
                  Attn:  Robert R. Kiesel, Esq.
                  Telephone: (212) 756-2000
                  Fax: (212) 593-5955

            SECTION 8.04. Termination. (a) This Agreement may be terminated:

            (i) at any time prior to the Tranche I Closing by mutual written
      agreement of the Company and the Purchaser;

            (ii) by either the Company or the Purchaser, if the Tranche I



      Closing shall not have occurred on or prior to March 31, 2006; provided,
      that the right to terminate this Agreement under this Section 8.04(a)(ii)
      shall not be available to any party whose failure to fulfill any
      obligation under this Agreement was the cause of or resulted in the
      failure of the Tranche I Closing to occur on or before such date;

            (iii) by either the Company or the Purchaser, if any Governmental
      Authority shall have issued a nonappealable Order or taken any other
      action having the effect of permanently restraining, enjoining or
      otherwise prohibiting the Tranche I Closing, the Tranche II Closing, the
      Distribution or the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including
      not having obtained a Private Letter Ruling or the Private Letter Ruling
      is withdrawn, invalidated or modified (or the IRS shall have notified
      Pitney Bowes that the consummation of the PBGFS Contribution, the PBGFS
      Distribution, the Company Distribution or the Distribution would not be
      tax free); provided, that the right to terminate this Agreement pursuant
      to this Section 8.04(a)(iii) shall not be available to any party whose
      failure to fulfill any obligation under this Agreement was the cause of,
      or resulted in, such final Order;

            (iv) by the Purchaser if the Distribution shall not have occurred on
      or prior to (but not after) the Business Day immediately succeeding the
      Tranche I Closing Date; provided, however, that the right to terminate
      this Agreement pursuant to this Section 8.04(a)(iv) shall not be available
      to the Purchaser if the failure to consummate the Distribution was due to
      the Purchaser's actions or omissions;

            (v) by the Purchaser if the Tranche II Closing shall not have
      occurred on or prior to (but not after) the third (3rd) Business Day
      immediately succeeding the Distribution Date; provided, however, that the
      right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section 8.04(a)(v)
      shall not be available to the Purchaser if the failure to consummate the
      Tranche II Closing was due to the Purchaser's actions or omissions;

            (vi) by the Company if a third party, including any group of
      Persons, shall have made a Superior Proposal and the Company has taken any
      of the actions referred to in clauses (i) or (ii) of Section 5.07(c) (but
      only after complying with the requirements of clauses (x) and (y)
      thereof);
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            (vii) by the Purchaser if the Company shall have entered into an
      agreement to effect a Superior Proposal;

            (viii) by the Company upon a material breach or violation of any
      representation, warranty, covenant or agreement on the part of the
      Purchaser set forth in this Agreement, which breach or violation would
      result in the failure to (A) satisfy the conditions set forth in Sections
      7.01, 7.03 or 7.05 (except for the conditions in Sections 7.01(d),
      7.01(f)(ii), 7.01(j), 7.05(a) and 7.05(b), which are provided for in other
      applicable provisions of this Section 8.04(a)) or (B) consummate the
      Tranche II Issuance except that, if such breach or violation is curable by
      the Purchaser through the exercise of its commercially reasonable efforts,
      then, for a period of up to thirty (30) calendar days, but only as long as
      the Purchaser continues to use its commercially reasonable efforts to cure
      such breach or violation (the "Purchaser Cure Period"), such termination
      shall not be effective, and such termination shall become effective only
      if the breach or violation is not cured within the Purchaser Cure Period;

            (ix) by the Purchaser upon a material breach or violation of any
      representation, warranty, covenant or agreement on the part of the Company
      set forth in this Agreement, which breach or violation would result in the
      failure to (A) satisfy the conditions set forth in Sections 7.02, 7.04 or
      7.05 (except for the conditions in Sections 7.02(d), 7.02(k), 7.04(d),
      7.05(a) and 7.05(b), which are provided for in other applicable provisions
      of this Section 8.04(a)) or (B) consummate the Tranche II Issuance except
      that, if such breach or violation is curable by the Company through the
      exercise of its commercially reasonable efforts, then, for a period of up
      to thirty (30) calendar days, but only as long as the Company continues to
      use its commercially reasonable efforts to cure such breach or violation
      (the "Company Cure Period"), such termination shall not be effective, and
      such termination shall become effective only if the breach or violation is
      not cured within the Company Cure Period; or



            (x) by the Company, if the condition set forth in Section 7.01(k) is
      not satisfied.

            (b) In the event this Agreement is duly terminated:

            (i) by any of the parties hereto at a time when the Purchaser is
      entitled to terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section
      8.04(a)(ii), 8.04(a)(iii), 8.04(a)(iv) or Section 8.04(a)(v) then the
      Company shall pay in cash to the Purchaser, within three (3) Business Days
      after such termination, (A) such amount of actual expenses incurred by the
      Purchaser in an amount not to exceed $2,000,000 if the primary reason for
      termination of this Agreement in accordance with Sections 8.04(a)(ii),
      8.04(a)(iii), 8.04(a)(iv), or 8.04(a)(v) is that the Private Letter Ruling
      has not been obtained or has been obtained and Pitney Bowes, in its good
      faith judgment, is exposed to material Tax risk or the Private Letter
      Ruling has been withdrawn, invalidated or modified (or the IRS shall not
      have notified Pitney Bowes that the consummation of the PBGFS
      Contribution, the PBGFS Distribution, the Company Distribution or the
      Distribution would not be tax free) or (B) such amount of actual expenses
      incurred by the Purchaser in an amount not to exceed $4,000,000 (the
      "Expense Reimbursement") in case the primary reason for
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      termination of this Agreement in accordance with Section 8.04(a)(ii),
      Section 8.04(a)(iii), Section 8.04(a)(iv) or Section 8.04(a)(v) is other
      than the reason set forth in Section 8.04(b)(i)(A);

            (ii) by (1) the Purchaser in accordance with Section 8.04(a)(vii) or
      (2) the Company in accordance with Section 8.04(a)(vi), then the Company
      shall pay an amount equal to the sum of the Expense Reimbursement plus
      $9,000,000.00 (the "Termination Payment") in cash to the Purchaser not
      later than three (3) Business Days after the execution date of such
      definitive agreement to effect such Superior Proposal; or

            (iii) by the Purchaser in accordance with Section 8.04(a)(ix) or by
      the Company in accordance with Section 8.04(a)(x), then the Company shall
      pay in cash to the Purchaser, within three (3) Business Days after such
      termination the Expense Reimbursement and if within twelve (12) months
      after this Agreement is terminated in accordance with Section 8.04(a)(ix)
      or Section 8.04(a)(x), the Company enters into an agreement with respect
      to an Acquisition Proposal that is on substantially the same terms and
      conditions as the Transactions, then the Company shall pay in cash to the
      Purchaser, not later than the date on which such Acquisition Proposal is
      consummated the Termination Payment.

            (c) In the event this Agreement is duly terminated pursuant to this
Section 8.04, the Company and the Purchaser shall each execute and deliver to
the Escrow Agent within three (3) Business Days after such termination the
Termination Instructions and Termination Certificate (as such terms are defined
in the Escrow Agreement).

            SECTION 8.05. Governing Law. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY,
INTERPRETED UNDER, AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW
YORK, REGARDLESS OF THE LAWS THAT MIGHT OTHERWISE GOVERN UNDER APPLICABLE
PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICTS OF LAW THEREOF.

            SECTION 8.06. Waiver Of Jury Trial. EACH PARTY HEREBY WAIVES TO THE
FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY
JURY IN RESPECT TO ANY LITIGATION DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY ARISING OUT OF, UNDER
OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT, ANY OTHER EQUITY DOCUMENT OR ANY
TRANSACTION CONTEMPLATED HEREBY OR THEREBY. EACH PARTY (A) CERTIFIES THAT NO
REPRESENTATIVE OF ANY OTHER PARTY HAS REPRESENTED, EXPRESSLY OR OTHERWISE, THAT
SUCH OTHER PARTY WOULD NOT, IN THE EVENT OF LITIGATION, SEEK TO ENFORCE THE
FOREGOING WAIVER AND (B) ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT AND THE OTHER PARTIES HERETO HAVE
BEEN INDUCED TO ENTER INTO THIS AGREEMENT AND THE OTHER EQUITY DOCUMENTS BY,
AMONG OTHER THINGS, THE MUTUAL WAIVERS AND CERTIFICATIONS IN THIS SECTION 8.06.

            SECTION 8.07. Attorney Fees. A party in breach of this Agreement
shall, on demand, indemnify and hold harmless the other party for and against
all reasonable out-of-
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pocket expenses, including reasonable legal fees, incurred by such other party
by reason of the enforcement and protection of its rights under this Agreement.
The payment of such expenses is in addition to any other relief to which such
other party may be entitled.

            SECTION 8.08. Entire Agreement. The Equity Documents (including all
agreements entered into pursuant thereto and all certificates and instruments
delivered pursuant thereto) constitute the entire agreement of the parties with
respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede all prior and contemporaneous
agreements, representations, understandings, negotiations and discussions
between the parties, whether oral or written, with respect to the subject matter
hereof.

            SECTION 8.09. Modifications and Amendments. (a) No amendment,
modification or termination of this Agreement shall be binding upon any other
party unless executed in writing by the parties hereto intending to be bound
thereby.

            (b) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Company may
amend or modify this Agreement if it first obtains written opinions from White &
Case LLP and Schulte Roth & Zabel LLP that, in each case, specifically recite
such amendment or modification and state that White & Case LLP and Schulte Roth
& Zabel LLP, in each case, is of the opinion that such amendment or modification
is reasonably necessary to obtain the Private Letter Ruling or otherwise comply
with Section 355 of the Code or the applicable treasury regulations promulgated
thereunder; provided, however, the written opinion of Schulte Roth & Zabel LLP
shall not be required in order for the Company to amend or modify Section
5.06(b) hereof, and no such opinion shall be rendered without the renderer
having first consulted with the relevant tax authority.

            SECTION 8.10. Waivers and Extensions . Subject to Section 3.26(c),
Sections 5.15(b)(i), 5.15(b)(ii), 5.15(c)(i), and Section 5.17(a)(i), any party
to this Agreement may waive any condition, right, breach or default that such
party has the right to waive; provided, that such waiver will not be effective
against the waiving party unless it is in writing, is signed by such party, and
specifically refers to this Agreement. Waivers may be made in advance or after
the right waived has arisen or the breach or default waived has occurred.
Subject to Section 3.26(c), Sections 5.15(b)(i), 5.15(b)(ii), 5.15(c)(i), and
Section 5.17(a)(i), any waiver may be conditional. Subject to Section 3.26(c),
Sections 5.15(b)(i), 5.15(b)(ii), 5.15(c)(i), and Section 5.17(a)(i), no waiver
of any breach of any agreement or provision contained herein shall be deemed a
waiver of either of any preceding or succeeding breach thereof or of any other
agreement or provision herein contained. No waiver or extension of time for
performance of any obligations or acts shall be deemed a waiver or extension of
the time for performance of any other obligations or acts.

            SECTION 8.11. Exhibits and Schedules. Each of the exhibits and
schedules ("Schedules") referred to herein and attached hereto is an integral
part of this Agreement and is incorporated herein by reference.

            SECTION 8.12. Expenses; Brokers. Except as provided in Section
8.04(b), Section 8.07 and Section 8.12(b), all costs and expenses incurred in
connection with the Equity Documents, the Registration Rights Agreement or the
Transactions shall be paid by the party
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incurring such costs and expenses, whether or not the Transactions shall be
consummated, including all fees and expenses of its legal counsel, financial
advisors and accountants.

            (b) The Company shall pay to the Purchaser such amount of actual
expenses incurred by the Purchaser in connection with the Equity Documents, the
Registration Rights Agreement or the Transactions in an amount not to exceed
$7,500,000 after receipt of invoices and cancelled checks showing payments by
the Purchaser of such actual expenses, or such other documents satisfactory in
form and substance to the Company as the Purchaser furnishes evidencing such
payments.

            (c) Other than the use of JPMorgan Securities Inc. by the Company
and Lehman Brothers and IXIS Capital Markets by the Purchaser, each of the
parties represents to the other that neither it nor any of its Affiliates has
used a broker or other intermediary in connection with the Transactions for



whose fees or expenses any other party will be liable.

            (d) The parties acknowledge that each of the Expense Reimbursement
and the Termination Payment provided for in Section 8.04(b) is an integral part
of the Transactions and not a penalty, and that, without the Expense
Reimbursement and Termination Payment the Purchaser would not have entered into
this Agreement.

            (e) Nothing in this Section 8.12 shall be deemed to limit any
liability of any party for any breach in any material respect of any provisions
of this Agreement that remain in effect after the termination of this Agreement.
The Company shall indemnify the Purchaser, and the Purchaser shall indemnify the
Company, against, and each of them agrees to hold the other of them harmless
from, all losses, liabilities and expenses (including, but not limited to,
reasonable fees and expenses of counsel and costs of investigation) incurred as
a result of any claim by anyone for compensation as a broker, a finder or in any
similar capacity by reason of services allegedly rendered to the indemnifying
party in connection with the Transactions.

            SECTION 8.13. Press Releases and Public Announcements. All public
announcements or public disclosures relating to the Transactions or the Internal
Restructuring (other than the Registration Statement) shall be made only if
mutually agreed upon by the Company and the Purchaser, except to the extent such
disclosure is required by law or by stock exchange regulation, provided, that
(a) to the extent reasonably practicable, the Company shall provide the
Purchaser with a reasonable opportunity to review any public announcement prior
to its release, (b) no such announcement or disclosure (except as required by
law or by stock exchange regulation) shall identify the Purchaser without the
Purchaser's prior consent and (c) the Company hereby consents to the publication
by Keith Williamson, on one occasion following the Tranche II Closing, but in as
many periodicals as Keith Williamson may elect, of a customary "tombstone"
advertisement announcing the investment made pursuant to this Agreement, which
shall be subject to the Company's reasonable review.

            SECTION 8.14. Assignment; No Third Party Beneficiaries. (a) This
Agreement and the rights, duties and obligations hereunder may not be assigned
or delegated, in whole or in part, by any party without the prior written
consent of the other party; provided, however, that, subject to the last
sentence of this Section 8.14(a), the Purchaser may assign this Agreement and
its rights, duties and obligations hereunder to any of its Affiliates without
the prior written
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consent of the Company; provided, that such assignment to an Affiliate shall not
adversely effect, in the Company's sole discretion, the Company or the Private
Letter Ruling (including the timing of obtaining the Private Letter Ruling, the
risk involved in obtaining the Private Letter Ruling in form and substance
reasonably satisfactory to the Company and the terms and conditions of the
Private Letter Ruling). Each assignee (pursuant to the terms and conditions of
this Section 8.14) must agree in writing to be bound by the terms of this
Agreement and the Equity Commitment Letter, if applicable, to the same extent,
and in the same manner, as the Purchaser or the transferring assignee prior to
the assignment or delegation, in whole or in part, of this Agreement and the
rights, duties and obligations hereunder to such assignee. Any purported
assignment or delegation of rights, duties or obligations hereunder made in
violation of Section 6.06 hereof or otherwise made in violation of this Section
8.14(a) shall be void and of no effect.

            (b) This Agreement and the provisions hereof shall be binding upon
and shall inure to the benefit of each of the parties and their respective
successors. This Agreement is not intended to confer any rights or benefits on
any Persons other than as expressly set forth in this Section 8.14.

            SECTION 8.15. Severability. This Agreement shall be deemed
severable, and the invalidity or unenforceability of any term or provision
hereof shall not affect the validity or enforceability of this Agreement or of
any other term or provision hereof. Furthermore, in lieu of any such invalid or
unenforceable term or provision, the parties hereto intend that there shall be
added as a part of this Agreement a provision as similar in terms to such
invalid or unenforceable provision as may be possible and be valid and
enforceable.

            SECTION 8.16. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in



counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which taken
together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

            SECTION 8.17. Remedies; Specific Performance. Each of the Company
and the Purchaser acknowledges that money damages would not be an adequate
remedy under any Applicable Law if a party hereto fails to perform in any
material respect any of its obligations hereunder and accordingly agree that
each party hereto (in addition to any other remedy to which it may be entitled
under Applicable Law or in equity) shall be entitled to seek to compel specific
performance of the obligations of the other party hereto under this Agreement,
without the posting of any bond, in accordance with the terms and conditions of
this Agreement, and if any action should be brought in equity to enforce any of
the provisions of this Agreement, no party hereto shall raise the defense that
there is an adequate remedy under Applicable Law.

                  [REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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            IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement
as of the date first above written.

                                                PITNEY BOWES CREDIT CORPORATION

                                                By ____________________________
                                                   Name:
                                                   Title:

                                                JCC MANAGEMENT LLC

                                                By ____________________________
                                                   Name:
                                                   Title:



 

Exhibit (12)

Pitney Bowes Inc.
Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges (1)

         
  Three Months Ended March 31,  
(Dollars in thousands)  2005  2004 
Income before income taxes  $ 227,769  $ 186,021 
         
Add:         

Interest expense   46,367   41,472 
Portion of rents representative of the interest factor   13,930   13,215 
Amortization of capitalized interest   369   369 
Minority interest in the income of subsidiary with fixed charges   1,758   910 

         
Income as adjusted  $ 290,193  $ 241,987 
         
Fixed charges:         

Interest expense  $ 46,367  $ 41,472 
Portion of rents representative of the interest factor   13,930   13,215 
Minority interest, excluding taxes, in the income of subsidiary with fixed charges   2,677   1,337 

         
Total fixed charges  $ 62,974  $ 56,024 
         
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges   4.61   4.32 

(1)  The computation of the ratio of earnings to fixed charges has been computed by dividing income before income taxes as adjusted by fixed charges.
Included in fixed charges is one-third of rental expense as the representative portion of interest.

 



 

Exhibit (31.1)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Michael J. Critelli, certify that:

1.  I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Pitney Bowes Inc.;

2.  Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this quarterly
report;

3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this quarterly report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

 a.  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is being prepared;

 
 b.  Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,

to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 
 c.  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this quarterly report our conclusions about the

effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this quarterly report based on such evaluation; and
 
 d.  Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal

quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 a.  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 
 b.  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over

financial reporting.

Date: May 6, 2005

   
/s/ Michael J. Critelli   
Michael J. Critelli   
Chief Executive Officer   

 



 

Exhibit (31.2)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Bruce P. Nolop, certify that:

1.  I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Pitney Bowes Inc.;

2.  Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this quarterly
report;

3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this quarterly report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

 a.  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is being prepared;

 
 b.  Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,

to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 
 c.  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this quarterly report our conclusions about the

effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this quarterly report based on such evaluation; and
 
 d.  Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal

quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 a.  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 
 b.  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over

financial reporting.

Date: May 6, 2005

   
/s/ Bruce P. Nolop   
Bruce P. Nolop   
Chief Financial Officer   

 



 

Exhibit (32.1)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

The certification set forth below is being submitted in connection with the Quarterly Report of Pitney Bowes Inc. (the “company”) on Form 10-Q for the
period ended March 31, 2005 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), for the purpose of complying with
Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United
States Code.

I, Michael J. Critelli, Chief Executive Officer of the company, certify that, to the best of my knowledge:

 (1)  The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act; and
 
 (2)  The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the company.

   
/s/ Michael J. Critelli   
Michael J. Critelli   
Chief Executive Officer   
May 6, 2005   

 



 

Exhibit (32.2)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

The certification set forth below is being submitted in connection with the Quarterly Report of Pitney Bowes Inc. (the “company”) on Form 10-Q for the
period ended March 31, 2005 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), for the purpose of complying with
Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United
States Code.

I, Bruce P. Nolop, Chief Financial Officer of the company, certify that, to the best of my knowledge:

 (1)  The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act; and
 
 (2)  The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the company.

   
/s/ Bruce P. Nolop   
Bruce P. Nolop   
Chief Financial Officer   
May 6, 2005   
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